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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

Form 10-K

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(DFOHE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013

or
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR D%Q©F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934.
For the transition period from to

Commission file number 0-12508

S&T BANCORP, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its arart

Pennsylvania 25-1434426
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation ofjanization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification No
800 Philadelphia Street, Indiana, PA 15701
(Address of principal executive office (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (800) 3-2265
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(bheRct:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registert
Common Stock, par value $2.50 per share The NASDAQ Stock Market LLC
(NASDAQ Global Select Marke

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(the®ct:None
(Title of class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%edb#turities Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Act.
Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seati® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for sstobrter period that the registrant was requirdilésuch reports) and (2) has been subject
to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

Yes No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilets pursuant to Item 405 of Regulatiork229.405 of this chapter) is not contained he
and will not be contained, to the best of regidtsaknowledge, in definitive proxy or informatiotasements incorporated by reference in Part
[l of this form 10-K or any amendment to this fod@-K. [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥atb site, if any, every Interactive Data
File required to be submitted and posted pursuaRule 405 of Regulation S-T (8§ 232.405 of thisptkg) during the preceding 12 months (or
for such shorter period that the registrant wasired to submit and post such files).

Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlerge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, aaccelerated filer, or smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act.
Large accelerated filei] Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer[D (Do not check if a smaller reporting compa Smaller reporting company]

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Act)
Yes O No

The aggregate estimated fair value of the votirdyraan-voting common equity held by non-affiliatéghe registrant as of June 30, 2013:
Common Stock, $2.50 par valu~ $570,272,07+

The number of shares outstanding of the issuea'ssels of common stock as of February 17, 2014:
Common Stock, $2.50 par value — 29,737,725 shares

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE
Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement of S&arigorp, Inc., to be filed pursuant to RegulatioA 1dr the 2014 annual meeting of
shareholders to be held May 19, 2014 are incorpdray reference into Part 11l of this annual remortForm 1-K.
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PART |
Item 1. BUSINESS

General

S&T Bancorp, Inc., or S&T (also referred to belosv'ae”, “us” or “our”), including, on a consolidadébasis with our subsidiaries where
appropriate, was incorporated on March 17, 198%utite laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania bank holding company and has
three wholly owned subsidiaries, S&T Bank, 9th 8tidoldings, Inc. and STBA Capital Trust |. We atson a one-half interest in
Commonwealth Trust Credit Life Insurance CompamyC®CLIC. We are registered as a financial holdioghpany with the Board of
Governors of the Federal Reserve System, or thereReserve Board, under the Bank Holding Compeatyof 1956, as amended, or the
BHCA. As of December 31, 2013, we had approxima$dlys billion in assets, $3.6 billion in loans, Billion in deposits and our
shareholders’ equity was $571.3 million.

S&T Bank is a full service bank with its main o#iat 800 Philadelphia Street, Indiana, Pennsylygn@aviding services to its customers
through offices located in Allegheny, ArmstrongaB) Butler, Cambria, Clarion, Clearfield, Indiad&fferson, Washington and Westmorelanc
counties of Pennsylvania. We also have two loadyction offices, or LPOs, in Ohio, with our mosteat LPO established in Central Ohio on
January 21, 2014. S&T Bank deposits are insuretthédyederal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FEdGhe maximum extent provided by
law.

S&T Bank has three wholly owned operating subsigg&arS&T Insurance Group, LLC, S&T Bancholdings;.land Stewart Capital
Advisors, LLC. S&T Insurance Group, LLC, through subsidiaries, offers a variety of insurance potsalUS&T Bancholdings, Inc. is an
investment company. Stewart Capital Advisors, LIS registered investment advisor that manageaterinvestment accounts for individt
and institutions and advises the Stewart Capital G&p Fund.

We operate three reportable operating segmentsdimgl Community Banking, Wealth Management anddaisce. Our Community
Banking segment offers services which include aitegpime and demand deposits, originating comna¢aid consumer loans, and providing
letters of credit and credit card services. Wedwelithat we have a relatively stable deposit badena material amount of deposits is obtained
from a single depositor or group of depositors.

The Wealth Management segment offers discount bagleeservices, services as executor and trustess wills and deeds, guardian and
custodian of employee benefits and other trustisesyas well as a registered investment advisdmtianages private investment accounts for
individuals and institutions. Total Wealth Managernassets under management and administrationapgreximately $1.9 billion at
December 31, 2013.

The Insurance segment includes a full-service arste agency offering commercial property and cagirsdurance, group life and health
coverage, employee benefit solutions and persosalance lines.

Refer to the financial statements and Part Il, I8Mote 25 of this Form 10-K for further detailsrfaining to our operating segments.

Employees
As of December 31, 2013, we had 948 full-time egl@mt employees.

Access to United States Securities and Exchange Com  mission Filings

All of our reports filed electronically with the litad States Securities and Exchange CommissiaheoBEC, including this Annual Rep
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December2813, or the Report, our prior annual reports omF10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-
Q, current reports on Form 8-K and our annual pistayements, as well as any amendments to thosgsepe accessible at no cost on our
website at www.stbancorp.com under Financial Infaofion,
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SEC Filings. These filings are also accessibleherSEC’s website at www.sec.gov. You may read apg eny material we file with the SEC
at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 100 F St#gtWashington, D.C. 20549. You may obtain infotioraon the operation of the Public
Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0BB6 charters of the Audit Committee, the Comptoisand Benefits Committee and
the Nominating and Corporate Governance CommitteeComplaints Regarding Accounting, Internal Aasting Controls or Auditing
Matters Policy, or the Whistleblower Policy, thedeoof Conduct for the CEO and CFO, the General @bdonduct, and the Shareholder
Communications Policy are also available at wwvastmrp.com under Corporate Governance.

Supervision and Regulation
General

S&T and S&T Bank are each extensively regulateceufederal and state law. The following describersain aspects of that regulation
and does not purport to be a complete descripfi@tl oegulations that affect S&T and S&T Bank draspects of any regulation discussed
here.

To the extent statutory or regulatory provisions @escribed the description is qualified in itsrety by reference to the particular statu
or regulatory provisions. Proposals to changedhes land regulations governing the banking industeyfrequently raised in Congress, in state
legislatures and before the various bank regulaggncies. The likelihood and timing of any charges the impact such changes might have
on S&T or S&T Bank is impossible to determine wathy certainty.

Any change in applicable laws or regulations, athimway such laws or regulations are interpretecegulatory agencies or courts, may
have a material impact on our business, operatiodsarnings.

S&T

We are a bank holding company subject to regulatimater the BHCA and the examination and reportetgiirements of the Federal
Reserve Board. Under the BHCA, a bank holding campaay not directly or indirectly acquire ownersbipcontrol of more than five percent
of the voting shares or substantially all of theedis of any additional bank, or merge or consdaigdth another bank holding company, with
the prior approval of the Federal Reserve Boardhéiee maintained a passive ownership position iaghleny Valley Bancorp, Inc. (14.3
percent) pursuant to approval from the Federal Redgoard.

As a bank holding company, we are expected undaststy and regulatory provisions to serve as acsaf financial and managerial
strength to our subsidiary bank. A bank holding pany is also expected to commit resources, inctudapital and other funds, to support its
subsidiary bank.

We elected to become a financial holding compardeuthe BHCA in 2001 and thereby engage in a broahge of financial and other
activities than are permissible for traditional b&molding companies. In order to maintain our stas a financial holding company, we must
remain “well-capitalized” and “well-managed” ancttepository institutions controlled by us must aanfwell-capitalized,” “well-
managed” (as defined in federal law) and haveastla “satisfactory” Community Reinvestment ActCRA rating. Refer to Part Il, Item 8,
Note 23 Regulatory Matters, of this Report for imfiation concerning the current capital ratios offS&d S&T Bank. No prior regulato
approval is required for a financial holding comypavith total consolidated assets less than $5hilio acquire a company, other than a bank
or savings association, engaged in activitiesahafinancial in nature or incidental to activitieat are financial in nature, as determined by
Federal Reserve Board, unless the total consotidetsets to be acquired exceed $10 billion. The Bii€ntifies several activities as
“financial in nature” including, among others, seties underwriting, dealing and market making; sgaring mutual funds and investment
companies; insurance
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underwriting and sales agency; investment adviaotivities; merchant banking activities; and ad¢is that the Federal Reserve Board has
determined to be closely related to banking. Bankg also engage in, subject to limitations on itmesit, activities that are financial in natt
other than insurance underwriting, insurance comypamtfolio investment, real estate development igad estate investment, through a
financial subsidiary of the bank, if the bank isglxcapitalized,” “well-managed” and has at leassatisfactory” CRA rating.

If S&T or S&T Bank ceases to be “well-capitalizeat’“well-managed,” we will not be in compliance Wwithe requirements of the BHCA
regarding financial holding companies. If a finaidiolding company is notified by the Federal Resdoard of such a change in the rating
any of its subsidiary banks, it must take certairrective actions within specified time frames. tharmore, if S&T Bank was to receive a CRA
rating of less than “satisfactory,” then we wouldgrohibited from engaging in new activities or @cgg companies engaged in certain
financial activities until the rating is raised“satisfactory” or better.

We are presently engaged in nonbanking activitiezuigh the following five entities:

e Oth Street Holdings, Inc. was formed in June 1988did and manage a group of investments previcaushed by S&T Bank and to
give us additional latitude to purchase other itmests.

e S&T Bancholdings, Inc. was formed in August 2002¢déd and manage a group of investments previoustyed by S&T Bank and !
give us additional latitude to purchase other itmests.

« CTCLIC is a joint venture with another financiasiitution, acting as a reinsurer of credit lifecigent and health insurance policies
sold by S&T Bank and the other institution. S&T Band the other institution each have ownershigrésts of 50 percent in CTCLI

e S&T Insurance Group, LLC distributes life insurarazel long-term disability income insurance produbigring 2001, S&T Insurance
Group, LLC and Attorneys Abstract Company, Inceeadl into an agreement to form S&T Settlement $esyiLLC, or STSS, with
respective ownership interests of 55 percent anged4éent. STSS is a title insurance agency seryioimmercial customers. During
2002, S&T Insurance Group, LLC expanded into thapprty and casualty insurance business with thaisitign of S&T-Evergreen
Insurance LLC

e Stewart Capital Advisors, LLC was formed in AugR605 and is a registered investment advisor thages private investment
accounts for individuals and institutions and adsithe Stewart Capital Mid Cap Fui

S&T Bank

As a Pennsylvania-chartered, FDIC-insured commigbeiak, S&T Bank is subject to the supervision eggllation of the Pennsylvania
Department of Banking and Securities, or PADB, tredFDIC. We are also subject to various requirdmand restrictions under federal and
state law, including requirements to maintain resgrgainst deposits, restrictions on the typesuatand terms and conditions of loans that
may be granted and limits on the types of othavitiets in which S&T Bank may engage and the inmestts it may make.

In addition, S&T Bank is subject to affiliate trasion rules in Sections 23A and 23B of the FedReserve Act that limit the amount of
transactions between itself and S&T or S&T's norkbsubsidiaries. Under these provisions, transastiliween a bank and its parent
company or any single nonbank affiliate generalylanited to 10 percent of the bank subsidiangpital and surplus, and with respect to all
transactions with affiliates, are limited to 20 gt of the bank subsidiary’s capital and surglasns and extensions of credit from a bank to
an affiliate generally are required to be securgdllgible collateral in specified amounts. The Beerank Act Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act, or Dodd-Frank Act, expathésaffiliate transaction rules to

5
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broaden the definition of affiliate and to applystecurities borrowing or lending, repurchase oers® repurchase agreements and derivatives
activities that we may have with an affiliate, aslivas to strengthen collateral requirements ami Federal Reserve exemptive authority.
Also, the definition of “extension of creditdr transactions with executive officers, directarsl principal shareholders was expanded to in
credit exposure arising from a derivative transata repurchase or reverse repurchase agreentbatsaturities lending or borrowing
transaction. These expansions became effective2lylg012. These provisions have not had a maeffedt on S&T or S&T Bank.

Insurance of Accounts; Depositor Preference

The deposits of S&T Bank are insured up to appleéimits per insured depositor by the FDIC. ThedDd-rank Act codified FDIC
deposit insurance coverage per separately insueaositor for all account types at $250,000. ThedBrank Act also maintained federal
deposit insurance coverage for noninterest-bedrarggaction accounts at an unlimited amount froreeD#er 31, 2010 until this part of the
Act expired on December 31, 2012. Deposits helbimnterest-bearing transaction accounts are ngreggted with any interest-bearing
deposits the owner may hold in the same ownersdtggory, and the combined total is insured up teaatt $250,000.

As an FDIC-insured bank, S&T Bank is also subjedeDIC insurance assessments, which are imposexd lbgmn the risk the institution
poses to the Deposit Insurance Fund, or DIF. Utlderassessment system, risk is defined and mehsagieg an institution’s supervisory
ratings with other risk measures, including finahcatios. The current total base assessmentoatas annualized basis range from 2.5 basis
points for certain “well-capitalized,” “well-manad&banks, with the highest ratings, to 45 basisitsfor institutions posing the most risk to
the DIF. The FDIC may raise or lower these assessmgs on a quarterly basis based on variousriath achieve a reserve ratio, which the
Dodd-Frank Act has mandated to be no less thandeB%ent of insured deposits.

In February 2011, the FDIC Board of Directors addp final rule, Deposit Insurance Assessment Bessgssment Rate Adjustments,
Dividends, Assessment Rates and Large Bank PrMetpodology. This final rule redefined the depassiurance assessment base to equal
average consolidated total assets minus averagiblamquity as required by the Dodd-Frank Ackredt assessment rates, implemented the
Dodd-Frank Act’s DIF dividend provisions and rewgbe risk-based assessment system for all lasyead depository institutions (those with
at least $10.0 billion in total assets). Many @& tihanges were made as a result of provisionseddtud-Frank Act that were intended to shift
more of the cost of raising the reserve ratio finstitutions with less than $10.0 billion in assgtsch as S&T Bank) to the larger banks. Ex
for the future assessment rate schedules, all esangnt into effect April 1, 2011 which lowered &DIC expense in 2013 and 2012 comp.
to 2011. In addition to DIF assessments, the FR¥€esses all insured deposits a special assessnfentltthe repayment of debt obligations of
the Financing Corporation, or FICO. FICO is a goweent-sponsored entity that was formed to borrawntioney necessary to carry out the
closing and ultimate disposition of failed thrifistitutions by the Resolution Trust Corporationha 1990s.

Under federal law, deposits and certain claimsaftministrative expenses and employee compensaains insured depository
institutions are afforded a priority over other geal unsecured claims against such an instituiimhyding federal funds and letters of credit, in
the liquidation or other resolution of such aniitngion by a receiver. Such priority creditors wabuhclude the FDIC.

Capital

The Federal Reserve Board and FDIC have issuedasitiadly similar risk-based and leverage capitatiglines applicable to banking
organizations they supervise. Under current capital
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guidelines, (which will be replaced by a new retpiha capital rule effective January 1, 2015, forafler banking organizations such as S&T
and S&T Bank, as discussed below), S&T and S&T Banekrequired to maintain certain capital standbeded on ratios of capital to average
assets and capital to risk weighted assets. Thietjes define a bank'total qualifying capital as having two componefisr 1 capital, whicl
must be at least 50 percent of total qualifyingitzdas mainly comprised of common equity, retairearnings and qualifying preferred stock,
less certain intangibles. Tier 2 capital may ineldlde allowance for loan losses, or ALL, up to ximam of 1.25 percent of risk weighted
assets, qualifying subordinated debt, qualifyingfgmred stock, hybrid capital instruments and ugS@ercent of net unrealized gains on
available-for-sale equity securities. The guiddiatso define the weights assigned to assets &diaince sheet items to determine the risk
weighted asset component of the risk-based capiials.

The Federal Reserve Board and FDIC have establisidchum and welkapitalized standards for banks and bank holdimgpamies. Th
minimum capital standards are defined as a Tiatid of at least 4.00 percent, a total capitabrafiat least 8.00 percent and a leverage ratio
at least 3.00 percent. The leverage ratio of 3€d0gnt is for those bank and bank holding compahismeet certain specified criteria,
including having received the highest regulatotingaand are not experiencing significant growtlegpansion. All other banks and bank
holding companies generally are required to mainddieverage ratio of at least 4.00 percent. S&1 BT Bank maintain capital levels to
meet the welkapitalized regulatory standards, which are defamed Tier 1 ratio of at least 6.00 percent arada tapital ratio of at least 10.
percent. S&T Bank must also maintain a leverage ddtat least 5.00 percent to meet the well-céipéd regulatory standards. At
December 31, 2013 S&T'’s Tier 1 capital was 12.3¢gmt, total capital was 14.36 percent and leverage was 9.75 percent. S&T Bank’s
Tier 1, total capital and leverage ratios were @8&rcent, 13.35 percent, and 8.95 percent.

Both the Federal Reserve Board and the FDIC’sbissted capital standards explicitly identify concatitns of credit risk and the risk
arising from non-traditional activities, as wellas institutions ability to manage these risks, as important fadmbe taken into account by
agency in assessing an institution’s overall chpid@quacy. The capital guidelines also providé dinainstitution’s exposure to a decline in the
economic value of its capital due to changes ierett rates be considered by the agency as a facwaluating a bank’capital adequacy. Tl
Dodd-Frank Act contains a number of provisionsnded to strengthen capital, including requiring imum leverage and risk-based capital
that are at least as stringent as those currantyféct.

In addition to the Dodd-Frank Act, the internatibagersight body of the Basel Committee on BankBupervision reached agreements to
require more and higheuality capital, known as Basel Ill, in July 20The federal banking agencies issued a final rulsmpdement Basel II
as well as the minimum leverage and risk-basedalagiquirements of the Dodd-Frank Act in July 201Be final rule establishes a
comprehensive capital framework that will revisd aeplace the current capital guidelines. The wilego into effect on January 1, 2015, for
smaller banking organizations such as S&T and S&mnkB It introduces a common equity Tier 1 capiddior requirement of 4.50 percent,
increases the minimum Tier 1 capital ratio to G@€cent, and requires a leverage ratio of 4.00gmerfor all banks. Common equity Tier 1
capital consists of common stock instruments thegtrthe eligibility criteria in the final rules,teéned earnings, accumulated other
comprehensive income and common equity Tier 1 nitinorterest. The rule also requires a banking oizigtion to maintain a capital
conservation buffer composed of common equity Tieapital in an amount greater than 2.50 percetutaf risk-weighted assets. The capital
conservation buffer will be phased in beginnin@@16, at 25%, increasing to 50% in 2017, 75% in82&d 100% in 2019 and beyond. As a
result, a banking organization must maintain a comequity Tier 1 capital ratio greater than 7.06cpet, a Tier 1 capital ratio greater than
8.50 percent and a Total rislased capital ratio greater than 10.50 percengraibe, it will be subject to restrictions on capistributions an

7
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discretionary bonus payments. By 2019, when the mémis fully phased in, the minimum capital regments plus the capital conservation
buffer will exceed the well-capitalized regulatoaguirements. To be well-capitalized, a bankingaaigation must have a common equity Tier
1 capital ratio of at least 6.50 percent, a Tieaftital ratio of at least 8.00 percent and a trdgital ratio of at least 10.00 percent. The rige a
disqualifies certain financial instruments fromlirgion in regulatory capital and requires more a¢idus from capital.

The new regulatory capital rule also revises tHeutation of riskweighted assets. It includes a new framework undhéch the risk weigl
will increase for most credit exposures that arel@gs or more past due or on nonaccrual, high-ligfatommercial real estate loans, certain
equity exposures and changes to the credit comrefactors of off balance sheet items, such asitiused portion of a loan commitment.

Federal regulators periodically propose amendnterttse risk-based capital guidelines and the rdlegdgulatory framework and consider
changes to the capital standards that could stgmifly increase the amount of capital needed td apgdicable standards. The timing of
adoption, ultimate form and effect of any such jmsgrl amendments cannot be predicted.

Capital Purchase Program

On December 7, 2011, we redeemed all of the pexfestock that we sold to the federal governmepiaisof the Capital Purchase
Program, or CPP. As a participant in the CPP, wepteted the $108.7 million capital raise on Jandaiy2009.

In connection with the issuance of the preferredlsto the U.S. Treasury in 2009, we also issueditS. Treasury a warrant to purchase
517,012 shares of our common stock at an initinspare exercise price of $31.53, with an estim&gd/alue of $4.0 million on the date of
issuance. We did not repurchase the warrant cazrtilyrwith the redemption of the preferred stockeTwarrant remains outstanding as of the
date of the filing of this Annual Report on FormK0The warrant provides for the adjustment of éliercise price and the number of shares c
our common stock issuable upon exercise pursuantsimmary anti-dilution provisions. The U.S. Trggsagreed not to exercise voting powel
with respect to any shares of common stock issped exercise of the warrant, but sold the warnar2013, and the buyer is not under any
restrictions with regard to voting power of thecstdf the warrant is exercised. The warrant withain outstanding until January 2019 or un
is exercised by the owner at the exercise prick8&f53 per share.

Payment of Dividends

S&T is a legal entity separate and distinct frosnbianking and other subsidiaries. A substantigigoof our revenues consist of dividend
payments we receive from S&T Bank. S&T Bank, imius subject to federal and state laws and reiguisithat limit the amount of dividends
it can pay to S&T. In addition, both S&T and S&Trkaare subject to various general regulatory pedicelating to the payment of dividends,
including requirements to maintain adequate capltalve regulatory minimums. The Federal Reservedloas indicated that banking
organizations should generally pay dividends oh(j) the organization’s net income available toreoon shareholders over the past year has
been sufficient to fully fund the dividends ang {lie prospective rate of earnings retention apeamsistent with the organization’s capital
needs, asset quality and overall financial conditithus, under certain circumstances based upofinamncial condition, our ability to declare
and pay quarterly dividends may require consultatwith the Federal Reserve Board and may be pitedilliy applicable Federal Reserve
Board regulations. If we were to pay a dividendamtravention of Federal Reserve regulations, troeFal Reserve could raise supervisory
concerns.
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Other Safety and Soundness Regulations

There are a number of obligations and restrictioqmsed on bank holding companies such as us andepository institution subsidiary
by federal law and regulatory policy. These obligrad and restrictions are designed to reduce gatéoss exposure to the FDIC’s deposit
insurance fund in the event an insured depositwtitution becomes in danger of default or is ifad#. Under current federal law for examg
the federal banking agencies possess broad powtaked prompt corrective action to resolve problefisisured depository institutions. The
extent of these powers depends upon whether thitutieam in question is “well-capitalized,” “adequedy capitalized,” “undercapitalized,”
“significantly undercapitalized” or “critically urefcapitalized,” as defined by the law. Under retjoies established by the federal banking
agencies, a “well-capitalizediistitution must have a Tier 1 capital ratio ofedist 6.00 percent, a Total capital ratio of asid®.00 percent al
a leverage ratio of at least 5.00 percent and mautsbe subject to a capital directive or order.“Adequately capitalizedhstitution must have
Tier 1 capital ratio of at least 4.00 percent, #éal oapital ratio of at least 8.00 percent andvarage ratio of at least 4.00 percent. The most
highly-rated financial institutions minimum requinent for the leverage ratio is 3.00 percent. Infifukeral banking agencies’ final rule to
implement Basel Il and the minimum leverage as#-based capital requirements of the Dodd-Frank thetfederal banking agencies have
also changed the definitions of these categometding the introduction of a common equity Tiecdpital ratio in each definition, which are
to become effective as of January 1, 2015. As afebwer 31, 2013, S&T and S&T Bank were classiftetiiell-capitalized.” The
classification of depository institutions is printarfor the purpose of applying the federal bankaggnciesprompt corrective action provisio
and is not intended to be and should not be intéepras a representation of overall financial cibolior prospects of any financial institution.

The federal banking agencies’ prompt correctivéoagbowers (which increase depending upon the @egrevhich an institution is
undercapitalized) can include, among other thingguiring an insured depository institution to adagapital restoration plan which cannot be
approved unless guaranteed by the institution’sqtazompany; placing limits on asset growth anttict®ns on activities, including
restrictions on transactions with affiliates; reting the interest rates the institution may paydeposits; prohibiting the payment of principal
or interest on subordinated debt; prohibiting tbilimng company from making capital distributionghwaiut prior regulatory approval; and,
ultimately, appointing a receiver for the institrti For example, only a “well-capitalized” deposjtinstitution may accept brokered deposits
without prior regulatory approval.

The federal banking agencies have also adoptealingd prescribing safety and soundness standelatsg to internal controls and
information systems, internal audit systems, loacudnentation, credit underwriting, interest ratpasure, asset growth, fees and compens
and benefits. In general, the guidelines requimr@riate systems and practices to identify andagarspecified risks and exposures. The
guidelines prohibit excessive compensation as aaferand unsound practice and characterize compamga excessive when the amounts
paid are unreasonable or disproportionate to theces performed by an executive officer, employBesctor or principal shareholder. In
addition, the agencies have adopted regulationsatithorize, but do not require, an agency to ocageinstitution that has been given notice by
an agency that it is not in compliance with angwéh safety and soundness standards to submit@liaage plan. If, after being so notified,
institution fails to submit an acceptable compleptan, the agency must issue an order directitigrato correct the deficiency and may issue
an order directing other actions of the types tactvlan “undercapitalized” institution is subjectdan the prompt corrective action provisions
described above.
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Regulatory Enforcement Authority

The enforcement powers available to federal banigencies are substantial and include, among tihregs and in addition to other
powers described herein, the ability to assessmighey penalties, to issue cease-and-desist ayvahorders and to initiate injunctive actions
against banks and bank holding companies and tlisth affiliated parties,” as defined in the Fetldbeposit Insurance Act. In general, these
enforcement actions may be initiated for violatiofisaws and regulations, as well as engagemeamh$afe or unsound practices. Other action:
or inactions may provide the basis for enforcenaetipn, including misleading or untimely reporigdi with regulatory authorities.

At the state level, the PADB also has broad enfosrg powers over S&T Bank, including the powembpose fines and other civil and
criminal penalties and to appoint a conservataeoeiver.

Interstate Banking and Branching

The BHCA currently permits bank holding companiesif any state to acquire banks and bank holdingpemires located in any other
state, subject to certain conditions, includingaiernationwide and state-imposed deposit conceémréimits. In addition, because of changes
to law made by the Dodd-Frank Act, S&T Bank may restablish de novo interstate branches in any gidtee same extent that a bank
chartered in that state could establish a branch.

Community Reinvestment and Consumer Protection Laws

In connection with its lending activities, S&T Baisksubject to a number of federal laws designgardtect borrowers and promote
lending to various sectors of the economy and mdjmr. These include, among other laws, the EquadliCOpportunity Act, the Truth-in-
Lending Act, the Home Mortgage Disclosure Act, Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act, the FattiCRReporting Act and the CRA. In
addition, rules of the Consumer Financial ProtecBaireau pursuant to federal law require disclosfifgrivacy policies to consumers and in
some circumstances, allow consumers to preverdititdosure of certain personal information to néiiafed third parties.

The CRA requires the appropriate federal bankirgnag, in connection with its examination of a batiokassess the bank’s record in
meeting the credit needs of the communities sebyetthe bank, including low and moderate-income megghoods. Furthermore, such
assessment is required of any bank that has applieoing other things, to merge or consolidate witacquire the assets or assume the
liabilities of an insured depository institutiorr,to open or relocate a branch office. In the @dsebank holding company (including a finan
holding company) applying for approval to acquiteaak or bank holding company, the Federal Redeoazd will assess the record of each
subsidiary bank of the applicant bank holding conypa considering the application. Under the CR#stitutions are assigned a rating of
“outstanding,” “satisfactory,” “needs to improvef tunsatisfactory.” S&T Bank was rated “satisfagfbin its most recent CRA evaluation.

Anti-Money Laundering Rules

S&T Bank is subject to the Bank Secrecy Act, itplementing regulations and other amtdney laundering laws and regulations, incluc
the USA Patriot Act of 2001. Among other thingsgh laws and regulations require S&T Bank to tédessto prevent the bank from being
used to facilitate the flow of illegal or illicit aney, to report large currency transactions arfdegsuspicious activity reports. S&T Bank is also
required to develop and implement a comprehensitien@oney laundering compliance program. Banks ralssi have in place appropriate
“know your customer” policies and procedures. Mioias of these requirements can result in substiagitiil and criminal sanctions. In
addition, provisions of the USA Patriot Act of 20@uire the federal financial institution regulgtagencies to consider the effectiveness of
financial institution’s anti-money laundering adties when reviewing bank mergers and bank holdimmmpany acquisitions.
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Government Actions and Legislation

The Dodd-Frank Act is significantly changing theremt bank regulatory structure and affecting theding, deposit, investment, trading
and operating activities of financial institutioasd their holding companies, including S&T and SBank. The Dodd-Frank Act contains a
number of provisions intended to strengthen cadRafer to Capital within Part |, ltem 1 for addital information.

The Dodd-Frank Act requires various federal agentieadopt a broad range of new rules and reguktnd to prepare numerous studies
and reports for Congress. The federal agenciegieea significant discretion in drafting the implenting rules and regulations, and
consequently, many of the details and much ofriifgact of the Act may not be known for many yeare Dodd-Frank Act also contains
provisions that expand the insurance assessmemtbasincrease the scope of deposit insurance agwer

Among other provisions, the SEC has enacted ridgsiired by the Dodd-Frank Act, giving stockholdanson-binding vote on executive
compensation and so-called “golden parachute” paysrend allowing certain stockholders to nominatgrtown candidates for election as
directors using a company'’s proxy materials. Thygslation also directs the federal financial ingiiin regulatory agencies to promulgate rules
prohibiting excessive compensation being paidraritial institution executives. In addition, in Betber of 2013, federal regulators adopted
final regulations regarding the so-called Volckeddrestablished in the Dodd-Frank Act. The VolcReie generally prohibits banks and their
affiliates from engaging in proprietary trading @ndesting in and sponsoring certain unregistenegstment companies (defined as hedge
funds and private equity funds, subject to certai@mptions). The new rules are complex and it ike@r how they will be implemented over
time. However, S&T does not currently anticipatattthey will have a material effect on S&T Bankiteraffiliates, because we do not engage
in the prohibited activities.

The Dodd-Frank Act also created the Consumer FinhRcotection Bureau, or CFPB, that took over me&ing responsibility on July 21,
2011 for the principal federal consumer protectams, such as the Truth in Lending Act, the Equad Opportunity Act, the Real Estate
Settlement Procedures Act and the Truth in Saviog &mong others. Institutions that have asse$i 610 billion or less, such as S&T Bank,
will continue to be supervised in this area by tlsgate and primary federal regulators (in the cds®&T Bank, the FDIC). The Act also gives
the CFPB expanded data collection powers for &iding purposes for both small business and moettgsams, as well as expanded authority
to prevent unfair, deceptive and abusive practi€hs.consumer complaint function also has beenatoiaged into the CFPB with respect to
the institutions it supervises. The CFPB estabtishe Office of Community Banks and Credit Unionghva mission to ensure that the CFPB
incorporates the perspectives of small depositastitutions into the policy-making process, comngatgs relevant policy initiatives to
community banks and credit unions, and works wammunity banks and credit unions to identify poedrdareas for regulatory simplification.
In addition, the Dodd-Frank Act required the FetiBeserve Board to adopt a rule addressing integdéees applicable to debit card
transactions. This rule, Regulation Il, effectivet@er 1, 2011, does not apply to banks with lkas $10.0 billion in assets.

In January 2013, the CFPB issued a series of file$ related to mortgage loan origination and gamge loan servicing. In particular, on
January 10, 2013, the CFPB issued a final ruleemphting the ability-to-repay and qualified mortgd@M) provisions of the Truth in
Lending Act, as amended by the Dodd-Frank Act (@&l Rule”). The ability-to-repay provision requireseditors to make reasonable, good
faith determinations that borrowers are able t@yeeir mortgages before extending the creditdasea number of factors and consideration
of financial information about the borrower fronasenably reliable third-party documents. Underbed-Frank Act and the QM Rule, loans
meeting the definition of “qualified mortgage” antitled to a presumption that the lender satidfiiedability-to-repay requirements. The
presumption is a conclusive presumption/safe haidrgerime loans meeting the QM requirements, anebattable
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presumption for higher-priced/subprime loans megtive QM requirements. The definition of a “qua&ifimortgage” incorporates the statutory
requirements, such as not allowing negative anaiitim or terms longer than 30 years. The QM Rude allds an explicit maximum 43% debt-
to-income ratio for borrowers if the loan is to e QM definition, though some mortgages thattgegernment-sponsored enterprise, or
GSE, Federal Housing Administration, or FHA, anderans Affairs, or VA, underwriting guidelines mdgry a period not to exceed seven
years, meet the QM definition without being subjecthe 43% del-to-income limits. The QM Rule became effectiveJamuary 10, 2014. We
do not believe these rules will have a materialdaotpn our mortgage business.

The federal agencies responsible for implementiegprovisions of the Dodd-Frank Act have issuedlstntial number of rules. Some of
the rules have not taken effect, and more rulelsbeiissued. Not all of the Doderank Act provisions and their implementing regioias apply
to banks the size of S&T Bank. We cannot predietutiimate impact of the Act on S&T or S&T Banktlais time, including the extent to
which it could increase costs or limit our abilitypursue business opportunities in an efficientmea, or otherwise adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat Nor can we predict the impact or substancahudr future legislation or regulation.
However, it is expected that they, at a minimum], wecrease our operating and compliance costs.

In 2012, Pennsylvania enacted three bills knowth@sBanking Law Modernization Packag@he bills became effective on Decembel
2012. The overall goal of the Banking Law Modertizma Package was to modernize the banking lawsahBylvania and reduce regulatory
burden at the state level.

Federal and state regulatory agencies consistprajyose and adopt changes to their regulationkamge the manner in which existing
regulations are applied. We cannot predict thetamios or impact of pending or future legislatiorregulation, or the application thereof,
although enactment of the proposed legislationcdcatfiect how S&T and S&T Bank operate and coulaigigantly increase costs, impede the
efficiency of internal business processes, or lmmit ability to pursue business opportunities ireffitient manner, any of which could
materially and adversely affect our business, fimgrcondition and results of operations.

Competition

S&T Bank competes with other local, regional antiamel financial service providers, such as otliearicial holding companies,
commercial banks, savings associations, credinsifinance companies and brokerage and insuramneg fSome of our competitors are not
subject to the same level of regulation and ovétdigat is required of banks and bank holding camgs and are thus able to operate under
lower cost structures.

Changes in bank regulation, such as changes iprtiticts and services banks can offer and permittedvement in non-banking
activities by bank holding companies, as well askbraergers and acquisitions, can affect our akititgompete with other financial service
providers. Our ability to do so will depend upomhsuccessfully we can respond to the evolving cditipe, regulatory, technological and
demographic developments affecting our operations.

We face significant competition in both originatilogins and attracting deposits. The Western Pevensid area has a high density of
financial institutions, some of which are signifitly larger institutions with greater financial cesces than us, and many of which are our
competitors to varying degrees. Our competitionldans comes principally from commercial banksjrsgs associations, mortgage banking
companies, credit unions and other financial seremmpanies. Our most direct competition for depdsas historically come from commerc
banks, savings banks and credit unions. We faciti@ual competition for deposits from non-deposjtoompetitors such as the mutual fund
industry, securities and brokerage firms and insteacompanies. Because larger
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competitors have advantages in attracting busiinesslarger corporations, we do not generally afieta compete for that business. Instead,
we concentrate our efforts on attracting the bissired individuals, and small and medium-size bissas. We consider our competitive
advantages to be customer service and responss/messtomer needs, the convenience of bankingesfand hours, and the availability and
pricing of our products and services. We emphgsézeonalized banking and the advantage of locasid@emaking in our banking business.

The financial service industry is likely to becomere competitive as further technological advarereshle more companies to provide
financial services on a more efficient and conveniasis. Technological innovations have loweraditional barriers to entry and enabled
many companies to compete in financial servicekatar Many customers now expect a choice of bantipns for the delivery of services,
including traditional banking offices, telephoneaiminternet, mobile, ATMs, self-service branchasd/or in-store branches. These delivery
channels are offered by traditional banks and ggvassociations, as well as credit unions, brokefiags, asset management groups, finance
and insurance companies, internet-based compamdsnortgage banking firms. We believe that ourentrmarket area, consisting primarily
of Western Pennsylvania and Northeast Ohio, previdieg-term opportunity for growth in deposits doans. Commercial and residential real
estate values in our market have improved duriri2Blevertheless, certain other regional and lecahomies remain more fragile, and
uncertainty in those economies could affect, toesextent, consumer and corporate spending in @ar. ar
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS

Investments in our common stock involve risk. Tokofving discussion highlights the risks that wdidee are material to S&T, but does
not necessarily include all risks that we may face.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to a number of factors.

Our quarterly and annual operating results haviedaignificantly in the past and could vary siggahtly in the future, which makes it
difficult for us to predict our future operatingstéts. Our operating results may fluctuate due\aréety of factors, many of which are outside
of our control, including the changing U.S. econoemvironment and changes in the commercial andenesal real estate market, any of
which may cause our stock price to fluctuate. Iif operating results fall below the expectationgwéstors or securities analysts, the price of
our common stock could decline substantially. Qacls price can fluctuate significantly in respomse variety of factors including, among
other things:

« volatility of stock market prices and volumes imgeal;
« changes in market valuations of similar companies;
< changes in conditions in credit markets;

» changes in accounting policies or procedures asnetjby the Financial Accounting Standards Board;ASB, or other regulatory
agencies

» legislative and regulatory actions (including thgpact of the Dodd-Frank Act and related regulaliaubjecting us to additional
regulatory oversight which may result in increasethpliance costs and/or require us to change csiness mode

e government intervention in the U.S. financial systend the effects of and changes in trade and ragnend fiscal policies and laws,
including the interest rate policies of the Fed&aserve Boarc

< additions or departures of key members of managgmen

« fluctuations in our quarterly or annual operatieguits; and
< changes in analysts’ estimates of our financialguerance.

Risks Related to Credit

Our ability to assess the credit -worthiness of our customers may diminish, which may adversely affect our results of
operations.

We take credit risk by virtue of making loans amtkading loan commitments and letters of creditr &(posure to credit risk is managed
through the use of consistent underwriting starsléindt emphasize “in-market” lending while avoidhighly leveraged transactions as well as
excessive industry and other concentrations. Gadicadministration function employs risk managetiechniques to ensure that loans adher
to corporate policy and problem loans are promigiintified. There can be no assurance that sucsumeswill be effective in avoiding undue
credit risk. If the models and approaches we uselect, manage and underwrite our consumer andheoaml loan products become less
predictive of future charge-offs (due, for examperapid changes in the economy, including thempieyment rate), our credit losses may
increase.

The value of the collateral used to secure our loan s may not be sufficient to compensate for the amoun t of an unpaid loan
and we may be unsuccessful in recovering the remain ing balance from our customers.

Decreases in real estate values, particularly veispect to our commercial lending and mortgagerities, could adversely affect the value
of property used as collateral for our loans andomstomers’ ability to repay these loans, whickuim could impact our profitability.
Repayment of our commercial loans is often depetnaiethe cash flow of the borrower, which may beeom
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unpredictable. If the value of the assets, suaeasestate, serving as collateral for the loanfpliw were to decline materially, a significant
part of the loan portfolio could become under-deflalized. If the loans that are secured by re@altedecome troubled when real estate marke
conditions are declining or have declined, in therg of foreclosure, we may not be able to realeeamount of collateral that was anticipated
at the time of originating the loan. This coulduleésn higher chargeffs which could have a material adverse effecbonoperating results ai
financial condition.

Changes in the overall credit quality of our portfo lio can have a significant impact on our earnings.

Like other lenders, we face the risk that our corgtis will not repay their loans. We reserve foséssin our loan portfolio based on our
assessment of inherent credit losses. This proegssh is critical to our financial results and dition, requires complex judgment including
our assessment of economic conditions, which dfiewt to predict. Through a periodic review oftfoan portfolio, management determines
the amount of the allowance for loan loss, or Abl,considering historical losses combined with gatie factors including general and
regional economic conditions, asset quality tretat policy and underwriting and changes in loancentrations and collateral values. The
amount of future losses is susceptible to changesdnomic, operating and other conditions, inclgdihanges in interest rates, which may be
beyond our control. We may underestimate our inftdosses and fail to hold an ALL sufficient to aaat for these losses. Incorrect
assumptions could lead to material underestimdtegerent losses and an inadequate ALL. As ouesssaent of inherent losses changes, we
may need to increase or decrease our ALL, whicltddoepact our financial results and profitability.

Our loan portfolio is concentrated in Western Penns ylvania, and our lack of geographic diversification increases our risk
profile.

The regional economic conditions in Western Pemvasyh affect the demand for our products and sesvis well as the ability of our
customers to repay their loans and the value ofttlateral securing these loans. We are lessthblea larger institution to spread the risks of
unfavorable local economic conditions across aglamgmber of diversified economies. A significantlde in the regional economy caused by
inflation, recession, unemployment or other factarsld negatively affect our customers, the qualftgur loan portfolio and the demand for
our products and services. Any sustained periddaséased payment delinquencies, foreclosuressselbcaused by adverse market or
economic conditions in our market area could adgrsffect the value of our assets, revenues, teesfibperations and financial condition.
Moreover, we cannot give any assurance we will fiefiem any market growth or favorable economiaditions in our primary market area.

Our loan portfolio has a significant concentration of commercial real estate loans.

The majority of our loans are to commercial borrosv&he commercial real estate, or CRE, segmeantiofoan portfolio is typically more
impacted by economic fluctuations. CRE lending ¢gfly involves higher loan principal amounts, ahd tepayment of these loans is generall
dependent, in large part, on sufficient income fitbim properties securing the loans to cover opegakpenses and debt service. Because
payments on loans secured by CRE often dependthpauccessful operation and management of theegrep, repayment of these loans r
be affected by factors outside the borrower’s ainincluding adverse conditions in the real estateket or the economy. Additionally, we
have a number of significant credit exposures taroercial borrowers, and while the majority of thbeserowers have numerous projects that
make up the total aggregate exposure, if one oermbthese borrowers default or have financialcliffies, we could experience higher credit
losses, which could adversely impact our financ@addition and results of operations.
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Risks Related to Our Operations
An interruption or security breach of our informati on systems may result in financial losses or in a | oss of customers.

We depend upon data processing, communicationrdadnation exchange on a variety of computing platfs and networks, including
the internet. We have experienced cyber securiigé@mts in the past, which we did not deem matesiad may experience them in the future.
We believe that we have implemented appropriatesarea to mitigate potential risks to our technolagy our operations from these
information technology disruptions. However, wematnbe certain that all of our systems are entifielg from vulnerability to attack, despite
safeguards we have instituted. The occurrenceyofalures, interruptions or security breaches wf information systems could disrupt our
continuity of operations or result in the disclasof sensitive, personal customer information witichld have a material adverse impact or
business, financial condition and results of openatthrough damage to our reputation, loss ofozust business, remedial costs, additional
regulatory scrutiny or exposure to civil litigatiamd possible financial liability. Losses arisimgrh such a breach could materially exceed the
amount of insurance coverage we have, which calléraely affect our results of operation.

We rely on third-party providers and other supplier s for a number of services that are important to ou r business. An
interruption or cessation of an important service b y any third party could have a material adverse eff  ect on our business.

We are dependent for the majority of our technolaggluding our core operating system, on thirctyparoviders. If these companies were
to discontinue providing services to us, we mayegignce significant disruption to our busines&ny of our third party service providers
experience financial, operational or technologditilculties, or if there is any other disruptiom dur relationships with them, we may be
required to locate alternative sources of suchicesy Certain of our products, our commercial bagliroducts, for example, may be used as
method of payment at third-party retailers. Wedapendent on these third-party retailers secuhiagy information systems, over which we
have no control, and a breach of their informatigstems could result in the disclosure of sensipreesonal customer information, which cc
have a material adverse impact on our businessghrdamage to our reputation, loss of customemlessi remedial costs, additional
regulatory scrutiny or exposure to civil litigatiamd possible financial liability. Assurance canbetprovided that we could negotiate terms
with alternative service sources that are as fdlerar could obtain services with similar functitityaas found in existing systems without the
need to expend substantial resources, if at @fethy resulting in a material adverse impact onbmginess and results of operations.

Risks Related to Interest Rates and Investments

Our net interest income could be negatively affecte  d by interest rate changes which may adversely affe  ct our financial
condition.

Our results of operations are largely dependemtetrinterest income, which is the difference betwie interest and fees earned on
interest-earning assets and the interest paidterest-bearing liabilities. There may be mismatdietsveen the maturity and repricing of our
assets and liabilities that could cause the netést rate spread to compress, depending on thkdrd type of changes in the interest rate
environment. Interest rates could remain at histdlow levels causing rate spread compression avextended period of time. Interest rates
are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyaur control, including general economic condii@md the policies of various governmenta
agencies. In addition, some of our customers dftere the ability to prepay
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loans or redeem deposits with either no penaltiepenalties that are insufficient to compensat®uthe lost income. A significant reduction
in our net interest income will adversely affect business and results of operations. If we ardlerta manage interest rate risk effectively,
our business, financial condition and results @ragions could be materially harmed.

Declines in the value of investment securities held by us could require write-downs, which would reduc € our earnings.

In order to diversify earnings and enhance ligyidite own both debt and equity instruments of goresnt agencies, municipalities and
other companies. We may be required to record impait charges on our investment securities if thefer a decline in value that is
considered other-than-temporary. Additionally, thadue of these investments may fluctuate depenalintihe interest rate environment, genera
economic conditions and circumstances specifibéagsuer. Volatile market conditions may detrinatintaffect the value of these securities,
such as through reduced valuations due to the pignoeof heightened credit or liquidity risks. Clyms in the value of these instruments may
result in a reduction to earnings and/or capitdélictv may adversely affect our results of operations

Risks Related to Regulatory Compliance and Legal Ma  tters

Recent legislation enacted in response to marketan  d economic conditions may significantly affect our operations,
financial condition and earnings.

The Dodd-Frank Act was enacted as a major reforrasponse to the financial crisis that began indeedecade. The Dodd-Frank Act
increases regulation and oversight of the finarséabices industry, and imposes restrictions oratiilty of institutions within the industry to
conduct business consistent with historical prastiincluding aspects such as capital requiremafiilgate transactions, compensation,
consumer protection regulations and mortgage réignlaamong others. It is not clear what impactBleeld-Frank Act and the numerous
implementing regulations will ultimately have oretfinancial markets or on the U.S. banking andrfai@ services industries and the broader
U.S. and global economies. They may increase atsa@d regulatory compliance and of doing busirsesotherwise affect our operations,
will likely result in additional costs and a diviens of managemerg’time from other business activities, any of wiitdly adversely impact o
results of operations, liquidity or financial cotidn. They also may significantly affect our busisestrategy, the markets in which we do
business, the markets for and value of our investsnend our ongoing operations, costs and profityabi

Our deposit insurance premiums may increase in the future, which could have a material adverse impact on our future
earnings and financial condition.

The FDIC insures deposits at FDIC-insured finanicigfitutions, including S&T Bank. The FDIC chargasured financial institutions
premiums to maintain the Depositors Insurance Fan®|F, at a specific level. The Bank’s FDIC inaoce premiums recently decreased afte
substantial increases beginning in 2009, but we pagysignificantly higher premiums in the futureed@nt economic conditions increased
failures, which decreased the DIF. The Dodd-FraokiAcreased the minimum target DIF ratio from lpEscent of estimated insured deposits
to 1.35 percent of estimated insured deposits.FIDIE€ must seek to achieve the 1.35 percent ratiSdgtember 30, 2020. Insured institutions
with assets of $10 billion or more are supposefnd the increase.

The FDIC has issued regulations to implement tipegeisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. It has, in adufiti established a higher reserve ratio
of 2 percent as a long-term goal beyond what isired by statute. There is no implementation deadior the 2 percent ratio. The FDIC may
increase the
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assessment rates or impose additional specialsaseats in the future to keep the DIF at or aboeesthtutory minimum target. Any increas
our FDIC premiums could have an adverse effecherBank’s profits and financial condition. ReferfSopervision and Regulation within Part
I, Item 1 of this Report for additional information

Future governmental regulation and legislation coul d limit our growth.

We are subject to extensive state and federal atignl supervision and legislation that govern lyeawvery aspect of our operations. The
regulations are primarily intended to protect dépes, customers and the banking system as a whoteshareholders. Failure to comply with
applicable regulations could lead to penaltiesdadage to our reputation. Furthermore, as shovautjtr the Dodd-Frank Act, the regulatory
environment is constantly undergoing change andhtipact of changes to laws, the rapid implementatibregulations, the interpretation of
such laws or regulations or other actions by exjstir new regulatory agencies could make regulatongpliance more difficult or expensive,
and thus could affect our ability to deliver or earp services, or it could diminish the value of business. The ramifications and uncertaintie:
of the recent increase in government interventiothe U.S. financial system could also adversdiycaius. Refer to Supervision and Regule
within Part I, Item 1 of this Report for additioriaformation.

Negative public opinion could damage our reputation and adversely impact our earnings and liquidity.

Reputational risk, or the risk to our businessnigs, liquidity and capital from negative publigimion, could result from our actual or
alleged conduct in a variety of areas, includirgpleand regulatory compliance, lending practicesparate governance, litigation, ethical iss
or inadequate protection of customer informatiore &ve dependent on third-party providers for a remalb services that are important to our
business. Refer to the risk factor titled, “We retythird-party providers and other suppliers fouaber of services that are important to our
business. An interruption or cessation of an imguurservice by any third party could have a matadaerse effect on our business” for
additional information. A failure by any of thedert-party service providers could cause a disupiin our operations, which could result in
negative public opinion about us or damage to eputation. We expend significant resources to cgmyith regulatory requirements, and the
failure to comply with such regulations could reésnlreputational harm or significant legal or rediz costs. Damage to our reputation could
adversely affect our ability to retain and attnaetv customers and adversely impact our earningsiGundity.

We may be a defendant from time to time in a variet v of litigation and other actions, which could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results of op erations.

From time to time, customers and others make clainastake legal action pertaining to the perforneasfcour responsibilities. Whether
customer claims and legal action related to théopmance of our responsibilities are founded oounfled, if such claims and legal actions
not resolved in a manner favorable to us, they reaylt in significant expenses, attention from nggamaent and financial liability. Any
financial liability or reputational damage couldvkaa material adverse effect on our business, wiridiurn, could have a material adverse
effect on our financial condition and results oémgtions.
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Risks Related to Our Business Strategy

Our strategy includes growth plans through organic growth, market expansion and acquisitions. Our fina ncial condition
and results of operations could be negatively affec ted if we fail to grow or fail to manage our growth effectively.

We intend to continue pursuing a growth stratedyictv may include organic growth, expansion or asitjons. We cannot give assurance
that we will be able to expand our existing magk&tsence, or successfully enter new markets orthasuch expansion will not adversely
affect our results of operations. Failure to managregrowth effectively could have a material adeceffect on our business, future prospects.
financial condition or results of operations andldeadversely affect our ability to successfullyplement our business strategy.

Our failure to find suitable acquisition candidatessuccessfully bid against other competitorsafmguisitions, could adversely affect our
ability to fully implement our business strategywk are successful in acquiring other entities,fihocess of integrating such entities will div
significant management time and resources. We roapenable to integrate efficiently or operate patly any entity we may acquire. We n
experience disruption and incur unexpected expansategrating acquisitions. These failures coadiyersely impact our future prospects and
results of operation.

We are subject to competition from both banks and n on-banking companies.

The financial services industry is highly compg#tiand we encounter strong competition for deppkiins and other financial services in
our market area. Our principal competitors incladenmercial banks of all types, finance companiesgjit unions, mortgage brokers, insura
agencies, trust companies and various sellersvebtiments and investment advice. Many of our naotklzampetitors are not subject to the
same degree of regulation that we are and haventay@s over us in providing certain services. Addilly, many of our competitors are
significantly larger than we are and have greateess to capital and other resources. Failureripete effectively for deposit, loan and other
financial service customers in our markets couldseaus to lose market share, slow our growth radehave an adverse effect on our financial
condition and results of operations.

We may be required to raise capital in the future, but that capital may not be available or may not be on acceptable terms
when it is needed.

We are required by federal regulatory authoritiemintain adequate capital levels to support dipers Our ability to raise additional
capital is dependent on capital market conditidrtbat time and on our financial performance antiooli. New regulations to implement Ba
[Il and the Dodd-Frank Act require us to have mgapital. While we believe we currently have suffiti capital, if we cannot raise additional
capital when needed, we may not be able to mese ttegjuirements, and our ability to further expandoperations through organic growth,
market expansion and acquisitions may be advesstdgted.

Risks Related to Liquidity

We rely on a stable core deposit base as our primar y source of liquidity.

We are dependent for our funding on a stable bisere deposits. Our ability to maintain a stateecdeposit base is a function of our
financial performance, our reputation and the dgcprovided by FDIC insurance, which combined,ggi\customers confidence in us. If an
these items are damaged or come into questiorstabdity of our core deposits could be harmed.
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Item 1A. RISK FACTORS — continued

Our ability to meet contingency funding needs, in t he event of a crisis that causes a disruption to ou r core deposit base, is
dependent on access to wholesale markets, including funds provided by the FHLB of Pittsburgh.

We own stock in the Federal Home Loan Bank, or FHhBrder to qualify for membership in the FHLBstym, which enables us to
borrow on our line of credit with the FHLB thatdecured by a blanket lien on a significant portbéour loan portfolio. Changes or disruptions
to the FHLB or the FHLB system in general may matlgrimpact our ability to meet short and longrteliquidity needs or meet growth plans.
Additionally, we cannot be assured that the FHLB lag able to provide funding to us when needed,cam we be certain that the FHLB will
provide funds specifically to us, should our finehcondition and/or our regulators prevent acdéessur line of credit. The inability to access
this source of funds could have a materially adveffect on our ability to meet our custonsemeeds. Our financial flexibility could be sevg
constrained if we were unable to maintain our aetesunding or if adequate financing is not aVaisat acceptable interest rates.

Risks Related to Our Owning Our Stock

Our outstanding warrant may be dilutive to holders of our common stock.

The ownership interest of the existing holderswf@mmon stock may be diluted to the extent otstanding warrant is exercised. The
warrant will remain outstanding until 2019. The rfsaof common stock underlying the warrant repreapproximately 1.71 percent of the
shares of our common stock outstanding as of Jar8iar2014 (including the shares issuable uponoiseof the warrant in total shares
outstanding). The warrant holder has the rightai@\any of the shares of common stock it receipesmexercise of the warrant.

Our ability to pay dividends on our common stock ma y be limited.

Holders of our common stock will be entitled toe®e only such dividends as our Board of Directoey declare out of funds legally
available for such payments. Although we have hisatly declared cash dividends on our common staekare not required to do so and our
Board of Directors could reduce, suspend or eliteimaur dividend at any time. Any decrease or elation to the dividends on our common
stock could adversely affect the market price af@mmmon stock.

Item 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

There are no unresolved SEC staff comments.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

We own a four-story building in Indiana, Pennsyhaatocated at 800 Philadelphia Street, which seagour headquarters and executive
and administrative offices. Our Community Bankimgurance and Wealth Management segments areoalsted at our headquarters. In
addition, we own a two-story building in Indianarsylvania that serves as additional adminiseaiffices. We lease a building in Indiana,
Pennsylvania that houses both our data processih¢eahnology center as well as one of our brandbesimunity Banking has 58 locations,
including 55 branches located in eleven counti€®annsylvania, of which 40 are owned and 15 aelbancluding the aforementioned
building that shares space with our data centeg.dther three Community Banking locations inclusle separate drive up facilities and one
leased loan production office in Akron, Ohio. Imdary 2014, we signed a lease for a loan produdiifice in Columbus, Ohio. We lease two
offices to our Insurance segment, one in IndiananBg Pennsylvania and one in Cambria County, Bdwaisia. The Insurance segment lease
one additional office, and has staff located

20



Table of Contents

Item 2. PROPERTIES — continued

within the Community Banking offices in Jeffers@iair and Washington counties. Wealth Managemeagds two offices, one in Allegheny
County, Pennsylvania and one in Westmoreland Cotrggnsylvania. Wealth Management also has sestaf@located within the Commun
Banking offices to provide their services to ounilecustomers. Our operating leases and the gpitatéease for Community Banking, Wealth
Management and Insurance expire at various datesgh the year 2054 and generally include optiorenew. For additional information
regarding the lease commitments, refer to Palteliy 8, Note 10 Premises and Equipment in the Niot€onsolidated Financial Statements.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The nature of our business generates a certainrgroblitigation which arises in the ordinary coarsf business. However, in
management’s opinion, there are no proceedingsipgitht we are a party to or our property is scibje that would be material in relation to
our financial condition or results of operationsalddition, no material proceedings are pendinganeiknown to be threatened or contemplate
against us by governmental authorities or othetigsar

Item 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

21



Table of Contents

PART Il

Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stock Prices and Dividend Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobaleéseMarket System or NASDAQ under the symbol STBAe range of sale prices
for the years 2013 and 2012 is detailed in thesthBlow and is based upon information obtained fRSDAQ. As of the close of business
January 31, 2014, we had 3,095 shareholders ofdebividends paid by S&T are primarily providedfn S&T Banks dividends to S&T. Th
payment of dividends by S&T Bank to S&T is subjecthe restrictions described in Part II, Item &t&6 Dividend and Loan Restrictions of

this Report. The cash dividends declared per slr@shown below.

Price Range of Cash

Common Stock Dividends
2013 Low High Declared
Fourth quarte $23.1¢ $26.41 $ 0.1€
Third quartel 19.7¢ 24.9¢ 0.1t
Second quarte 17.1¢ 19.9¢ 0.1t
First quarte! 17.2¢ 18.9¢ 0.1t
2012
Fourth quarte $16.3: $18.5( $ 0.1t
Third quartel 15.6¢ 19.4( 0.1t
Second quarte 16.41 21.9¢ 0.1t
First quartel 19.6¢ 23.3¢ 0.1t

Certain information relating to securities authedZor issuance under equity compensation plasstiforth under the heading Equity
Compensation Plan Information Update in Part tdm 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficialr@ns and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters.
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Item 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED SHAREHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES — continued

Five-Year Cumulative Total Return
The following chart compares the cumulative totareholder return on our common stock with the dative total shareholder return of
the NASDAQ Composite Inde% and NASDAQ Bank Ind®x sswaning a $100 investment in each on December(®B. 2

Total Return Performance
$350
$300
$250
o
g $200
Fd
4 ] & =z
E $150 - ——
— _-_-__ﬂ-—l
$50
$0
2008 2009 2010 2011 22 2013
s S&T Bancorp, Inc. MNASDAQ Composite — = NASDAQ Bank
Period Ending
Index 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/11 12/31/12 12/31/13
S&T Bancorp, Inc $100.0( $ 49.7¢ $ 68.0¢ $ 60.6¢ $ 57.9¢ $ 83.5(
NASDAQ Composite 100.0( 145.3¢ 171.7¢ 170.3¢ 200.6: 281.2:
NASDAQ Bank 100.0( 83.7( 95.5¢ 85.5:2 101.5( 143.8¢

O The NASDAQ Composite Index measures all NASDAQdtioraed international based common type stocksdisn the Nasdaq Stock Mark
@ The NASDAQ Bank Index contains securities of NASD#€ companies classified according to the Indu€lassification Benchmark as Banks. These comganclude banks

providing a broad range of financial services, imting retail banking, loans and money transmissi
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The tables below summarize selected consolidateadial data as of the dates or for the periodsamted and should be read in
conjunction with Management’s Discussion and Anialp$ Financial Condition and Results of OperationPart I, Item 7 and the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Supplemebtaty in Part 1l, Item 8 of this Report.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Total asset $4,533,19 $4,526,70;. $4,119,99: $4,114,33' $4,170,47!
Securities availab-for-sale, at fair valur 509,42! 452,26t 356,37 286,88 353,72:
Loans held for sal 2,13¢ 22,49¢ 2,85( 8,331 6,07:
Portfolio loans, net of unearned incol 3,566,19! 3,346,62; 3,129,75! 3,355,59i 3,398,33:
Goodwill 175,82( 175,73 165,27 165,27 165,16°
Total deposit: 3,672,30: 3,638,422 3,335,85! 3,317,52. 3,304,54.
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 33,84 62,58: 30,37( 40,65: 44,93t
Shor-term borrowings 140,00( 75,00( 75,00( — 51,30(
Long-term borrowings 21,81( 34,10: 31,87 29,36¢ 85,89
Junior subordinated debt securit 45,61¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢
Preferred stock, series — — — 106,13 105,37(
Total shareholde’ equity 571,30¢ 537,42. 490,52t 578,66! 553,31
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME
Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Interest incomt $153,75¢ $156,25: $165,07¢ $180,41¢ $195,08
Interest expens 14,56: 21,02 27,73 34,57: 49,10t
Provision for loan losse 8,311 22,81t 15,60¢ 29,51’ 72,35¢
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 130,88: 112,41: 121,73 116,33! 73,62¢
Noninterest incom 51,52 51,91: 44,05 47,21( 38,58(
Noninterest expens 117,39. 122,86: 103,90¢ 105,63: 108,12¢
Net Income Before Taxes 65,017 41,46. 61,88¢ 57,91: 4,08z
Provision (benefit) for income tax 14,47¢ 7,261 14,62: 14,43: (3,869
Net Income 50,53¢ 34,20( 47,26¢ 43,48( 7,951
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize — — 7,611 6,201 5,91:
Net Income Available to Common Shareholder $ 50,53¢ $ 34,20( $ 39,65¢ $ 37,27¢ $ 2,03¢
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA — continued

SELECTED PER SHARE DATA AND RATIOS

Refer to page 65 Explanation of Use of Non-GAAPaRicial Measures for a discussion of common retarawerage tangible assets,
common return on average tangible common equitytix@datio of tangible common equity to tangibleais as noGAAP financial measure

December 31,

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Per Share Data
Earnings per common sh—basic $ 1.7C $ 1.1¢ $ 1.41 $ 1.34 $ 0.07
Earnings per common sh—diluted 1.7C 1.1¢ 1.41 1.34 0.07
Dividends declared per common sh 0.61 0.6C 0.6C 0.6C 0.61
Dividend payout ratic 35.8%% 50.75% 42.40% 44.7%% —
Common book valu 19.21 18.0¢ 17.4¢ 16.91 16.1¢
Profitability Ratios
Common return on average ass 1.12% 0.7% 0.97% 0.9(% 0.05%
Common return on average tangible as 1.17% 0.8%% 1.02% 0.94% 0.05%
Common return on average eqt 9.21% 6.62% 6.7&% 6.5&% 0.37%
Common return on average tangible common ec 13.72% 10.0%% 12.62% 12.9¢% 0.7€%
Capital Ratios
Common equity/asse 12.6(% 11.8"% 11.91% 11.4¢% 10.7%%
Tangible common equity / tangible ass 9.0(% 8.2(% 8.0%% 7.61% 6.84%
Tier 1 leverage rati 9.75% 9.31% 9.17% 11.0%% 10.2€%
Risk-based capit—Tier 1 12.3% 11.98% 11.6%% 13.28% 12.1(%
Risk-based capit—total 14.3¢% 15.3%% 15.2(% 16.6&% 15.4%
Asset Quality Ratios
Nonaccrual loans/loar 0.6%% 1.63% 1.7% 1.9(% 2.67%
Nonperforming assets/loans plus OR 0.64% 1.6€% 1.92% 2.07% 2.8(%
Allowance for loan losses/loa 1.3(% 1.38% 1.56% 1.5%% 1.7%%
Allowance for loan losses/nonperforming lo: 206% 85% 87% 80% 66%
Net loan charc-offs/average loan 0.25% 0.7&% 0.5€% 1.11% 1.6(%
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA — continued

RECONCILIATIONS OF GAAP TO NON-GAAP RATIOS

December 31 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
(dollars in thousands)
Common return on average tangible asse!

(non-GAAP)
Net income $ 50,53¢ $  34,20( $ 39,65 $ 37,27¢ $ 2,03¢
Total average assets (GAAP Ba: 4,505,79: 4,312,533 4,072,60 4,123,45! 4,259,28!
Less: average goodwill and average other

intangible asset (180,339 (177,51) (171,839 (173,659 (174,83)
Tangible average assets (non-GAAP) $4,325,45. $4,135,02 $3,900,76! $3,949,79! $4,084,45!
Common return on average tangible asse!

(non-GAAP) 1.17% 0.83% 1.02% 0.94% 0.05%
Common return on average tangible commol

equity (non-GAAP)
Net income $ 50,53¢ $  34,20( $ 39,65 $ 37,27¢ $ 2,03¢
Total average sharehold’ equity (GAAP Basis 548,77 516,81: 585,18t 566,67( 544,53!
Less: average goodwill, average other intangible

assets, and average preferred ec (180,339 (177,51) (271,05 (279,410 (275,56
Tangible average common equity (nc-GAAP) $ 368,43 $ 339,30: $ 314,13 $ 287,26( $ 268,97
Common return on average tangible commol

equity (non-GAAP) 13.72% 10.07% 12.62% 12.9¢% 0.76%
Tangible common equity/tangible assets (n¢-

GAAP)
Total shareholders' equity (GAAP bas $ 571,30t $ 537,42. $ 490,52t $ 578,66 $ 553,31
Less: goodwill and other intangible assets an

preferred equit (179,579 (181,08 (171,00) (278,87 (279,945
Tangible common equity (nol-GAAP) $ 391,72 $ 356,33 $ 319,52 $ 299,79: $ 273,37:
Total assets (GAAP basi 4,533,191 4,526,70: 4,119,99 4,114,33! 4,170,47!
Less: goodwill and other intangible assets an

preferred equit (179,579 (181,08 (171,00) (172,739 (174,575
Tangible assets (no-GAAP) $4,353,61. $4,345,61! $3,948,99: $3,941,60. $3,995,90!
Tangible common equity/tangible assets (n¢-

GAAP) 9.0(% 8.2(% 8.09% 7.61% 6.84%
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

This section reviews our financial condition fockaf the past two years and results of operafioneach of the past three years. Certain
reclassifications have been made to prior periogdace them on a basis comparable with the cupembd presentation. Some tables may
include additional time periods to illustrate trendithin our financial statements. The results pémtions reported in the accompanying
Consolidated Financial Statements are not necéssgaticative of results to be expected in futuegipds.

Important Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains or incogtes statements that we believe are “forward-logkstatements” within the meaning
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform ActX#95. These statements generally relate to oundiahcondition, results of operations, plans,
objectives, future performance or business. Themlliscan be identified by the use of forward-laukianguage such as “will likely result,”
“may,” “are expected to,” “is anticipated,” “estineg’ “forecast,” “projected,” “intends to” or otheimilar words. You should not place undue
reliance on these statements, as they are subjasks and uncertainties, including but not lirdite, those identified under Risk Factors in
I, Item 1A of this Report, the documents incorpedaby reference or other important factors disdadeehis Report and from time to time in
our other filings with the Securities and Exchaf@genmission, or SEC. When considering these fonieolling statements, you should keep
in mind these risks and uncertainties, as wellngscautionary statements we may make. Moreover shawld treat these statements as
speaking only as of the date they are made andilmy on information actually known to us at tliate. We undertake no obligation to
update publicly any forward-looking statements, thike as a result of new information, future evemtstherwise.

These forward-looking statements are based onmugsgectations, estimates and projections abaubwsiness and beliefs and
assumptions made by management. These Future §aasatefined below, are not guarantees of ourdygarformance and involve certain
risks, uncertainties and assumptions, which afedif to predict. Therefore, actual outcomes aeslitts may differ materially from what is
expressed or forecasted in these forward-lookiatgstents.

Future Factors include:

» credit losses;
e cyber-security concerns, including an interruptoribreach in the security of our information system
« rapid technological developments and changes;

e changes in interest rates, spreads on interesingasasets and interest-bearing liabilities, thepshof the yield curve and interest rate
sensitivity;

e aprolonged period of low interest rates;

e arapid increase in interest rates;

e regulatory supervision and oversight, includingd@as required capital levels, and public policganges, including environmental
regulations

« legislation affecting the financial services indysis a whole, and/or S&T or S&T Bank, in particylacluding the effects of the
Dodc-Frank Act;

« the outcome of pending and future litigation angdegamental proceedings;

e increasing price and product/service competitinoluding new entrants;

< the ability to continue to introduce competitivernngroducts and services on a timely, cost-effedbasis;
e managing our internal growth and acquisitions;

e containing costs and expenses;

< reliance on significant customer relationships;
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

« the possibility that the anticipated benefits fraoguisitions cannot be fully realized in a timelgmmer or at all, or that integrating
future acquired operations will be more difficuisruptive or costly than anticipate

» general economic or business conditions, eitheomalty or regionally in Western Pennsylvania amd other market areas, may be
less favorable than expected, resulting in amohgrahings, a reduced demand for credit and o#m®ices;

« deterioration of the housing market and reducedadehfor mortgages;

< adeterioration in the overall macroeconomic caodg or the state of the banking industry may warfarther analysis of the carrying
value of goodwill and could result in an adjustmienits carrying value resulting in a r-cash charge to net income; ¢

- areemergence of turbulence in significant portiohthe global financial and real estate marketdatémpact our performance, both
directly, by affecting our revenues and the valliew assets and liabilities and indirectly, byeating the economy generally; a

* access to capital in the amounts, at the timesarttie terms required to support our future busiees

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our financial statements are prepared in accordaitbel.S. generally accepted accounting principtesGAAP. Application of these
principles requires management to make estimasssngptions and judgments that affect the amouptzted in the Consolidated Financial
Statements and accompanying notes. These estiragesnptions and judgments are based on informatiaifable as of the date of the
Consolidated Financial Statements; accordinglyhisinformation changes, the Consolidated Findr&tiatements could reflect different
estimates, assumptions and judgments. Certainigolicherently are based to a greater extent amatsts, assumptions and judgments of
management and, as such, have a greater possihifitpducing results that could be materially eliéint than originally reported.

Our most significant accounting policies are présgmn Part Il, Item 8, Note 1 Summary of Significdccounting Policies in this Report.
These policies, along with the disclosures preskiméhe Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememts/ide information on how significant
assets and liabilities are valued in the Consdidid&inancial Statements and how those values #eentieed.

We view critical accounting policies to be thosdakhare highly dependent on subjective or comphireates, assumptions and judgm
and where changes in those estimates and assusiptald have a significant impact on the Consodiddinancial Statements. We currently
view the determination of the allowance for loasskes, or ALL, income taxes, securities valuatioth@oodwill and other intangible assets t
critical accounting policies. During 2013, we diot significantly change the manner in which we &apbur critical accounting policies or
developed related assumptions or estimates. Wereai@ved these related critical accounting esémaind related disclosures with the Audit
Committee.

Allowance for Loan Losses

Our loan portfolio is our largest category of ass®t our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We haverasbsa systematic ALL methodology
which is used to determine our provision for loasskes and ALL on a quarterly basis. The ALL repressmanagement’s estimate of probable
losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the batasiteet date and is presented as a reserve dgaimsin the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Th
ALL is increased by a provision charged to expearsreduced by charge-offs, net of recoveries. etation of an adequate ALL is
inherently subjective, as it requires estimatiohthe occurrence of future events. The ALL may bljsct to significant changes from perioc
period.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

The methodology for determining the ALL has two medmponents: evaluation and impairment testsdifidual loans and evaluation
and impairment tests of certain groups of homogesdémans with similar risk characteristics.

We individually evaluate all substandard and nonsdccommercial loans greater than $0.5 millionifopairment. A loan is impaired
when, based on current information and events,ptobable that we will be unable to collect alloamts due according to the contractual term
of the loan agreement. For all troubled debt restinings, or TDRs, regardless of size, as wellllastlaer impaired loans, we conduct further
analysis to determine the probable loss and assgpecific reserve to the loan if deemed appraarpecific reserves are established based
upon the following three impairment methods: 1) phesent value of expected future cash flows distamliat the loan’s effective interest rate,
2) the loan’s observable market price or 3) theregted fair value of the collateral if the loarcidlateral dependent. These analyses involve a
high degree of judgment in estimating the amounbdsg associated with specific impaired loansuditlg estimating the amount and timing of
future cash flows, the current estimated fair valfithe loan and collateral values. Our impairmergluations consist primarily of the fair va
of collateral method because most of our loansaliateral dependent. We obtain appraisals on ireddoans greater than $0.5 million
annually.

The ALL methodology for groups of homogeneous lo&nswn as the general reserve or reserve for loalfectively evaluated for
impairment, is comprised of both a quantitative godlitative analysis. We first apply historicas$orates to pools of loans with similar risk
characteristics. Loss rates are calculated usstgifiital chargeffs that have occurred within each pool of loamsrdhe loss emergence peri
or LEP. The LEP is an estimate of the average atmfuime from the point at which a loss is incut@n a loan to the point at which the los
confirmed. In general, the LEP will be shorter mexonomic slowdown or recession and longer duiimgs of economic stability or growth,
customers are better able to delay loss confirmatfter a potential loss event has occurred.

Due to the recent improvement in economic condétiave completed an internal study utilizing ouml@harge-off history to recalibrate
the LEPs of the commercial portfolio segments. @Gtest with the improved economic conditions, tHePis have lengthened, and as a result,
we lengthened our LEP assumption for each of tinencercial portfolio segments. We estimate the LEPeadhree and a half years for
commercial real estate, or CRE, two and a halfs/&arcommercial and industrial, or C&I, and tway® for commercial construction. This is
an increase from the prior LEPs of two years folEGRd one year for C&l and commercial constructitie. believe that the LEPs for the
consumer portfolio segments have also lengthendtegsare influenced by the same improvement imeroc conditions that impacted the
commercial portfolio segments. We therefore alsgtlieened the LEP assumption for the consumer piortioone and a half years. This is an
increase from prior LEPs of one year for the cormuportfolio segment. The look-back period représéme historical data period utilized in
the ALL to calculate the estimated loss rates. & aitwo to five year look-back period to calcutae historic loss rates depending on the
portfolio segment. After consideration of the lesdculations, management applies additional quaiéadjustments so that the ALL is
reflective of the inherent losses that exist inlten portfolio at the balance sheet date. Qualgaidjustments are made based upon changes
economic conditions, loan portfolio and asset dualata and credit process changes, such as pdites or underwriting standards. The
evaluation of the various components of the ALLuiegs considerable judgment in order to estimaterient loss exposures.

The LEP changes made to the ALL assumptions wepkegiprospectively and did not result in a malezfeange to the total ALL.
Lengthening the LEP does increase the historical tates and therefore the quantitative comporfehedALL. We believe this makes the
guantitative component of the ALL more reflectiidrtherent losses that exist within the loan pditfowvhich resulted in a decrease in the
qualitative component of the ALL. The changes ®ItEPs also improved our insight into the inheréesk of the individual commercial
portfolio segments. As the economic conditions

29



Table of Contents

Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

have improved, our data indicates that the CRE safjimas less inherent loss and that the C&I segomtitins greater inherent loss. The ALL
at December 31, 2013 reflects these changes wvilieiCRE and C&l portfolio segments.

At December 31, 2013, approximately 84 percenhefALL related to the commercial loan portfolio.r@mercial loans represent 73
percent of total portfolio loans. Commercial lodwase been more impacted by the economic slowdowiiinmarkets. The ability of custom
to repay commercial loans is more dependent up@subcess of their businesses, continuing incordegyaneral economic conditions. The 1
of loss is higher on such loans compared to consloaas, which have incurred lower losses in ourkeia

Our ALL Committee meets quarterly to verify the mleadequacy of the ALL. Additionally, on an anhbasis, the ALL Committee mei
to validate certain aspects of our ALL model. TWadidation includes reviewing the pools of loan®tsure the segmentation results in relevai
homogeneous pools of loans. The ALL Committee resithe LEP and look-back periods used to calculatdoss rates. Further, the ALL
Committee reviews the qualitative factors for reedmeness. As a result of this ongoing monitorimacpss, we may make changes to our ALL
methodology to be responsive to the economic ennent.

Although we believe our process for determiningAhé adequately considers all of the factors thatnd likely result in credit losses, the
process includes subjective elements and may loegtiisle to significant change. To the extent ddgses are higher than management
estimates, additional provisions for loan lossadabe required and could adversely affect ouriagsnor financial position in future periods.

Income Taxes

We estimate income tax expense based on amourgstexpto be owed to the tax jurisdictions wherecaeduct business. The laws are
complex and subject to different interpretationsubyand various taxing authorities. On a quartealsis, we assess the reasonableness of our
effective tax rate based upon our current estirmfitke amount and components of pre-tax incomegtedits and the applicable statutory tax
rates expected for the full year.

We determine deferred income tax assets and hiabilising the asset and liability method, and epeort them in other assets or other
liabilities, as appropriate, in the ConsolidatedaBae Sheets. Under this method, the net defeareddset or liability is based on the tax effect:
of the differences between the book and tax balsassets and liabilities and recognizes enactedgd®in tax rate and laws. When deferret
assets are recognized, they are subject to a i@iugEtowance based on management’s judgmentabéther realization is more likely than
not.

Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amoentodiaxing jurisdictions and are reported in othesets or other liabilities, as
appropriate, in the Consolidated Balance SheetseVdkiate and assess the relative risks and apat®pex treatment of transactions and fi
positions after considering statutes, regulatiprdicial precedent and other information and mamtax accruals consistent with the evalua
of these relative risks and merits. Changes t@ghienate of accrued taxes occur periodically dughimges in tax rates, interpretations of tax
laws, the status of examinations being conductedxing authorities and changes to statutory, jatland regulatory guidance. These chan
when they occur, can affect deferred taxes andiaddiaxes, as well as the current period’s incarexpense and can be significant to our
operating results.

Tax positions are recognized as a benefit onlyif Tmore likely than not” that the tax positiorould be sustained in a tax examination,
with a tax examination being presumed to occur. ieunt recognized is the largest amount of taetiethhat is greater than 50 percent lik
of being realized on examination. For tax positinosmeeting the “more likely than not” test, n& beenefit is recorded.
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Securities Valuation

We determine the appropriate classification of g&es at the time of purchase. All securities liriing both debt and equity securities, are
classified as available-for-sale. These securitiescarried at fair value with net unrealized gaind losses deemed to be temporary and are
reported separately as a component of other corapséfre income (loss), net of tax. Realized gainklasses on the sale of available-for-sale
securities and other-than-temporary impairmen©®or|, charges are recorded within noninterest ineamthe Consolidated Statements of Ne
Income. Realized gains and losses on the salecafises are determined using the specific-idecdiion method.

We perform a quarterly review of our securitiesdientify those that may indicate an OTTI. Our pplior OTTI within the marketable
equity securities portfolio generally requires anpairment charge when the security is in a los#ipador 12 consecutive months, unless fact:
and circumstances would suggest the need for anl @ar to that time. Our policy for OTTI within ¢hdebt securities portfolio is based upon
a number of factors, including but not limited tioe length of time and extent to which the estimiditér value has been less than cost, the
financial condition of the underlying issuer, th#lidy of the issuer to meet contractual obligaspthe best estimate of the impairment charge
representing credit losses, the likelihood of theusity’s ability to recover any decline in itsiesated fair value and whether we intend to sell
the investment security or if it is more likely thaot that we will be required to sell the secupitior to the security’s recovery. If the
impairment is considered other-than-temporary baseahanagement’s review, the impairment must barséed into credit and non-credit
portions. The credit component is recognized inGbasolidated Statements of Net Income and thecnedit component is recognized in other
comprehensive income (loss), net of applicablegabfe¢he financial markets experience deteriorgtitharges to income could occur in future
periods.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

As a result of acquisitions, we have recorded galbdwd identifiable intangible assets in our Cdidated Balance Sheets. Goodwill
represents the excess of the purchase price owéaithvalue of net assets acquired. We accourttdsiness combinations using the acquisitior
method of accounting.

Gooduwill relates to value inherent in the Commudgnking and Insurance reporting units and thateségd dependent upon our ability to
provide quality, cost-effective services in thedfaxd competition from other market participantsisTability relies upon continuing investments
in processing systems, the development of valuedddrvice features and the ease of use of oucesnAs such, goodwill value is supported
ultimately by profitability that is driven by theolume of business transacted. A decline in earnaisgs result of a lack of growth or the inab
to deliver cost-effective services over sustainedaals can lead to impairment of goodwill, whichulwbadversely impact our earnings in future
periods.

We have three reporting units: Community Bankimgurance and Wealth Management. The carrying \aflgeodwill is tested annually
for impairment each October 1 or more frequently i§ determined that a triggering event has ommirWe first assess qualitatively whether it
is more likely than not that the fair value of @wging unit is less than its carrying amount. Qualitative assessment considers such factors
macroeconomic conditions, market conditions spealify related to the banking industry, our ovefiméncial performance and various other
factors. If we determine that it is more likely thaot that the fair value is less than the carrgngpunt, we proceed to test for impairment. The
evaluation for impairment involves comparing therent estimated fair value of each reporting umits carrying value, including goodwill. If
the current estimated fair value of a reporting erRceeds its carrying value, no additional testingequired and an impairment loss is not
recorded. If the estimated fair value of a repgrtimit is less than the
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carrying value, further valuation procedures anégomed that could result in impairment of goodvbi#fing recorded. Further valuation
procedures would include allocating the estimagddvialue to all assets and liabilities of the mejpg unit to determine an implied goodwiill
value. If the implied value of goodwill of a repiag unit is less than the carrying amount of thatdwill, an impairment loss is recognized in
an amount equal to that excess. We completed theahgoodwill impairment assessment as requiréDit8, 2012 and 2011, the results
indicated that the fair value of each reporting esiceeded the carrying value.

Based upon our qualitative assessment performeaufoannual impairment analysis, we concludedittiatmore likely than not that the
fair value of the reporting units exceeds the dagyalue. Both the national economy and the I0¢abktern Pennsylvania economy where our
business is concentrated improved over the past @emeral economic activity and key indicatorshsas housing and unemployment also
showed improvement. While still challenging, thekiag environment also improved with fewer bankuias, better asset quality, improved
earnings and generally better stock prices. Agtivitmergers and acquisitions demonstrated thaé tisgpremium value of banking franchises
and a number of banks of our size have been alalecess the capital markets over the past yearstock price has increased, and our stock
has generally traded above book value throughol®.2@dditionally, our overall performance has imyed, and we have not identified any
other facts or circumstances that would cause gsriolude that it is more likely than not that tai value of each of the reporting units would
be less than the carrying value of the reportiniy un

We determine the amount of identifiable intangidsets based upon independent core deposit andngswcontract valuations at the time
of acquisition. Intangible assets with finite uddiwes, consisting primarily of core deposit angstomer list intangibles, are amortized using
straight-line or accelerated methods over theimedged weighted average useful lives, ranging fidhto 16 years. Intangible assets with finite
useful lives are evaluated for impairment when@wents or changes in circumstances indicate tieat¢tarrying amount may not be
recoverable. No such events or changes in circutostaoccurred during the years ended Decembel033B, 2012 and 2011.

The financial services industry and securities raerkan be adversely affected by declining valfiezonomic conditions result in a
prolonged period of economic weakness in the futome business segments, including the CommunihkBa segment, may be adversely
affected. In the event that we determine that eitive goodwill or finite lived intangible asseteampaired, recognition of an impairment
charge could have a significant adverse impactusrfinancial position or results of operationstie period in which the impairment occurs.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements and Developments

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policiagle Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statesyevttich is included in Part Il
Item 8 of this Report, discusses new accounting@uocements that we adopted and the expected irapactounting pronouncements
recently issued or proposed, but not yet requiodaetadopted.

Executive Overview

We are a bank holding company headquartered imagiPennsylvania with assets of $4.5 billion atdbeber 31, 2013. We provide a full
range of financial services through offices in EhRsylvania counties with retail and commercialkirag products, cash management service:s
insurance and traditional trust and discount bragerservices. We also have two loan productiocesfior LPOs, in Ohio, with our most
recent LPO established in Central Ohio on Januarp@14. Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ @&l&ezlect Market under the sym|
“STBA.”
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We earn revenue primarily from interest on loans securities and fees charged for financial sesvirevided to our customers. Offsett
these revenues are the cost of deposits and athéinfy sources, provision for loan losses and atberating costs such as salaries and
employee benefits, data processing, occupancyaanexpense.

Our mission is to become the financial servicevigier of choice within the markets that we serves $ttive to do this by delivering
exceptional service and value, one customer ame. Our strategic plan focuses on growth througiawmic growth, expansion and acquisition.
Our strategic plan includes a collaborative mobat tombines expertise from all of our businessngegs and focuses on satisfying each
customer’s individual financial objectives.

Our financial performance improved significantlyd@13 compared to the prior year. Full year 2018iags increased $16.3 million, or
percent, to $50.5 million compared to $34.2 millfon2012. This marked increase in earnings issalt@f our ability to execute on our key
strategic initiatives of loan growth, improving esguality and expense control and improved ecoa@mnditions in our markets.

Loan growth was strong throughout 2013 with portfébans increasing $219.6 million, or 6.6 percenmpared to December 31, 2012.
This growth was primarily in our CRE, C&l, and mantial mortgage loan portfolios. Our Northeastd@HPO has performed well since its
opening, adding approximately $95.0 million of coermal loans in 2013. Further driving loan growtasithe expansion of our sales team
the addition of commercial lenders in various meslteroughout 2013.

Asset quality improved significantly throughout 30sulting in a $14.5 million, or 64 percent, deelin the provision for loan losses
from the prior year. Net charge-offs decreased&fllion, or 66 percent, from the prior year. Tlatanperforming loans decreased 59 percer
to $22.5 million, or 0.63 percent of total loan®eacember 31, 2013, from $55.0 million, or 1.63ceet of total loans at December 31, 2012.
Special mention and substandard commercial lo@wsddcreased $146.0 million, or 47 percent, to ®L68llion from $309 million at
December 31, 2012. This significant improvemerdseet quality was due to the continued improveroktite economic conditions in our
markets and a strategic focus on actively managivgbringing to resolution our problem loans.

We benefited from various expense control initiashand operational efficiencies implemented throug013, including our branch
consolidation efforts with the closure of two braes and two drive-up facilities, our branch capinitative which improved operating
efficiencies around check processing and the dadeiromerchant card servicing business which altbwe to maintain referral revenue while
eliminating much of the associated cost with rugrthmis business.

We sold our merchant card servicing business duhadirst quarter of 2013 resulting in a $3.1 maill gain. While this was a successful
business, we determined that it would be diffitcalcompete in this business in the future due tienige competition and technological
advances. We entered into a marketing and salaa@d agreement with the purchaser for an iniéiahtof ten years. Future revenue is
dependent on the number of referrals, number of mewchant accounts and volume of activity. We @& able to offer a more robust suite of
merchant related services through our partner whdetaining relationships with our customers.

Our Total risk-based capital ratio decreased byHda¥3s points to 14.36 percent at December 31, #048815.39 percent at December 31,
2012, due primarily to the repayment of subordidatebt. During 2013, we repaid $45.0 million of eudinated debt due to its diminishing
regulatory capital benefit and the future posiiim@act on net interest income. Our other capitbsamproved and all remain significantly
above the “well capitalized” thresholds of feddyahk regulatory agencies, with a leverage rati®. 85 percent and a Tier 1 risk-based capital
ratio of 12.37 percent at December 31, 2013.
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Our focus throughout 2014 will be on loan growtld @mplementing opportunities to increase fee incovhde maintaining a strong
expense discipline. The low interest rate envirammméll continue to challenge our net interest i@ but our focus on an organic growth
strategy will help to mitigate the impact in 20¥e plan to evaluate new markets and strive tocafdithe success of our LPO in Northeast
Ohio in our recently established LPO in Central®@ur focus is also on maintaining and attractisg sales personnel to execute on our
and fee growth strategies. Our capital positionai@sstrong and we are well positioned to take athge of acquisition opportunities as they
arise.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2013

Earnings Summary

Net income available to common shareholders inext&46.3 million, or 48 percent, to $50.5 million®1.70 per share in 2013 compared
to $34.2 million or $1.18 per share in 2012. Thaéase in net income was primarily due to high¢interest income of $4.0 million, or three
percent, a $14.5 million, or 64 percent, decreagbe provision for loan losses and a $5.5 millmnfour percent, decrease in noninterest
expense. The common return on average assetssedréam 0.79 percent at December 31, 2012 todet@nt at December 31, 2013, anc
common return on average equity rose to 9.21 peatddecember 31, 2013, from 6.62 percent at Deeerdb, 2012.

Net interest income increased $4.0 million to $238illion compared to $135.2 million in 2012 dudngprovement in our funding costs
along with an increase in average interest earagsgts of $203.5 million, or 5.2 percent. The iaseein earning assets resulted from higher
average loans outstanding due to strong organicdoawth in 2013 and our two acquisitions in 2012.

The provision for loan losses decreased $14.5anilid $8.3 million during 2013 compared to $22.8iom in 2012. The decrease in the
provision for loan losses for the year is a restithe improving economic conditions which haveipesly impacted our asset quality metrics
in all categories, including decreases in loan g&anffs, nonaccrual loans, special mention andtandard loans and the delinquency status o
our loan portfolio. Net loan charge-offs decrea8&gercent to $8.5 million in 2013 compared to 32illion in 2012.

Total noninterest income was relatively unchangekba.5 million for the year ended December 31,2€dmpared to $51.9 million for
2012. The decrease of $0.4 million was primarilg tiua $3.0 million gain on the sale of securitie2012, $0.8 million decrease in mortgage
banking and $1.0 million decrease other nonintanestme. These decreases were offset by a $3.bbmiiet gain from the sale of our
merchant card servicing business and other incsdasgealth management income, services chargegposits and insurance income.

Total noninterest expense decreased $5.5 millighlf&’.4 million for the year ended 2013 compare$i1?2.9 million for 2012.
Professional services and legal decreased $1.pmitdata processing decreased $0.6 million anerathninterest expense decreased $4.1
million. These decreases were primarily a resut 5.1 million decrease in merger related expethsgsvere incurred in 2012 as well as
expense control initiatives implemented throug2t3. The decrease in other noninterest expensenvaarily in other real estate owned, or
OREO, and unfunded loan commitments. These de@eas® offset by increases in salaries and benefiteh increased $0.6 million, net
occupancy, which increased $0.4 million and oth&es, which increased $0.5 million from 2012. Thieseeases are due to growth from our
acquisitions and the expansion of loan productiwa Ohio in 2012.

The $23.6 million increase in pretax net incomeultes in an increase of $7.2 million in the prowisifor income taxes of $14.5 million in
2013 compared to $7.3 million in 2012.
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Net Interest Income

Our principal source of revenue is net interesbine. Net interest income represents the differbeteeen the interest and fees earned ol
interest-earning assets and the interest paidterest-bearing liabilities. Net interest incomaffected by changes in the average balance of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearingiligsiland changes in interest rates and spreadstaditdng consistent spreads between interest
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiesgaificant to our financial performance becauseimerest income comprised 74 percent of
operating revenue (net interest income plus noresténcome, excluding security gains/losses amdreourring income and expenses) in 201
and 73 percent of operating revenue in 2012. Refpage 65 Explanation of Use of Non-GAAP FinanMalasures for a discussion of
operating revenue as a non-GAAP financial meadure.level and mix of interest-earning assets atetést-bearing liabilities are managed by
our Asset and Liability Committee, or ALCO, in orde mitigate interest rate and liquidity riskstbé balance sheet. A variety of ALCO
strategies were implemented, within prescribed AL@®R parameters, to maintain an acceptable netést margin.

The interest income on interest-earning assetshandet interest margin are presented on a fuklglitke-equivalent, or FTE, basis. The F
basis adjusts for the tax benefit of income onaieitiax-exempt loans and investments using theddeatutory tax rate of 35 percent for each
period. We believe this measure to be the prefeneualstry measurement of net interest income thatiges a relevant comparison between
taxable and non-taxable amounts.

The following table reconciles net interest incoamel net interest margin from a GAAP to a non-GAARIb for the years presented:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Total interest incom $153,75¢ $156,25: $165,07¢
Total interest expens 14,56 21,02« 27,73
Net interest income per consolidated statementebincome 139,19: 135,22 137,34t
Adjustment to FTE bas 4,85( 4,471 4,15¢
Net Interest Income (FTE) (nor-GAAP) $144,04: $139,69¢ $141,50(
Net interest margi 3.3% 3.45% 3.72%
Adjustment to FTE bas 0.11 0.12 0.11
Net Interest Margin (FTE) (non-GAAP) 3.5(% 3.5 3.83%
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Average Balance Sheet and Net Interest Income Analy  sis

The following table provides information regardithg average balances, interest and rates earneteoestearning assets and the aver
balances, interest and rates paid on interestrzghabilities for the years ended December 31.:

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average
(dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
ASSETS
Loans()® $3,448,52°  $14536(  4.22%  $3,213,0L  $147,81¢  459%  $3,216,85  $156,84!  4.8t%
Interes-bearing deposits with ban 167,95: 444 0.2€% 289,94 71¢ 0.25% 123,71« 30z 0.2%%
Taxable investment securiti() 371,09 7,45¢  2.01% 291,48 7,34¢ 2.59% 270,80! 8,471  3.1%%
Tax-exempt investment securiti(? 110,00¢ 5,231 4.76% 95,38: 4,80: 5.09% 64,35 3,611 5.61%
Federal Home Loan Bank and other restricted s 13,69 107 0.78% 17,94¢ 37 0.21% 20,85¢ 4 0.02%
Total Interest-earning Assets 4,111,28 158,60t 3.8t% 3,907,77! 160,72. 4.1(% 3,696,58! 169,23: 4.58%
Noninteres-earning asset:
Cash and due from ban 51,53¢ 53,517 50,45¢
Premises and equipment, | 37,087 38,46( 38,42
Other asset 353,85 361,98: 344,37¢
Less allowance for loan loss (47,967 (49,1960 (57,24)
Total Assets $4,505,79; $4,312,53! $4,072,60:
LIABILITIES AND
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deman $ 309,74¢ $ 75 0.02% $ 306,99 $  14¢ 0.02% $ 286,58t $ 362 0.12%
Money marke 319,83: 44¢ 0.14% 308,71¢ 52¢ 0.17% 249,49 37€ 0.15%
Savings 1,001,20! 1,73¢ 0.17% 902,88¢ 2,35¢ 0.26% 761,27: 1,267 0.17%
Certificates of depos 1,054,45 9,15(C 0.87% 1,104,26. 13,76¢ 1.2%% 1,181,82: 20,94¢ 1.7%
Total Interest-bearing deposits 2,685,23! 11,40¢ 0.42% 2,622,86: 16,79¢ 0.64% 2,479,18; 22,95 0.92%
Securities sold under repurchase agreern 54,057 62 0.12% 47,38¢ 82 0.17% 41,58¢ 58 0.13%
Shor-term borrowings 101,97: 27¢ 0.27% 50,21: 12¢ 0.24% 551 2 0.32%
Long-term borrowings 24,31: 74€ 3.01% 33,84: 1,107 3.2% 31,65 1,091 3.45%
Junior subordinated debt securit 65,98¢ 2,07 3.14% 90,61¢ 2,91¢ 3.21% 90,61¢ 3,63 4.01%
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities 2,931,57 14,56 0.5(% 2,844,92. 21,02¢ 0.74% 2,643,58 27,73: 1.05%
Noninteres-bearing liabilities
Noninteres-bearing deman 955,47! 877,05¢ 792,91:
Other liabilities 69,97¢ 73,74¢ 50,92«
Shareholde’ equity 548,77: 516,81 585,18t
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,505,79, $4,312,53! $4,072,60:
Net Interest Income(2)() $144,04: $139,69¢ $141,50(
Net Interest Margin () 3.5(% 3.5% 3.8%

@) Nonaccruing loans are included in the daily averdmgn amounts outstandin
(2 Tar-exempt income is on a FTE basis using the stattieatgral corporate income tax rate of 35 perceni2@i3, 2012 and 201
() Taxable investment income is adjusted for the divi-received deduction for equity securiti
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The following table details a summary of the chanigeinterest earned and interest paid resultiagnfchanges in volume and rates for the
years presente!

2013 Compared to 2012 2012 Compared to 2011
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
(dollars in thousands) Volume ®) Rate ) Net  Volume ™ Rate ) Net
Interest earned ol
Loans(D(2) $ 10,83t $(1328) $(245) $ (187 $ (8,839  $ (9,026
Interes-bearing deposits with bar (302) 28 (274 407 9 41€
Taxable investment securiti(3) 2,007 (1,899 112 647 1,779 (1,125
Tax-exempt investment securiti(?) 73t (30€) 42¢ 1,741 (550) 1,191
Federal Home Loan Bank and other restricted s (8) 78 70 (1) 34 33
Total Interest-earning Assets 13,267 (15,389 (2,11¢) 2,607 (11,119 (8,519
Interest paid or
Interes-bearing deman $ 1 $ 7 $ () 3 26 $ (249 $ (21)
Money marke 18 (202) (82 89 63 152
Savings 257 (87¢) (621) 23€ 852 1,08¢
Certificates of depos (622) (3,999 (4,616 (1,379 (5,80¢6) (7,180
Securities sold under repurchase agreemn 12 (32 (20) 7 22 29
Shor-term borrowings 12¢€ 30 15€ 157 (36) 121
Long-term borrowings (31)) (50) (361) 75 (59 16
Junior subordinated debt securit (792) (54) (846 — (719 (719
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities (1,310 (5,15)) (6,467) (789 (5,925 (6,709
Net Change in Net Interest Income $ 14,57 $(10,23)  $ 4,34f $ 3,391 $ (5,199 $ (1,809
@

Nonaccruing loans are included in the daily averdmgn amounts outstandin
(3 Tax-exempt income is on a FTE basis using the stattieatgral corporate income tax rate of 35 perceni2@i3, 2012 and 201
() Taxable investment income is adjusted for the divi-received deduction for equity securiti
@ Changes to rate/volume are allocated to both rate wolume on a proportionate dollar bas

Net interest income increased $4.3 million to $044illion compared to $139.7 million in 2012. Netdrest margin decreased by 7 basis
points to 3.50 percent compared to 3.57 perce2®i?. The increase in net interest income is dukedmprovement in funding costs coupled
with an increase of $203.5 million in average esgrassets which helped to offset the impact ofidied) earning asset rates. The decrease in
net interest margin is a result of the current tate environment, as earning asset rates decréstedthan our ability to offset those decre:
on the funding side.

Interest income decreased $2.1 million to $158l6amniin 2013 compared to $160.7 million in 201heTdecrease in interest income was
primarily driven by a 37 basis point decrease ierage loan rates to 4.22 percent compared to £&2pt in 2012. The impact from the
decrease in average loan rates was offset in pahebaverage loan balance increase of $235.50omilAverage investment securities increase:
$94.2 million and interest income increased $0 Mionion investment securities compared to 2012 iflterest-bearing balance with banks,
which is primarily funds held at the Federal Resedecreased $122.0 million during 2013 as cashused to fund loan growth and investrr
securities purchases. Overall, the FTE rate ot itttierest-earning assets decreased 24 basis [10iBt86 percent in 2013 as compared to 4.1(
percent in 2012.

Interest expense decreased $6.4 million to $14llémfor 2013 compared to $21.0 million for 20Ihe primary driver of the decrease in
interest expense was the maturities of CDs beduigiger interest rates. For 2013, average intdreating deposits increased by $62.4 millic
$2.7 billion as compared to $2.6 billion 2012. Therease in average interest-bearing depositsribited to a $98.3 million average balance
increase in savings deposits and a $13.9 milli@rage balance
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increase in interest-bearing demand and money rmackeunts, partially offset by an average balatemease of $49.8 million in CDs. The
cost of interest bearing deposits and the coditaf tleposits including noninterest bearing dendeqbsits was 0.42 percent and 0.31 percent
decreases of 22 and 17 basis points from 2012 gpitindue to CDs maturing and being replaced by lioterest bearing and noninterest
bearing demand and other lower interest rate depdgie $24.6 million and 7 basis point decreaganior subordinated debt is due to the
early repayment of $45.0 million of junior suboraied debt during 2013. Long term borrowings de@géy $9.5 million and 19 basis points
in 2013 as a result of maturities of FHLB long-temdvances. Customer activity drove the $6.7 milbaiance increase in the securities sold
under repurchase agreements, while the 5 basis g@inease was a result of lowering the produet &thort term borrowings were utilized to
replace the subordinated debt and long term dshttieg in an increase of $51.8 million from 20@erall, the cost of interest-bearing
liabilities decreased 24 basis points to 0.50 pdrfr 2013 as compared to 0.74 percent for 2012.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is the amount todxed to the ALL after adjusting for charge-offs aadoveries to bring the ALL to a level
considered appropriate to absorb probable lossesent in the loan portfolio. The provision for tol@sses decreased $14.5 million, or 64
percent, to $8.3 million for 2013 compared to $2ai8ion for 2012. The decrease is due to bett@neaic conditions in our markets which
resulted in a significant improvement in our asgedlity. Net charge-offs decreased $16.6 millian6® percent, from the prior year. Net
charge-offs were $8.5 million, or 0.25 percentwdrage loans in 2013, compared to $25.2 millior).@B percent of average loans in 2012.
Total nonperforming loans were $22.5 million, c8®percent, of total loans at December 31, 2013 wepresents a 59 percent decrease
$55.0 million, or 1.63 percent of total loans atBeber 31, 2012. Special mention and substandandheocial loans also decreased
$146.0 million, or 47 percent, to $163.0 milliowrdn $309.0 million at December 31, 2012. Refer smAflowance for Loan Losses section of
this Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Firgr€ondition and Results of Operations, or MD&Ar further details.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 $ Change % Change
Securities gains, ni $ 5 $ 3,01¢ $(3,01)) (99.9)
Debit and credit card fet 10,93: 11,13¢ (203) (1.8
Wealth management fe 10,69¢ 9,80¢ 88¢ 9.1
Service charges on deposit accol 10,48t 9,99 49¢ 5.C
Insurance fee 6,24¢ 6,131 117 1.6
Gain on sale of merchant card servicing busii 3,09: — 3,09 —
Mortgage banking 2,12: 2,87¢ (755) (26.2)
Other Income
BOLI income 1,85¢ 2,31 (461) (19.9
Letter of credit origination fee 1,09¢ 1,415 (319 (22.5)
Interest rate swap fe: 1,01z 1,03¢ (24) (2.3
Other 3,97 4,18: (206) (4.9
Total Other Noninterest Incon 7,94 8,95: (1,010 (11.9)
Total Noninterest Income $51,52' $51,91: $ (385 (0.7)
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Noninterest income remained relatively unchangedpared to 2012. Increases in fees from wealth memagt and insurance, increases
in service charges on deposit accounts and theogeihe sale of our merchant card servicing busimesanuary 2013 were offset by decrease
in gains on sale of securities, debit and credill éaes, mortgage banking and other noninteresmirec

We sold our merchant card servicing business f@ #4#llion and paid deconversion and terminatiogsfef $1.7 million to the merchant
processor resulting in a net gain of $3.1 millibnconjunction with the sale of the merchant cad/iging business, we entered into a
marketing and sales alliance agreement with thehaser, providing transition fees, royalties aridrral revenue. Income from the marketing
and sales alliance agreement is included in debitcaedit card fees. Revenues from the marketinigsates alliance agreement of $1.7 million
for 2013 were comparable to the merchant reventladed in debit and credit card fees of $1.8 niillfor 2012. The $0.5 million increase in
service charges on deposit accounts was primauidytd increases in deposit related fees that ceduhroughout 2013. Wealth management
fees increased $0.9 million due to higher assatgiumanagement, primarily a result of improvemémtie stock market. Further, our disco
brokerage income increased due to higher commigsiEsin 2013 compared to 2012 as we hired additi@mancial advisors in 2012.

The $3.0 million decrease in security gains rel&desimost no sales activity in 2013 versus thessaf two equity positions during 2012 as
a result of increases in value after merger annemeats. Mortgage banking income decreased $0.Bmduring 2013 compared to the
previous year due to a higher interest rate enwiemt in 2013. Interest rates increased late irséloend quarter of 2013 resulting in a decreas
in the volume of loans originated for sale in teeadary market and less favorable pricing on ksdes. During the year ended December 31
2013, we sold 24 percent fewer mortgages with $68ln in loan sales compared to $82.9 milliorridg 2012. The decrease in other
noninterest income of $1.0 million for year endegtBmber 31, 2013 was primarily attributed to ae@ee of $0.5 million in bank owned life
insurance, or BOLI, income related to a death beredeived in 2012 and a lower rate of return @LBthroughout 2013 and a decrease in fe
income on letters of credit of $0.3 million.

Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 $ Change % Change
Salaries and employee bene® $ 60,847 $ 57,92( $ 2,921 5.1
Data processin(®) 8,26: 7,32¢ 937 12.¢
Net occupanc® 8,01¢ 7,60: 41°F 5.8
Furniture and equipme 4,88: 5,26: (379 (7.2
Professional services and le® 4,18¢ 4,61( (42¢€) (9.2
Other taxe: 3,74% 3,20( 542 17.C
Marketing® 2,92¢ 3,20¢ (277) (8.6
FDIC insurance 2,77 2,92¢ (159 (5.3
Merger related expen: 83¢ 5,96¢ (5,130 (86.0
Other expense:
Joint venture amortizatic 4,09t 4,19¢ (104) (2.5
Amortization of intangible: 1,591 1,70¢ (11€) (6.9
Other real estate ownt 44E 2,16¢ (1,729 (79.5)
Unfunded loan commitmen (60) 1,811 (1,877 (103.9
Other® 14,84« 14,95’ (119) (0.9
Total Other Noninterest Expen 20,91t 24,84 (3,929 (15.8)
Total Noninterest Expense $117,39. $122,86. $ (5,47)) (4.5)

@) Excludes merger related expen
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Noninterest expense decreased $5.5 million, opdrbent, to $117.4 million, for the year ended Delser 31, 2013 compared to 2012. "
decrease in noninterest expense was primarily @aedecline in merger related expenses and othénteoest expense. Partially offsetting
these decreases was higher expenses in sevegdgaseduring 2013 due to the full integration af bwo acquisitions that occurred in 2012.

We had $0.8 million in merger related expenselerytear ended December 31, 2013 compared to $8i0mmn 2012. The $0.8 million ¢
merger related expense recognized in 2013 primegited to the data processing system conversi@ateway Bank. Although the Gateway
Bank acquisition occurred in August 2012, the mergéh S&T Bank and the system conversion was cetepl on February 8, 2013. The $6.0
million of merger related expense in 2012 relatedur acquisition of Mainline Bancorp, Inc., or Mine, on March 9, 2012 and Gateway
Bank of Pennsylvania, or Gateway, on August 132201

Salaries and employee benefits increased $2.%miluring 2013 due to additional employees, anmglt increases, higher commissions
and incentives and severance. Increases consisgd3million due to the number of net new empkxy&om our two acquisitions in the prior
year and the opening of our LPO in Northeast OhiAugust 2012, as well as to the hiring of addiiloemployees throughout our organizat
Adding to the increase was our annual salary nretease of $0.8 million and $0.5 million in severa. Commission and incentive expense
increased by $1.8 million due to increased loampetion and strong performance in our other busitiass. Offsetting these increases was a
decrease in pension expense of $1.1 million, nesuftom a change in actuarial assumptions. Stackpensation expense decreased $0.4
million in 2013 because there was no new manageimeantive plan for 2013.

Data processing, occupancy and other taxes inatdas¢he year ended December 31, 2013. Data psowemcreased $0.9 million
compared to the previous year due to increasedpsity charges resulting from our acquisitionsatieual increase with our third party data
processor and the implementation of software tigaifecantly strengthens the authentication of oustomers that use our online banking
product. Occupancy increased $0.4 million primadiilye to additional branch locations resulting froan two acquisitions. Offsetting this
increase was savings from the closure of two brameimd two drive-up facilities during 2013. Thergase of $0.5 million in other taxes
primarily related to the additional shares tax gdiions that we assumed with the acquisitions ahlee and Gateway.

Furniture and equipment, professional serviceslegal, marketing and FDIC insurance expense deededisring the year ended
December 31, 2013 when compared to 2012. Furnétadeequipment expense declined $0.4 million duedecrease in depreciation expense
related to assets acquired in 2008 that were @djyreciated during 2013. Marketing expense decded@8 million due to fewer customer
promotions in 2013. Federal Deposit Insurance Qaitan, or FDIC, charges are based in part on firmatios which have improved during
2013, resulting in a decrease of $0.2 million whempared with the year ended December 31, 2012 4%ional services and legal expense
decreased $0.4 million compared to 2012 becausé&amd external accounting and consulting changeee incurred in the first quarter of
2012.

Other noninterest expense decreased $3.9 milliothéoyear ended December 31, 2013 as comparée teetrr ended December 31, 2012
The decreases in other noninterest expense wenarisi due to decreases of $1.9 million in the resdor unfunded loan commitments and
$1.7 million in OREO expense due to improving asgedlity. Other noninterest expense also decred8édmillion due to the reversal of a
contingent liability for an Internal Revenue Segyior IRS, proposed penalty for tax year 2010. dddingent liability was assumed with the
acquisition of Mainline in 2012 and was reverse@&wive received notice during 2013 that the IRSvhaigted the $0.5 million penalty.
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Our efficiency ratio, which measures noninteregtemse as a percent of noninterest income plusteest income, on a FTE basis,
excluding security gains/losses, was 60 percer2®dB3 and 65 percent for 2012. Refer to page 63aBagtion of Use of Non-GAAP Financial
Measures for a discussion of this non-GAAP finantiaasure.

Federal Income Taxes

We recorded a federal income tax provision of $1ilbon in 2013 compared to $7.3 million in 20Ithe effective tax rate, which is the
provision for income taxes as a percentage of plietzome was 22.3 percent in 2013 compared to A&€réent in 2012. We ordinarily generate
an annual effective tax rate that is less tharstatitory rate of 35 percent due to benefits regpftom tax-exempt interest, excludable
dividend income, tax-exempt income on BOLI andharefits associated with Low Income Housing Taxd@se The increase to our effective
tax rate was primarily due to an increase of $23l6on in pre-tax income which diluted the permanbenefits listed above.

Results of Operations
Year Ended December 31, 2012

Net Income

Our net income available to common shareholdersedsed $5.5 million to $34.2 million or $1.18 pkare in 2012 compared to $39.7
million or $1.41 per share in 2011. The decreaseirincome was primarily a result of an increasg1®.0 million in noninterest expense,
which includes $6.0 million in one-time merger tethexpenses. Additionally, our provision for Idasses increased $7.2 million. We also
experienced a decline in our net interest incom&2of million compared to the prior year, due klaf organic loan growth and the low
interest rate environment. These decreases wetiallyaoffset by a $7.9 million increase in nonirget income primarily due to increased
mortgage banking and wealth management fees and gaisecurity sales, and a decrease of $7.4 mitliprovision for income taxes.
Additionally, we did not have preferred dividendypeents due to the redemption of $108.7 million aferred stock from the U.S. Department
of Treasury’s Capital Purchase Program in Decerab2011.

Return on Equity and Assets
The table below presents our consolidated profitglzind common equity to assets ratio for eactheflast three years:

Years Ended December 31 2012 2011 2010

Common return on average ass 0.7% 0.97% 0.9(%
Common return on average eqt 6.62% 6.78% 6.58%
Divided payout ratic 50.75% 42.420% 44.7%%
Common equity to asset ra: 11.8% 11.91% 11.4&%

Net Interest Income

Our principal source of revenue is net interesbime. Net interest income represents the differbeteeen the interest and fees earned ol
interest-earning assets and the interest paidterest-bearing liabilities. Net interest incomaffected by changes in the average balance of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearingiliglsiland changes in interest rates and spreadstditding consistent spreads between interest
earning assets and interest-bearing liabilitiesgaificant to our financial performance becauseimerest income comprised 73 percent of
operating revenue (net interest income plus norésténcome, excluding security gains/losses) in
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2012 and 76 percent of operating revenue in 20&ferRo page 65 Explanation of Use of Non-GAAP Ritial Measures for a discussion of
operating revenue as a non-GAAP financial meadure.level and mix of interest-earning assets atetest-bearing liabilities are managed by
our ALCO in order to mitigate interest rate andildity risks of the balance sheet. A variety of ADGtrategies were implemented, within
prescribed ALCO risk parameters, to maintain areptable net yield on interest-earning assets (retdst margin) given the challenges of the
current interest rate environment.

The interest income on interest-earning assetshandet interest margin are presented on a FTE.bEse FTE basis adjusts for the tax
benefit of income on certain taxempt loans and investments using the federahiedbat provides a relevant comparison betweerbleva(
non-taxable amounts.

The following table reconciles net interest incomeg net interest margin from a GAAP to a non-GA#sBIs for the years presented:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 2010
Total interest incom $156,25: $165,07¢ $180,41¢
Total interest expens 21,02« 27,73 34,57
Net interest income per consolidated statementebincome 135,22 137,34t 145,84t
Adjustment to FTE bas 4,471 4,15¢ 4,62
Net Interest Income (FTE) (nor-GAAP) $139,69¢ $141,50( $150,47:
Net interest margi 3.45% 3.72% 3.93%
Adjustment to FTE bas 0.12 0.11 0.12
Net Interest Margin (FTE) (non-GAAP) 3.5™% 3.8%% 4.05%
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Average Balance Sheet and Net Interest Income Analy  sis

The following table provides information regardithg average balances, interest and rates earneteoestearning assets and the aver
balances, interest and rates paid on interestrzghabilities for the years ended December 31.:

2012 2011 2010

Average Average Average
(dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
ASSETS
Loans()® $3,213,01  $147,81¢  45%%  $3,216,85  $156,84!  4.8¢%  $3,386,100  $172,31¢  5.0%
Interes-bearing deposits with ban 289,94 71¢ 0.25% 123,71« 30z 0.2%% 49 — 0.3%%
Taxable investment securiti(® 291,48: 7,34¢ 2.52% 270,80¢ 8,471 3.1%% 223,72: 8,36¢ 3.7&%
Tax-exempt investment securiti(? 95,38: 4,802 5.03% 64,35 3,611 5.61% 78,93: 4,35¢ 5.529%
Federal Home Loan Bank and other restricted s 17,94¢ 37 0.21% 20,85¢ 4 0.02% 24,10: 4 0.01%
Total Interest-earning Assets 3,907,77! 160,72: 4.1% 3,696,58! 169,23: 4.58% 3,712,90! 185,04t 4.98%
Noninteres-earning asset:
Cash and due from ban 53,517 50,45¢ 90,46:
Premises and equipment, | 38,46( 38,42t 39,14:
Other asset 361,98: 344,37¢ 340,23:
Less allowance for loan loss (49,1960 (57,24) (59,297
Total Assets $4,312,53! $4,072,60: $4,123,45!
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Interes-bearing liabilities
Interes-bearing deman $ 306,99 $  14¢ 0.0% $ 286,58¢ $ 362 0.15% $ 267,29: $ 562 0.21%
Money marke 308,71 52¢ 0.17% 249,49 37¢ 0.15% 251,09: 65€ 0.26%
Savings 902,88¢ 2,35¢ 0.2€% 761,27: 1,267 0.17% 749,32! 2,127 0.2¢%
Certificates of depos 1,104,26: 13,76¢ 1.2/% 1,181,82. 20,94¢ 1.71% 1,300,80: 25,37( 1.95%
Total Interest-bearing deposits 2,622,86. 16,79¢ 0.62% 2,479,18: 22,95; 0.9% 2,568,51 28,717 1.12%
Securities sold under repurchase agreern 47,38¢ 82 0.17% 41,58¢ 58 0.1%% 46,49( 64 0.1%%
Shor-term borrowings 50,21: 12% 0.24% 551 2 0.32% 32,47 14¢€ 0.45%
Long-term borrowings 33,84: 1,107 3.2% 31,65! 1,091 3.45% 42,92( 1,64: 3.82%
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 2,91¢ 3.21% 90,61¢ 3,63t 4.01% 90,61¢ 4,00: 4.42%
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities 2,844,92. 21,02¢ 0.7/% 2,643,58 27,73 1.05% 2,781,01. 34,57: 1.2%
Noninteres-bearing liabilities
Noninteres-bearing deman 877,05t 792,91: 728,70¢
Other liabilities 73,74¢ 50,92« 47,06¢
Shareholde’ equity 516,81: 585,18¢ 566,67(
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,312,53 $4,072,60! $4,123,45!
Net Interest Income(2)(S) $139,69t $141,50( $150,47:
Net Interest Margin () 3.51% 3.8% 4.05%

@) Nonaccruing loans are included in the daily averdmgn amounts outstandin
() Tar-exempt income is on a FTE basis using the stattiéntgral corporate income tax rate of 35 perceni2@12, 2011 and 201
() Taxable investment income is adjusted for the diwi-received deduction for equity securiti
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The following table details a summary of the chanigeinterest earned and interest paid resultiagnfchanges in volume and rates for the
years presente!

2012 Compared to 2011 2011 Compared to 2010
Increase (Decrease) Due to Increase (Decrease) Due to
(dollars in thousands) Volume @ Rate ) Net  Volume ®  Rate ™ Net
Interest earned ol
LoansW(@) $ (187) $ (8,83) $(9.02¢ $ (861) $ (686) $ (15479
Interes-bearing deposits with bar 407 9 41€ 41¢ (117) 30z
Taxable investment securiti(3) 647 1,779 (1,125 1,761 (1,659 102
Tax-exempt investment securiti(?) 1,741 (550) 1,191 (804) 61 (74%)
Federal Home Loan Bank and other restricted s (1) 34 33 — — —
Total Interest-earning Assets 2,607 (11,119 (8,51)) (7,23%) (8,57€) (15,81))
Interest paid or
Interes-bearing deman $ 26 $ (249 $ (217) 3 41 $ (240 $ (199
Money marke 89 63 152 (4) (27¢) (282)
Savings 23¢ 852 1,08¢ 34 (899 (860)
Certificates of depos (1,379 (5,80¢6) (7,180 (2,32)) (2,109 (4,424
Securities sold under repurchase agreemn 7 22 29 @) (4) (12)
Shor-term borrowings 157 (36) 121 (145 1) (144
Long-term borrowings 75 (59 16 (43)) (1273) (552)
Junior subordinated debt securit — (719 (719 — (368 (36¢)
Total Interest-bearing Liabilities (784) (5,925 (6,709 (2,837 (4,009 (6,840
Change in Net Interest Income $ 3,391 $ (519) $(1.80) $ (4,400 $ (456) $ (8,979

@) Nonaccruing loans are included in the daily aver&mgn amounts outstandin

(2 Tax-exempt income is on a FTE basis using the stattiatgral corporate income tax rate of 35 percen2@i12, 2011 and 201
() Taxable investment income is adjusted for the divi-received deduction for equity securiti

@ Changes to rate/volume are allocated to both rate wolume on a proportionate dollar bas

Net interest income and net interest margin deexkhy $1.8 million or 26 basis points compared@d12 The low interest rate
environment was a challenge to our net interestimein 2012, as earning assets rates reset fhateotir ability to offset those decreases on
the funding side.

Interest income decreased $8.5 million to $160/Haniin 2012 compared to $169.2 million in 2011atBs decreased on almost all earnin
asset categories due to the low interest rate @mvient. The decrease in net interest income wasapity driven by a 29 basis point decreas
average loan yields to 4.59 percent compared ® @eBcent in 2011. Average loan balances werevelgtunchanged with a decline of $3.8
million despite the addition of approximately $1@&illion of average loans related to the acquisitiof Mainline and Gateway. Loans from
acquisitions were offset by significant loan pagdfiroughout the past two years, primarily in camenercial loan portfolio. We retained more
residential mortgage loans in the portfolio durihg year, rather than selling them in the secondesket. Average investments increased
$51.8 million compared to 2011; however, due tdidexy yields interest income was essentially umgdesd. The interest-bearing balance with
banks is primarily funds held at the Federal Resand increased $166.2 million, or 134.4 percanind 2012 due to a lack of organic loan
growth. Overall, the FTE yield on total interestréag assets decreased 48 basis points to 4.16midnc2012 as compared to 4.58 percent in
2011.

Interest expense decreased $6.7 million to $21libmfor 2012 compared to $27.7 million for 20The primary driver of the decrease in
interest expense was the maturities of CDs beduigiger interest rates. For 2012, average interestihg deposits increased by $143.7 million
to $2.6 billion as compared to $2.5 billion in 20The increase in average interest-bearing depgsittributed to a $141.6 million average
balance increase in savings deposits and a $7%i6maverage balance
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increase in interest-bearing demand and money rmackeunts, partially offset by an average balatemease of $77.6 million in CDs. The
increase in deposits includes the addition of ¥ Hillion in average deposits related to the adtjaiss of Mainline and Gateway. The cost of
deposits was 0.48 percent, a decrease of 22 baisis ffrom 2011, primarily due to CDs maturing dmdng replaced by demand and other
lower interest rate deposits. The cost of long-tbommowed funds decreased 64 basis points, tof&3nt from 3.87 percent in 2011.
However, the cost of securities sold under repgetzgreements, or REPOs, and other short-termvbedrfunds increased 8 basis points to
0.21 percent as a result of increased utilizatiomare expensive short-term borrowings comparezhigiomer repos. Overall, the yield on
interest-bearing liabilities decreased 31 basiatsdd 0.74 percent for 2012 as compared to 2011.

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses is the amount todxed to the ALL after adjusting for charge-offs aadoveries to bring the ALL to a level
considered appropriate to absorb probable loséesent in the loan portfolio. The provision for tol@sses increased $7.2 million to $22.8
million for 2012 compared to $15.6 million for 2Q1Net charge-offs were $25.2 million or 0.78 petagraverage loans in 2012, compared to
$18.2 million or 0.56 percent of average loans@a R During the first half of 2012, we experienetelvated charge-offs primarily in our
commercial construction loan portfolio as projdntthis portfolio slowed due to the economic enmireent and as a result, appraised values
declined. Refer to the Allowance for Loan Lossegisa of this MD&A for further details.

Noninterest Income

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 $ Change % Change
Security gains (losses), r $ 3,01¢ $ (129 $ 3,14( 2,532.:
Debit and credit card fet 11,13¢ 10,88¢ 24k 2.2
Service charges on deposit accol 9,99- 9,97¢ 14 0.1
Wealth management fe 9,80¢ 8,18( 1,62¢ 19.¢
Insurance fee 6,131 6,23( (99) (1.6)
Mortgage banking 2,87¢ 1,19¢ 1,67¢ 140.(
Other Income

Interest rate swap fe 1,03¢ — 1,03¢ —

Other 7,917 7,70¢ 212 2.E
Total Other Noninterest Incon 8,95 7,70¢ 1,24¢ 16.2
Total Noninterest Income $51,91: $44,05’ $ 7,85¢ 17.¢

Noninterest income increased $7.9 million in 20@&hpared to 2011, with increases in almost all nen@st income categories. The
primary drivers were gains on sales of securiigsyell as increased fees from wealth managementantgage banking and increased inte
rate swap fee income.

The $3.1 million increase in security gains reldtethe sales of two equity positions during thary@s a result of increases in value after
merger announcements. Mortgage interest rates nechait very attractive levels throughout 2012 dgvétrong customer demand. As a result
we experienced an increase of $1.7 million in magybanking fee activity in 2012 compared to 2011.
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During 2012, we sold $82.9 million of 1-4 family mgage loans to Fannie Mae compared to $67.9 milhid2011 which increased fees by
$0.5 million. Additionally, in 2011 we recorded empairment charge related to mortgage servicingtsigf $0.4 million that reflected a decl
in the remaining value of the mortgage servicingesompared to no impairment in 2012. The remgiiminrease in mortgage banking activity
primarily related to a net gain on our mortgagewégive due to a strong mortgage pipeline at the @012 compared to a decrease in 2011.
During the fourth quarter of 2012, we began toine?® year mortgages within the loan portfolio whigere previously priced and underwrit
using secondary market terms and guidelines. Btetion of 20 year mortgages is in addition tolBend 15 year mortgages which we have
been retaining in the portfolio since the seconairtpur of 2011.

Wealth management fees increased $1.6 million dummproved brokerage business of $0.8 million assalt of adding new producers,
and our trust income increased $0.6 million duartoncrease in assets under management of $20lidhnsbmpared to 2011.

Interest rate swap fees increased $1.0 million @egbto 2011 as our customers opted to lock initv@rest rates for longer terms.

Noninterest Expense

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2012 2011 $ Change % Change
Salaries and employee bene® $ 57,92( $ 51,07¢ $ 6,84: 13.¢
Net occupanc® 7,60: 6,94: 66( 9.t
Data processin(®) 7,32¢ 6,85 47% 6.€
Furniture and equipme 5,26: 4,941 321 6.5
Professional services and le® 4,61( 5,43 (827) (15.2)
Marketing@® 3,20¢ 3,01¢ 187 6.2
Other taxe: 3,20( 3,381 (181) (5.9
FDIC assessmel 2,92¢ 3,57( (644) (18.0
Merger related expen: 5,96¢ — 5,96¢ —
Other expense:
Joint venture amortizatic 4,19¢ 3,30z 897 27.2
Other real estate ownt 2,16¢ 1,51¢ 64¢ 42.7
Unfunded loan commitmen 1,811 (1,479 3,28t (222.9)
Amortization of intangible: 1,70¢ 1,735 (28) (1.6
Other® 14,95% 13,601 1,354 10.C
Total Other Noninterest Expen 24,84 18,68¢ 6,15¢ 32.¢
Total Noninterest Expense $122,86. $103,90¢ $18,95¢ 18.2

@) Excludes merger related expen

We had an increase of $19.0 million in noninteeegtense in 2012, compared to 2011, with the laigestases in salaries and employee
benefits and one-time merger related expenses.

During the first quarter of 2012, we acquired Maia| an eight branch institution headquarterediarisburg, Pennsylvania and during the
third quarter of 2012, we acquired Gateway, a twambh institution headquartered in McMurray, Pehraya. In 2012, we incurred one-time
merger related expenses of $2.3 million of changmitrol, severance and other employee costs,i8i#li8n in data processing contract
termination fees, $1.0 million for professional dedal fees and $0.4 million of other expenses.
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Excluding one-time merger related expenses, salarid employee benefits increased by $6.8 miltord,3.4 percent, compared to 2011.
Approximately $2.3 million of the increase relatecadditional employees added as a result of thaisitions. We added 53 former Mainline
employees to our staff in March 2012 and 19 for@ateway employees in August 2012. Further incrgasatary expenses in 2012 were
annual merit increases of approximately $1.7 nnlli@ur pension expense increased $2.0 million 22{ue to an increase in our pension
liability as a result of a significant decreasel®0 basis points in our discount rate from 201yrélhincentives and commissions increased
$0.4 million due to increased production in areeduding wealth management and mortgage banking.

Excluding one-time merger related expenses, datzepsing expenses increased by $0.5 million, pifiyndwe to $0.3 million related to an
increased customer processing base due to thesé#t@ns and an additional $0.2 million related mouggrade to our Wealth Management data
processing system. Net occupancy expenses incregskel 7 million due to the addition of 10 branchesn the acquisitions.

We invest in partnerships that provide federal medax benefits through tax credits. The partngsshre amortized over the life of the
expected tax credits. Joint venture amortizati@ndased by $0.9 million year over year due to tiag projects going into service during
2012. Further, we recorded impairment charges & #0llion during the year where the benefit of the credits had been fully utilized and no
future benefits were expected to be realized.

We did see decreases in several expense catedexidading one-time merger related expenses, legdlprofessional expense decreasec
by $0.8 million, due in part to one-time legal @autounting fees incurred in early 2011. FDIC expatexreased by $0.6 million as we
benefited from a lower FDIC assessment based oretligions made by the FDIC that went into effeptiAl, 2011.

Within other noninterest expense, the reserve ifunded loan commitments increased $3.3 millioa assult of increased volume in our
construction commitments coupled with higher histdrloss rates. In 2011 we had a reversal of #filkon of unfunded loan commitments.
The reversal in 2011 was primarily attributabléhte decline in commitments at that time. Additidyia$0.8 million of the reserve reversal in
2011 related to an expense recognized in 2008 listtex of credit that we were contractually obtaghto fulfill. During 2011, the letter of cre
was drawn upon and funded and a correspondingdearge-off was recorded. We also had an increa$6.6fmillion in OREO expense,
primarily due to two properties that were sold dgr2012 at values
significantly below the appraised values, as welingreases in selling expenses pertaining to thegmerties.

Our efficiency ratio, which measures noninteregtemse as a percent of noninterest income plustexest income, on a FTE basis,
excluding security gains/losses, was 65 percer2@d2, including the one-time merger related expsm $6.0 million, and 56 percent for
2011. Refer to page 57 Explanation of Use of NorABA-inancial Measures for a discussion of this @#AP financial measure.

Federal Income Taxes

We recorded a federal income tax provision of $filion in 2012 compared to $14.6 million in 20Ihe effective tax rate, which is the
provision for income taxes as a percentage of piietaome was 17.5 percent in 2012 compared to @&réent in 2011. The effective tax rate
decreased due to tax-exempt income and tax creglitaining relatively constant on a declining preitecome. We ordinarily generate an
annual effective tax rate that is less than theutstey rate of 35 percent due to benefits resulfingh tax-exempt interest, excludable dividend
income, tax-exempt interest on BOLI and tax besef@tsociated with Low Income Housing Tax Credits Bederal Historic Tax Credit
Projects.
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Financial Condition
December 31, 2013

Total assets of $4.5 billion as of December 31 32@main relatively unchanged from December 31220ban production was strong,
resulting in an increase to total portfolio loafi$219.6 million, or 6.6 percent. Our commerciangportfolio grew by $182.2 million, or 7.6
percent, to $2.6 billion while our consumer loamtfmdio increased by $37.4 million, or 4.0 percetot$1.0 billion. Securities increased $57.2
million, or 12.6 percent, compared to December281,2 due to the investment of cash held at theraeBeserve into higher yielding
securities. Our deposit base increased $33.9 mjlbo 0.9 percent, with total deposits of $3.7itillat December 31, 2013 compared to $3.6
billion at December 31, 2012. Savings depositseiased $29.2 million as higher rate CDs maturedcastbmers moved funds to other deposit
products. The $56.6 million increase in CDs was tdugrowth of $96.9 million of Certificate of Degbsccount Registry Services, or CDAF
One-Way Buy, or OWB, and reciprocal deposits an@l&willion in brokered CDs during 2013 offset hystomer CD maturities. Money
market deposits decreased $79.8 million to $281lllbmfrom $361.2 million at December 31, 2012as Wealth Management division
reallocated $50.4 million of the assets under mament to other types of investments. Junior subatdd debt securities decreased to $45.6
million following the early repayment of $45.0 nwlh of the debt, and other long-term borrowingsrdased by $12.3 million primarily due to
FHLB advance maturities. We replaced the highetimggunior subordinated debt and long-term borraysi with lower costing short-term
borrowings. Securities sold under repurchase ageatslecreased $28.7 million as customers exitegbtbduct following a restructuring of
the product and changes in customer preferencal Jioareholder’s equity increased by $33.9 milliang.3 percent, compared to
December 31, 2012. The increase was primarily dueet income of $50.5 million offset by $18.1 nafiiin dividends.

Securities Activity
The balances and average rates of our securiggsrasented below as of December 31.:

2013 2012 2011
Average Average Average

(dollars in thousands) Balance Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchags $234,75: 1.52% $212,06¢ 1.62%  $142,78t 2.02%
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenin

corporations and agenci 63,77¢ 2.38% 57,89¢ 2.7(% 65,39¢ 3.62%
Residential mortgage-backed securities of U.S. gowent

corporations and agenci 48,66¢ 3.02% 50,62: 3.56% 48,75: 4.38%
Commercial mortgage-backed securities of U.S. govent

corporations and agenci 39,05: 1.95% 10,15¢ 1.21% — —%
Obligations of states and political subdivisic 114,26« 4.5% 112,76 4.26% 88,80¢ 5.17%
Marketable equity securitie 8,91¢ 4.14% 8,75¢ 4.96% 10,63 3.58%
Total Securities Available-for-Sale $509,42! 2.5%%  $452,26t 2.62%  $356,37: 3.47%
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We invest in various securities in order to provadsource of liquidity, satisfy various pledgingu@ements, increase net interest income
and as a tool of the ALCO to reposition the balastoeet for interest rate risk purposes. Secuidtiesubject to market risks that could
negatively affect the level of liquidity availaktie us. Security purchases are subject to investpaities approved annually by our Board of
Directors and administered through ALCO and ouadtey function. The securities portfolio increa$éd.2 million, or 12.6 percent, from
December 31, 2012. The increase is due to thetimezd of cash into higher yielding assets offsealgecline in value of the bond portfolio
due to the rise in interest rates.

On a quarterly basis, management evaluates theitsesportfolio for OTTI. At December 31, 2013,rdaond portfolio was in a net
unrealized loss position of $2.3 million, compatedhet unrealized gain position of $14.9 milliorD&cember 31, 2012. Total gross unrealizec
losses were $7.8 million offset by total gross afired gains of $5.5 million at December 31, 2043December 31, 2012, unrealized gains
were $15.0 million and unrealized losses were $tlllon. The decrease in the value of our secisipertfolio was a result of a higher interest
rate environment in 2013 and is not related tauth@erlying credit quality of the bond portfolio.lAlebt securities are determined to be
investment grade and are paying principal and ésteaiccording to the contractual terms of the séesirThere were no unrealized losses on
marketable equity securities as of December 31320/ do not intend to sell and it is more likédan not that we will not be required to sell
any of the securities in an unrealized loss pasitiefore recovery of their amortized cost. We ditinecord any OTTI in 2013 and no
significant impairments were recorded in 2012 ad#i12 The performance of the debt and equity seéesniharkets could generate impairments
in future periods requiring realized losses todyorted.
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The following table sets forth the maturities of weties at December 31, 2013 and the weightedageeyields of such securities. Taxable-
equivalent adjustments (using a 35 percent fedlecame tax rate) for 2013 have been made in cdloglgields on obligations of state and
political subdivisions.

Maturing
After After
Within One But Within Five But Within After No Fixed
One Year Five Years Ten Years Ten Years Maturity
(dollars in thousands) Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

Available-for-Sale
Obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agenci $25,29¢ 2.06% $160,95¢ 1.4€% $ 48,497 1.43% $ — —% $ — —%
Collateralized mortgage obligations of

U.S. government corporations and

agencies — —% — —% — —% 63,77¢ 2.3t% — —%
Residential mortgage-backed securities of

U.S. government corporations and

agencies 17 4.01% 4,15C 4.37% 2,71t 5.08% 41,78 2.7%% — —%
Commercial mortgagbacked securities

U.S. government corporations and

agencies — —% — —% 39,05 1.95% — —% — —%
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 2,60¢ 5.71% 7,914 59(% 19,527 3.88%  84,21! 4.52% — —%
Marketable equity securiti¢ — —% — —% — —% —% 8,91t 4.14%
Total $27,92; $173,02: $109,79: $189,77. $8,91¢
Weighted Average Yield 2.42% 1.74% 2.14% 3.42% 4.14%
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Lending Activity
The following table summarizes our loan portfolgocd December 31:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

(dollars in % of % of % of % of % of
thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total
Commercia

Commercial real esta $ 1,607,751 45.0% $ 1,452,137 43.3% $ 1,415,33. 45.27% $ 1,494,20 44.5% $ 1,428,32 42.03%

Commercial and industrii 842,44  23.62% 791,39t  23.62% 685,75!  21.91% 722,35¢  21.5% 701,65( 20.65%

Commercial constructio 143,67! 4.05% 168,14 5.02% 188,85. 6.04% 259,59¢ 7.7&% 359,34. 10.57%
Total Commercial Loans 2,593,881  72.7% 2,411,67.  72.06% 2,289,931  73.11% 2,476,15¢  73.7% 2,489,32. 73.25%
Consume

Residential mortgag 487,09: 13.6t% 427,300  12.7% 358,84t  11.41% 359,563t  10.71% 357,39 10.52%

Home equity 414,19'  11.61% 431,338  12.8% 411,40  13.1% 441,09t 13.1%% 458,64 13.49%

Installment and other consurr 67,88 1.9(% 73,87¢ 2.21% 67,13: 2.1/% 74,78( 2.2% 81,14: 2.39%

Consumer constructic 3,14¢ 0.09% 2,431 0.07% 2,44( 0.0£% 4,01¢ 0.12% 11,83¢ 0.35%
Total Consumer Loans 972,318 27.2t% 934,95( 27.9% 839,82.  26.8% 879,43.  26.21% 909,01 26.75%
Total Portfolio Loans $ 3,566,19° 100.0(% $ 3,346,62. 100.0% $ 3,129,75' 100.0% $ 3,355,59 100.0(% $ 3,398,33. 100.00%

The loan portfolio represents the most significamirce of interest income for us. The risk thatdeers will be unable to pay such
obligations is inherent in the loan portfolio. Otlvenditions such as downturns in the borrowertkisiry or the overall economic climate can
significantly impact the borrower’s ability to pay.

Total portfolio loans increased $219.6 million,6o6 percent, since December 31, 2012, to $3.@®bibit December 31, 2013 due to orgi
loan growth in our CRE, C&l and residential mortgamprtfolios offset by declines in our commerciahstruction, home equity and other
consumer portfolios. The increase in loans carttobated to the execution of our strategic initiatto grow our loan portfolio by adding
seasoned lenders to our staff and the additiom &R0 in Northeast Ohio. We continue to activelgruit seasoned lenders. Additionally, the
LPO that we established in Northeast Ohio in thre thuarter of 2012 has performed ahead of our egpiens, adding approximately $95.0
million in loan growth for 2013.

Total commercial loans have increased $182.2 millar 7.6 percent, from December 31, 2012. CREddmve increased $155.6 million,
or 10.7 percent, due to new loan originations &editansfer of approximately $89.0 million in comstion loans into the CRE portfolio during
2013. Approximately $85.0 million of the CRE grovethme from our LPO in Northeast Ohio. C&l loans@ased $51.1 million, or 6.5
percent, due to new loan originations and increagiédation of lines of credit. Commercial congttion loans have decreased $24.5 millior
14.6 percent, as new originations of approxima®39.0 million and line utilizations of approximate74.0 million were offset with transfers
to permanent loans and loan payoffs.

Residential mortgages increased $59.8 million,Zopdrcent, due to strong originations throughoui®fespite an increase in interest rate

in the second half of the year. We are retaininglB0and 20 year residential real estate loansiiportfolio rather than selling these loans in
the secondary market.
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Commercial loans, including CRE, C&Il, and commdrc@nstruction, comprised 73 percent and 72 peroktdtal portfolio loans at
December 31, 2013 and 2012. Although commerciadaman have a relatively higher risk profile, maaragnt believes these risks are
mitigated through active portfolio management, eowative underwriting standards and continuousfplistreview. The loan-to-value policy
guidelines for CRE loans are generally 65-80 pdra&nboth December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2dr@able rate commercial loans were
78 percent of the commercial loan portfolio.

Consumer loans represent 27 percent of our loatfiofiorat December 31, 2013 compared to 28 peraeBecember 31, 2012. Residential
mortgage lending continues to be a strategic ftlmmigh a centralized mortgage origination depantynengoing product redesign, secondary
market activities and the utilization of commissemmpensated originators. Management believestminued adherence to our conservative
mortgage lending policies for portfolio loans Wik as important in a growing economy as it wasndutfie downturn in recent years. The loan
to-value policy guideline is 80 percent for resiti@rfirst lien mortgages. Higher loan-to-valuersanay be approved with the appropriate
private mortgage insurance coverage. Our polityg enly permit portfolio loans with a maximum teoh20 years for traditional mortgages to
our credit-worthy borrowers, and 15 years with aimaim amortization term of 30 years for balloon p@yt mortgages. We may originate
home equity loans with a lien position that is sett unrelated third party lenders, but normaltjydo the extent that the combined loan-to-
value considering both the first and second lievesdchot exceed 100 percent of the fair value optbperty. Combo mortgage loans consisting
of a residential first mortgage and a home equetpad mortgage are also available to creditwortirydwers.

We also originate and price loans for sale intostheondary market, primarily to Fannie Mae. Thionale for these sales is to mitigate
interest-rate risk associated with holding lowee réong-term residential mortgages in the loarntfpbio, generate fee revenue from sales and
servicing and maintain the primary customer retatfop. In 2011, we began to retain 10 and 15 yeatgages in our portfolio and during 2(
we began retaining the 20 year mortgages that bad priced and underwritten using secondary maekets and guidelines. During 2013 and
2012, we sold $62.9 million and $82.9 million, e#lfamily mortgages to Fannie Mae and currentlyiser$327.4 million of secondary mar
mortgage loans at December 31, 2013 compared .832illion at December 31, 2012. Loans sold torfraMae decreased as compared to
2012 due to the increase in interest rates thatroed in the second half of 2013. We intend to ioar to sell 30 year loans to Fannie Mae.

We also offer a variety of unsecured and secureduwmer loan and credit card products. Loan-to-vglidelines for direct loans are
generally 90-100 percent of invoice for new autoitestand 80-90 percent of National Automobile Dedlssociation value for used
automobiles.

We maintain a General Lending Policy to control dgi@lity of our loan portfolio. The policy delegatine authority to extend loans under
specific guidelines and underwriting standards. Geaeral Lending Policy is formulated by managenaeit reviewed and ratified annually
the Board of Directors. Any exception to the Gehkemding Policy must be approved by the SeniorrL.G@ammittee or the Regional Loan
Committee.
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The following table presents the maturity of consueind commercial loans outstanding as of Dece®ihe2013.

Maturing
Within One
After One But After Five
(dollars in thousands) Year Within Five Years Years Total
Fixed interest rate $ 128,89« $ 315,98:- $ 133,88 $ 578,76¢
Variable interest rate 521,47¢ 666,19! 827,43" 2,015,11.
Total Commercial Loans $ 650,37" $ 982,17! $ 961,32 $2,593,88!
Fixed interest rate 66,56¢ 249,53 298,16: 614,25¢
Variable interest rate 243,84 35,03 79,18:¢ 358,06(
Total Consumer Loans $ 310,40:¢ $ 284,56t $ 377,34 $ 972,31¢
Total Portfolio Loans $ 960,78: $ 1,266,74! $1,338,67 $3,566,19

Credit Quality

Our Criticized Asset Committee meets quarterly arwhitors all special mention loans greater tha® #dillion and all substandard loans
greater than $0.5 million, which typically represtre highest risk of loss to us. Action plans established and these loans will be monitored
through regular contact with the customer, reviéwuwrent financial information and other documéioia, review of all loan or potential loan
restructures/modifications and the regular re-eatédn of assets held as collateral.

Additional credit risk management practices inclpeeodic review and update to lending policies pratedures regarding sound
underwriting practices and portfolio managementeexgtions portfolio stress testing. Further, ouah.&eview process serves to independs
monitor credit quality and assess the effectivenéssedit risk management practices to providersig@t of all corporate lending activities.
Loan Review has the primary responsibility for ass®y commercial credit administration and creditision functions of consumer and
mortgage underwriting, as well as providing inputte loan risk rating process.
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Nonperforming assets, or NPAs, consist of nonat¢doaas, nonaccrual TDRs, and OREO. The followiegresents NPAs for the years
presented:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Nonperforming Loans
Commercial real esta $ 6,852 $20,97: $20,77" $14,67- $52,38(
Commercial and industrii 1,412 5,49¢ 7,57( 2,567 7,48¢
Commercial constructio 34 1,45¢ 3,60¢ 5,84« 21,67
Residential mortgag 1,982 4,52¢ 2,85¢ 5,99¢ 5,58:
Home equity 2,07: 3,31z 2,93¢ 1,43 2,252
Installment and other consurnr 34 40 4 65 20
Consumer constructic — 21¢€ 181 52t —
Total Nonperforming Loans 12,381 36,01¢ 37,93 31,10 89,39¢
Nonaccrual Troubled Debt Restructurings
Commercial real esta 3,89¢ 9,58¢ 10,87: 29,63t 1,40¢
Commercial and industri 1,88¢ 93¢ — 1,00( —
Commercial constructio 2,70¢ 5,32¢ 2,94: 2,14: —
Residential mortgag 1,35¢ 2,752 4,37( — —
Home Equity 21¢ 341 — — —
Installment and other consurr 3 — — — —
Total Nonperforming Troubled Debt Restructurings 10,067 18,94( 18,18¢ 32,77¢ 1,40¢
Total Nonperforming Loans 22,45¢ 54,95¢ 56,11¢ 63,88: 90,80
OREO 41C 911 3,967 5,82( 4,607
Total Nonperforming Assets $22,86¢ $55,86¢ $60,08: $69,70: $95,41-
Nonperforming loans as a percent of total lo 0.6% 1.63% 1.7% 1.9(% 2.67%
Nonperforming assets as a percent of total loams PREC 0.64% 1.6€% 1.92% 2.07% 2.80%

Our policy is to place loans in all categories amaccrual status when collection of interest ongigal is doubtful, or generally when
interest or principal payments are 90 days or rpast due. There were no loans 90 days or moradpasand still accruing at December 31,
2013 or December 31, 2012.

NPAs decreased $33.0 million, or 59 percent, ta%22llion at December 31, 2013 compared to $55IBom at December 31, 2012. The
significant decline in NPAs can be attributed te dontinued improvement of economic conditionsunmarkets and a strategic focus on
actively managing and bringing to resolution owtpem loans. NPAs decreased primarily due to $&0lion in nonperforming loan pay
downs, $13.1 million of nonperforming loan chardés0$9.9 million of nonperforming loans returnitgyaccrual status and the sale of $4.2
million of nonperforming loans. New nonperformirgah formation was $16.5 million for the year en@8d3 compared to $40.8 million for
2012. Our CRE portfolio continues to represengaificant amount of our nonperforming loans at 48cent of the total.
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TDRs are loans where we, for economic or legalaesiselated to a borrowsrfinancial difficulties, grant a concession to bogrower the
we would not otherwise grant. These modified tegeserally include extensions of maturity dates steéed interest rate lower than the cur
market rate for a new loan with similar risk chaeaistics, reductions in contractual interest rateprincipal deferment. While unusual there
may be instances of principal forgiveness. Geneth#ise concessions are for a period of at leashenths. Additionally, we classify loans
where the debt obligation has been discharged gifwauChapter 7 Bankruptcy and not reaffirmed bybidweower as TDRs.

TDRs can be returned to accruing status if the¥alhg criteria are met: 1) the ultimate collectébiof all contractual amounts due,
according to the restructured agreement, is ndoirbt and 2) there is a period of a minimum ofrsbnths of satisfactory payment performe
by the borrower either immediately before or after restructuring. All TDRs will be reported as immed loans for their remaining lives, unl
the restructuring agreement specifies an inteegstaqual to or greater than the rate that woulaicbepted at the time of the restructuring for a
new loan with comparable risk and we fully expéetttthe remaining principal and interest will bélexted according to the restructured
agreement. All impaired loans are reported as romatloans unless the loan is a TDR that has heetéquirements noted above to be
returned to accruing status.

As an example, consider a substandard commeraiatreetion loan that is currently 90 days pastwhere the loan is restructured to
extend the maturity date for a period longer thaubd be considered an insignificant period of tifike post-modification interest rate is not
increased to correspond with the current creditofsthe borrower and all other terms remain thaesaccording to the original loan agreem
This loan will be considered a TDR as the borroiwexperiencing financial difficulty and a concesshas been granted. The loan will be
reported as nonaccrual and as an impaired loam dmR. In addition, the loan could be charged dbwvthe fair value of the collateral if a
confirmed loss exists. If the loan subsequentlyquers, by means of making on-time principal an@iast payments according to the newly
restructured terms for a period of six months, idiglexpected that all remaining principal ancenesst will be collected according to the terms
of the restructured agreement, the loan will barretd to accrual status and reported as an accfldiy The loan will remain an impaired lo
for the remaining life of the loan because therggerate was not adjusted to be equal to or grézde the rate that would have been acceptec
at the time of the restructuring for a new loanhvdbmparable risk.

As of December 31, 2013, we had $49.3 million taltd DRs, including $39.2 million that were perfang and $10.1 million that were in
nonperforming. This is a decrease from Decembe2B12 when we had $60.4 million in TDRs of whiclL$million were performing and
$18.9 million were in nonperforming. For the yeaded December 31, 2013 we had $11.9 million of m&®Rs, the most significant was a
CRE TDR of $4.3 million which had principal forgivess of $0.1 million and a $0.8 million C&l TDR at#d to a maturity date extension.
Additionally, we had 66 loans totaling $2.5 millioglated to Chapter 7 bankruptcy filings that weoé reaffirmed resulting in discharged debt.
For the year ended December 31, 2013 we had sixsTDRE6.9 million that met the above requireméatdeing returned to performing
status.

OREO and other repossessed assets are compripaabefties acquired through foreclosure proceedimgsceptance of a deed in lieu of
a foreclosure. At December 31, 2013, OREO consiste&ight properties, none of which had a balarreatgr than $0.1 million. All OREO
properties have current appraisals. It is our gdiicobtain appraisals annually or sooner if ini@a of impairment exist. Foreclosures
decreased to 14 in 2013 compared to 22 in 2012.
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The following represents delinquency as of Decen3ier

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of % of % of
(dollars in thousands) Amount  Loans Amount  Loans Amount  Loans Amount Loans Amount Loans
90 days or more:
Commercial real esta $10,75( 0.67% $30,55¢ 2.1(% $31,64¢ 2.24% $44,31( 2.9% $53,78¢ 3.77%
Commercial and Industri 3,29¢ 0.3%% 6,43t 0.81% 7,57C 1.1% 3,567 0.4%% 7,48¢ 1.07%
Commercial constructio 2,74z 1.91% 6,77¢  4.02% 6,547 3.41% 7,987 3.0 21,67/ 6.03%
Residential mortgag 3,33¢  0.6%% 7,27¢ 1.7(% 7,22¢ 2.01% 5,99¢ 1.67% 5,58 1.56%
Home equity 2,291 0.55% 3,65 0.85% 2,93¢ 0.71% 1,437  0.32% 2,25z  0.49%
Installment and other consurnr 37 0.0%% 40 0.05% 4 0.01% 65 0.0%% 20 0.02%
Consumer constructic — —% 21€ 8.95% 181 7.42% 52 13.06% — —%
Total Loans $22,45: 0.62% $54,95¢ 1.64% $56,11¢ 1.79% $63,88: 1.9(% $90,807 2.67%
30 to 89 days
Commercial real esta $ 1,41¢ 0.0¢% $ 2,647 0.1¢% $ 9,108 0.64% $ 4,371 0.2% $22,92: 1.60%
Commercial and industri 2,877 0.3&% 4.64¢ 0.59% 5,282 0.71% 1,71¢  0.2&% 1,241 0.18%
Commercial constructio 1,80C 1.25% 10,54: 6.27% — —% 83t 0.32% 89S 0.25%
Residential mortgag 2,49¢ 0.51% 3,661 0.8t% 2,40 0.61% 1,34¢  0.37% 5,151 1.44%
Home equity 3,127 0.7%% 3,197 0.74% 2,89C 0.7(% 2,451  0.56% 2,10¢€ 0.46%
Installment and other consurr 42¢  0.62% 501 0.6&% 45z 0.61% 34z 0.46% 85z 1.05%
Consumer constructic — —% — —% — —% — —% — —%
Total Loans $12,14( 0.34% $25,19( 0.7%% $20,13¢ 0.64% $11,05¢ 0.3%% $33,17: 0.98%

Closed-end installment loans, amortizing loans meEtby real estate and any other loans with paysreatteduled monthly are reported
past due when the borrower is in arrears two oemaoonthly payments. Other multi-payment obligatiauith payments scheduled other than
monthly are reported past due when one schedulgders is due and unpaid for 30 days or more. Weitniodelinquency on a monthly basis,
including early stage delinquencies of 30 to 89sdagst due for early identification of potentiablplem loans.

Loans past due 90 days or more decreased $32ibmithmpared to December 31, 2012 and represeni0odB percent of total loans at
December 31, 2013. Loans past due by 30 to 89dyeased $13.1 million, representing only 0.34qrof total loans at December 31,
2013. Delinquency improved in all loan categorte®tighout 2013 due to improved economic conditems managemerstfocus on managil
delinquent loans.

Allowance for Loan Losses

We maintain an ALL at a level determined to be adée to absorb estimated probable credit lossesenhwithin the loan portfolio as of
the balance sheet date. Determination of an adeduat is inherently subjective, as it requires estions of the occurrence of future events.
The methodology for determining the ALL has two medmponents: evaluation and impairment testsdiidual loans and impairment tests
of certain groups of homogeneous loans with sinmitde characteristics.

We monitor our ALL methodology to ensure that itésponsive to the current economic environmenér@hwe past year, the economic
conditions within our markets have improved, andhaee experienced significant improvement in oedirquality, including lower net
charge-offs, lower delinquency, lower non-perforgnioans and lower special mention and substandartslcompared
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to December 31, 2012. Accordingly, the assumptisesl within the ALL were reevaluated in the thitchger of 2013 to be responsive to the
improved economic environment and the changesrirci@dit quality.

The ALL methodology for groups of loans collectiyelvaluated for impairment is comprised of bottuargitative and qualitative analy:s
A key assumption in the quantitative componentefreserve is the LEP. The LEP is an estimatesotterage amount of time from the point
at which a loss is incurred on a loan to the painwhich the loss is confirmed. In general, the MAPbe shorter in an economic slowdown or
recession and longer during times of economic Ktabr growth, as customers are better able tayledss confirmation after a potential loss
event has occurred. Due to the recent improvenmeetdnomic conditions, we completed an internalystutilizing our loan charge-off history
to recalibrate the LEPs of the commercial portfeégments. Consistent with the improved economiditions, the LEPs have lengthened,
as a result, we lengthened our LEP assumptionafoin ef the commercial portfolio segments. We belithat the consumer portfolio segment
LEPs have also lengthened as they are influencédebgame improvement in economic conditions tingiicted the commercial portfolio
segments. We therefore also lengthened the LEPmusiun for the consumer portfolio to one and a katirs.

The changes made to the ALL assumptions were appligspectively and did not result in a materiaraie to the total ALL. Lengthening
the LEP does increase the historical loss rategtrerdfore the quantitative component of the ALLe Bé&lieve this makes the quantitative
component of the ALL more reflective of inherentédes that exist within the loan portfolio, whickuked in a decrease in the qualitative
component of the ALL. The changes to the LEPs mtgwoved our insight into the inherent risk of thdividual commercial portfolio
segments. As the economic conditions have improveddata indicates that the CRE segment hasnéssant loss and that the C&l segment
contains greater inherent loss. The ALL at Decen3ie013 reflects these changes within the CREGSidportfolio segments.

Consumer unsecured loans and secured loans thabtareal estate secured are evaluated for chaffgdter the loan becomes 90 days |
due. At that time, unsecured loans are fully chéwgié and secured loans are chargéfito the estimated fair value of the collateesdd the co
to sell. Consumer loans secured by real estatevaleated for chargeff after the loan balance becomes 90 days pasaddeare charged do
to the estimated fair value of the collateral lesst to sell.

Our charge-off policy for commercial loans requitiest loans and other obligations that are noectitble be promptly charged-off when a
confirmed loss exists, regardless of the delinquetatus of the loan. We may elect to recognizartigd charge-off when management has
determined that the value of collateral is less tiee remaining investment in the loan. A loan loigation does not need to be charged-off,
regardless of delinquency status, if (i) managerhastdetermined there exists sufficient collaterarotect the remaining loan balance and
(ii) there exists a strategy to liquidate the deltal. Management may also consider a number efr dtictors to determine when a charge-off is
appropriate. These factors may include, but ardimited to:

» The status of a bankruptcy proceeding;
e The value of collateral and probability of succaktfuidation; and/or
» The status of adverse proceedings or litigatioh iy result in collection.
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The following summarizes our loan charge-off exgece for each of the five years presented below:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ALL Balance at Beginning of Year: $ 46,48 $ 48,84: $ 51,38 $ 59,58( $ 42,68¢
Charge-offs:
Commercial real esta (4,607) (9,627 (8,829 (23,925 (8,79%)
Commercial and industrii (2,719 (5,279 (8,977 (7,277) (29,350
Commercial constructio (4,857) (20,52) (2,720 (6,357%) (12,399
Consumer real esta (2,407 (2,509 (2,617 (2,210 (4,55¢)
Other consume (1,002) (1,079 (1,019 (1,267) (1,7672)
Total (15,576 (29,017 (23,145 (41,027 (56,86:)
Recoveries:
Commercial real esta 3,38¢ 1,25¢ 78C 57¢ 70
Commercial and industri 2,14: 1,157 357 32¢ 532
Commercial constructio 531 891 2,46: 1,74¢ —
Consumer real esta 651 197 1,03( 20z 27€
Other consume 324 341 36C 46¢ 521
Total 7,03¢ 3,841 4,99( 3,32 1,39¢
Net Charge-offs (8,540 (25,177) (18,15% (37,709 (55,467)
Provision for loan losse 8,311 22,81°¢ 15,60¢ 29,51 72,35¢
Acquired loan loss resen — — — —
ALL Balance at End of Year: $ 46,25¢ $ 46,48 $ 48,84 $ 51,38 $ 59,58(

Net loan charge-offs decreased $16.6 million, opé&ent, to $8.5 million or 0.25 percent of averémans for 2013 as compared to $25.2
million or 0.78 percent of average loans for 2012 decrease in net charge-offs is due to impreeetomic conditions which resulted in
stabilized collateral valuations, management’s oo workouts with our problem loans and higheovecies in 2013. All commercial
portfolio segments declined with a $7.2 million dexse in CRE, $3.6 million decrease in C&I and $bilion decrease in commercial
construction. In 2013, we experienced higher redesen our CRE and C&I portfolio, including a $llion recovery of a CRE loan and a
$0.9 million recovery of a C&l loan.

The following table summarizes net charge-offs per@entage of average loans and other ratios Bs@mber 31:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Commercial real esta 0.0¢% 0.5%% 0.55 % 1.42% 3.42%
Commercial and industrii 0.07% 0.57% 1.24 % 1.62% 0.62%
Commercial constructio 2.72% 5.94% (0.34% 0.9€% 3.74%
Consumer real esta 0.2(% 0.28% 0.20 % 0.24% 0.50%
Other consume 0.9% 0.91% 0.94 % 1.04% 1.52%
Net charg-offs to average loans outstand 0.25% 0.7¢% 0.56 % 1.11% 1.60%
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of togals 1.3(% 1.38% 1.56 % 1.52% 1.75%
Allowance for loan losses to total nonperformingre 206% 85% 87 % 80% 66%
Provision for loan losses as a percentage of gt dharg-offs 97% 91% 86 % 78% 130%
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An inherent risk to the loan portfolio as a whdadhe condition of the local economy. In additieach loan segment carries with it risks
specific to the segment. We develop and documepsi@matic ALL methodology based on the followimgtfolio segments: 1) CRE, 2) C&l,
3) Commercial Construction, 4) Consumer Real Estate5) Other Consumer.

CRE loans are secured by commercial purpose resibedcluding both owner occupied properties iamdstment properties for various
purposes such as hotels, strip malls and apartmedisidual project cash flows, as well as globash flows, are generally the sources of
repayment for these loans. Besides cash flow riSRE loans have collateral risk and risks basedh tipe business prospects of the lessee, if
the project is not owner occupied.

C&l loans are made to operating companies or matwfars for the purpose of production, operatingacity, accounts receivable,
inventory or equipment financing. Collateral foedle types of loans often do not have sufficientevéh a distressed or liquidation scenario to
satisfy the outstanding debt. Cash flow from therafions of the company is the primary source payenent for these loans and the cash flow
depends not only on the economy as a whole, bataighe health of the company’s industry.

Commercial construction loans are made to finaestruction of buildings or other structures, adl a®to finance the acquisition and
development of raw land for various purposes. Wihigerisk is generally confined to the constructp@mniod, if there are problems, the project
may not be completed, and as such, may not prautfecient cash flow on its own to service the debhave sufficient value in a liquidation
cover the outstanding principal. There are als@uarrisks depending on the type of project ancettpgerience and resources of the developel

Consumer real estate loans are secured by 1-4yfaesidences, including purchase money mortgagesahd second lien home equity
loans and home equity lines of credit. The primsoyrce of repayment for these loans is the incamleaasets of the borrower. The
unemployment rate, as well as the state of thd lomasing markets, has a significant impact onrtble determination, because low demand
and/or declining home values can limit the abitifyporrowers to sell a property and satisfy thetdeb

Other consumer loans are made to individuals andbeaecured by assets other than 1-4 family res&te or may be unsecured. This
class of loans includes auto loans, unsecured ¢indsredit cards. The primary source of repayrf@rthese loans is the income and assets o
the borrower so the local unemployment rate isgwortant indicator of risk. The value of the cadlat, if there is any, is less likely to be a
source of repayment due to less certain collatexales.

The following is the ALL balance by portfolio segmes of December 31:

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
% of % of % of % of

% of
(dollars in thousands) Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Total Amount Tgtal
Commercial real esta $18,92: 41% $25,24¢ 54% $29,80: 61% $30,42/ 58% $27,32: 46%
Commercial and industrii 14,44 31% 7,75¢ 1% 11,27 23% 9,771 1% 21,39 36%
Commercial constructio 5,37¢ 12% 7,50( 1€% 3,70z 8% 5,90¢ 11% 8,00¢ 13%
Consumer real esta 6,36: 14% 5,05¢ 11% 3,16¢ 6% 3,96: 8% 2,14: 4%
Other consume 1,16¢ 2% 921 2% 894 2% 1,31¢ 3% 714 1%
Total $46,25¢ 100% $46,48: 10(% $48,84. 10(% $51,387 10(% $59,58( 100%

Significant to our ALL is a higher concentrationaasfmmercial loans. At December 31, 2013, approxéged4 percent of the ALL related
to the commercial loan portfolio, while commerd@ns comprised 73 percent of our loan portfolie perienced higher losses in our
commercial portfolios compared to our consumerfpbiotthroughout the economic crisis. The abilify o
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customers to repay commercial loans is more depegngi®n the success of their business, continuiagme and general economic conditions
Accordingly, the risk of loss may be higher on si@dns compared to consumer loans, which haverieddower losses in our market.

Due to the greater potential for loss within oumeoercial portfolio, we monitor the commercial Igaortfolio through an internal risk
rating system. Loan risk ratings are assigned baped the creditworthiness of the borrower andrevéewed on an ongoing basis. Loans rate
special mention or substandard have potential drdedined weaknesses not generally found in highlity, performing loans, and require
attention from management to limit loss. Commersidi-standard and special mention loans decred=ksi@®million, or 47 percent, from
$309.0 million at December 31, 2012 to $163.0 wrillat December 31, 2013.

The following table summarizes the ALL balance BBecember 31.:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Collectively Evaluated for Impairme $46,15¢ $44,25: $43,29¢ $47,75¢ $42,57:
Individually Evaluated for Impairmel 97 2,231 5,54¢ 3,631 17,00
Total Allowance for Loan Losses $46,25¢ $46,48¢ $48,84: $51,38: $59,58(

The balance in the ALL decreased $0.2 million t6.84million, or 1.30 percent of total loans, at Bexber 31, 2013 as compared to $46.5
million, or 1.38 percent of total loans at Decem®gy2012. The slight decrease in the ALL is dua tiecrease of $2.1 million in specific
reserves associated with loans individually evalddbr impairment offset by an increase of $1.9iarilin the general reserve. The
December 31, 2013 ALL includes $0.1 million of sifieceserves that were allocated for impaired bah$52.9 million compared to $2.2
million of specific reserves that were allocatedifopaired loans of $82.6 million at December 3112 Impaired loans decreased
$29.7 million, or 36 percent, from December 31,2Qdrimarily a result of loan pay downs, charges@fhd the sale of $4.1million of impaired
loans during the third and fourth quarters of 2Bther, new impaired loan formation has beendowng 2013 with only $7.8 million of ne
impaired loans resulting in minimal specific resnat December 31, 2013. The reserve for loansatdlély evaluated for impairment
increased $1.9 million from December 31, 2012. Whik have been experiencing improvement in out gssdity, we still believe that there
inherent risk within the portfolio and have maingd the level of the reserve relatively consistéttt the prior year.

The composition of the reserve has changed wittifaaf reserves from our CRE portfolio to our Cgdrtfolio. As discussed above, our
recent study of the LEP resulted in an improvedimsinto the inherent risk of the commercial politi segments. As the economic
conditions have improved, our data indicates thatGRE segment has less risk of inherent losstaidhe C&l segment contains a greater
of inherent loss. In 2012, we experienced stressiircommercial construction portfolio, with netache-offs of $9.6 million. We continue to
experience elevated losses in our commercial aoctgtn portfolio with net charge-offs of $4.3 mali during 2013, which was primarily the
result of one land development project. The logsasred in this portfolio are primarily relatedland development projects that had slowed
during the economic downturn, resulting in sigrafit reductions in the appraised values. Many cfdleans have been extended resulting in
the loan becoming a TDR, and consequently an iragdaan.

Federal Home Loan Bank and Other Restricted Stock

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we held FHLB std&1@.8 million and $14.5 million. This investmésatcarried at cost and evaluated
for impairment based on the ultimate recoverabdityhe
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par value. We hold FHLB stock because we are a reeoifithe FHLB of Pittsburgh. The FHLB requires niers to purchase and hold a
specified level of FHLB stock based upon on the imers’ asset values, level of borrowings and padiidn in other programs offered. Stock
in the FHLB is non-marketable and is redeemabteetiscretion of the FHLB. Members do not purchetsek in the FHLB for the same
reasons that traditional equity investors acquielksin an investor-owned enterprise. Rather, memperchase stock to obtain access to the
products and services offered by the FHLB. Unligaity securities of traditional for-profit enterpess, the stock of the FHLB does not provide
its holders with an opportunity for capital appegitin because, by regulation, FHLB stock can oelypbrchased, redeemed and transferred a
par value.

On February 22, 2012, the FHLB of Pittsburgh anmedirthat it would pay a dividend on the averagétabgtock balance held during the
three month period ended December 31, 2012 ataumadined rate of 0.10 percent for the first timacsi late 2008, noting that future dividend
payments and capital stock repurchases will coattowbe reviewed on a quarterly basis. During 2H8FHLB continued to declare and pay
dividends on a quarterly basis. We received $0lliomiin FHLB dividends and received $6.0 milliohstock redemptions from the FHLB,
offset with $4.3 million in loan stock purchasesotighout 2013. We reviewed and evaluated the FHijital stock for OTTI at December 31,
2013. The FHLB reported improved earnings througl2813 compared to 2012 and continues to exceexdpifal ratios required.

Additionally, we considered that the FHLB has bpaxging dividends and redeeming excess stock d@®g and throughout 2013.
Accordingly, we believe sufficient evidence exigiconclude that no OTTI exists at December 313201

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, we held Atlantic @amity Bankers’ Bank, or ACBB, stock of $0.8 millidor both years. This
investment is carried at cost and evaluated fomimpent based on the ultimate recoverability ofitheestment. Like FHLB stock, members
purchase ACBB stock to access the products anitseraffered, as opposed to traditional equity #ees who acquire stock for purposes suc
as appreciation in value. S&T acquired the ACBR:ktas a result of bank acquisitions and does rothes bank’s member services. ACBB
continues to be classified as well capitalizeddgutatory guidelines and the current purchase foiceew members is $3,500 per share. As o
December 31, 2013, the book value of ACBB stock $8624 per share; therefore, management belibaesio OTTI exists at December 31,
2013.

Deposits
The following table presents the composition ofaits at December 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 $ Change

Noninteres-bearing deman $ 992,77 $ 960,98( $ 31,79¢
Interes-bearing deman 312,79( 316,76( (3,970
Money marke 281,40: 361,23: (79,830)
Savings 994,80! 965,57: 29,23
Certificates of depos 922,78( 1,022,18I (99,400
CDARs and brokered depos 167,75: 11,70¢ 156,04
Total $3,672,30 $3,638,42 $ 33,88(

Deposits are the primary source of funds for us.béleeve that our deposit base is stable and thdtave the ability to attract new
deposits, mitigating any funding dependency onroth@re volatile sources. Total deposits increas®i%million to $3.7 billion at
December 31, 2013 compared to $3.6 billion at Démd1, 2012.
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The low interest rate environment impacted the aVemix of our deposits as CD maturities at higrages shifted into our savings and
demand products. Money market deposits decreasidyraa a result of our Wealth Management divisieallocating $50.4 million to other
types of investments.

Our Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Sergicer CDARS, deposits and brokered CD depositeasad $156.0 million from
December 31, 2012. We patrticipate in the CDARSprecial and OWB programs through the Promontoryriintencial Network, LLC.
Reciprocal deposits are customer funds exchangea@insured depository institutions that are memmioéthe CDARS deposit placement
service. The CDARS OWB program allows us to obtelimlesale funding through the CDARs deposit plag#rservice. As of December 31,
2013, we had $15.5 million in CDARSs reciprocal dgifpand $81.4 million in CDARs OWB deposits, acr@ase of $5.7 million and $79.6
million from December 31, 2012. As of December 3113, we had $70.8 million in brokered CDs. Pguition in the CDARs OWB Program
and issuing brokered CDs is an ALCO strategy toeiase and diversify funding sources, as well asagamhe banks funding costs and
structure.

The daily average balance of deposits and ratesquadeposits are summarized for the years endedrblger 31 in the following table:

2013 2012 2011

(dollars in thousands) Amount Rate Amount Rate Amount Rate
Noninteres-bearing deman $ 95547! $ 877,05t $ 79291

Interes-bearing deman 309,74¢ 0.02% 306,99: 0.05% 286,58 0.13%
Money marke 319,83: 0.14% 308,71¢ 0.17% 249,49 0.15%
Savings 1,001,20 0.17% 902,88t 0.26% 761,27: 0.17%
Certificates of depos 980,93: 0.91% 1,093,89 1.25% 1,174,85! 1.78%
CDARs and brokered depos 73,51¢ 0.32% 10,36 0.2&% 6,967 0.87%
Total $ 3,640,71. 0.31% $ 3,499,92 0.48%  $ 3,272,09: 0.70%

Certificates of deposit of $100,000 and over, idolg CDARS, accounted for 12 percent of total dépad December 31, 2013 and ten
percent of total deposits at December 31, 2012 paincarily represent deposit relationships withdbcustomers in our market area.

Maturities of certificates of deposit of $100,000nwore outstanding at December 31, 2013, includB@\Rs and brokered deposits, are
summarized as follows:

(dollars in thousands) 2013
Three months or les $ 197,25
Over three through six mont 68,24(
Over six through twelve monti 59,77¢
Over twelve month 108,54

Total $ 433,82:
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Borrowings
The following table represents the compositionafrbwings for the years ended December 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 $ Change

Securities sold under repurchase agreements, $ 33,847 $ 62,58 $(28,73%)
Shor-term borrowings 140,00( 75,00( 65,00(
Long-term borrowings 21,81( 34,10: (12,29)
Junior subordinated debt securit 45,61¢ 90,61¢ (45,000
Total Borrowings $241,27¢ $262,30: $(21,02¢)

Borrowings are an additional source of fundingdsr Short-term borrowings are for terms under aw and were comprised primarily of
FHLB advances. We define repurchase agreementsowittocal retail customers as retail REPO. Seesrjpledged as collateral under these
REPO financing arrangements cannot be sold ordgplby the secured party and are therefore aceddiot as a secured borrowing. FHLB
advances are for various terms secured by a bldiekedn residential mortgages and other real estatured loans. Long-term borrowings are
for terms greater than one year and consist of FHbBowings. The purpose of long-term borrowing®imatch-fund selected new loan
originations, to mitigate interest rate sensitivigks and to take advantage of discounted borrgwates through the FHLB for community
investment projects.

The decrease in borrowings of $21.0 million is @ity within our junior subordinated debt secustiellowing the early repayment of
$45.0 million in junior subordinated debt duringl30 We repaid $45.0 million of junior subordinatiebt due to its diminishing regulatory
capital benefit and the future positive impact etinterest income. Long term borrowings decredse$il2.3 million mainly as a result of
maturities during the year. Retail REPOs decrehge®8.7 million due to a change in customer pegfee following a restructuring of the
product. We have replaced the junior subordinatdat dnd other long-term borrowings with short-téfHLB advances due to lower rates
offered on these borrowings.

Information pertaining to short-term borrowingsienmarized in the tables below for the dates ptedeand for the years ended
December 31,

Securities Sold Under Repurchase Agreements

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at December : $ 33,84% $ 62,58 $ 30,37(
Average balance during the ye 54,05' 47,38¢ 41,58«
Average interest rate during the y 0.12% 0.17% 0.13%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $ 83,76¢ $ 62,58 $ 42,40¢
Average interest rate at Decembel 0.01% 0.2(% 0.11%
Short -Term Borrowings
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at December . $ 140,00( $ 75,00( $ 75,00(
Average balance during the ye 101,97. 50,21: 551
Average interest rate during the y 0.27% 0.24% 0.32%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $ 175,00( $  75,00( $ 75,00(
Average interest rate at Decembel 0.3(% 0.1%% 0.18%
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Information pertaining to long-term borrowings istamarized in the tables below for the dates preseand for the years ended
December 31,

Long -Term Borrowings

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at December . $ 21,81( $ 34,10 $ 31,87
Average balance during the ye 24,31z 33,84: 31,65
Average interest rate during the y 3.07% 3.26% 3.45%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $ 28,91 $ 40,66¢ $ 33,05
Average interest rate at Decembel 3.01% 3.17% 3.40%
Junior Subordinated Debt Securities
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at December : $ 45,61¢ $ 90,61¢ $ 90,61¢
Average balance during the ye 65,98¢ 90,61¢ 90,61¢
Average interest rate during the y 3.14% 3.21% 4.01%
Maximum montl-end balance during the ye $ 90,61¢ $ 90,61¢ $ 90,61¢
Average interest rate at Decembel 2.7(% 3.01% 3.24%

During 2013, long-term borrowings decreased $14lBom as compared to December 31, 2012. At Decerlie2013, our long-term
borrowings outstanding of $21.8 million included$4 million that were at a fixed rate and $3.1 ioillat a variable rate.

During the third quarter of 2006, we issued $25ililon of junior subordinated debentures throughomled transaction at an initial fixed
rate of 6.78 percent. Beginning September 15, 20itilquarterly thereafter, we have had the opticedeem the subordinated debt, subject tc
a 30 day written notice and prior approval by tlEE. The subordinated debt converted to a variedtie of 3-month LIBOR plus 160 basis
points in September of 2011. The subordinated dedalifies as Tier 2 capital under regulatory guited and will mature on December 15,
2036.

During the first quarter of 2008, we completed i@gte placement to a financial institution of $2eén0lion of floating rate trust preferred
securities. The trust preferred securities matutdarch 2038, are callable at our option after frears and had an interest rate initially at a
of 6.44 percent per annum and quarterly adjusts i three-month LIBOR plus 350 basis points. \Wgan making interest payments to the
trustee on June 15, 2008 and quarterly theredfer trust preferred securities qualify as Tier fiitzd under regulatory guidelines. To issue
these trust preferred securities, we formed STBAIt@hTrust |, or the Trust, with $0.6 million ofjeity, which is owned 100 percent by us.
The proceeds from the sale of the trust prefereedrities and the issuance of common equity weresited in junior subordinated debt, which
is the sole asset of the Trust. The Trust paysldivils on the trust preferred securities at the sataes the interest we pay on the junior
subordinate debt held by the Trust. Because thé-gairty investors are the primary beneficiaries, thest qualifies as a variable interest en
but is not consolidated in our financial statements

During the second quarter of 2008, we issued $20ln of junior subordinated debt through a ptalacement with three financial
institutions at an initial rate of 6.40 percentttfieats quarterly with 3-month LIBOR plus 350 tmpbints. The subordinated debt qualified as
Tier 2 Capital under regulatory guidelines, budlifor any portion of the subordinated debt cedsdik deemed Tier 2 Capital due to a change
in applicable capital regulations, we had the rightedeem, on any interest payment date, sutgexB0 day written notice and prior approval
by the FDIC, the
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subordinated debt at the applicable redemption Tdte redemption rate started at a high of 102e82gmt at June 15, 2009 and decreased
yearly to 100 percent on June 15, 2013 and themreeduld be called. We received approval from tBéd-to redeem early, and we did so
June 17, 2013. The subordinated debt would havaredbn June 15, 2018.

Also during the second quarter of 2008, we iss®&IGmillion of junior subordinated debt througpravate placement with a financial
institution at an initial rate of 5.15 percent tiaats quarterly with 3-month LIBOR plus 250 bagants. At any time after May 30, 2013, we
had the right to redeem all or a portion of thessdmated debt, subject to a 30-day written nagicd prior approval by the FDIC. The
subordinated debt qualified as Tier 2 capital umdgulatory guidelines and would have matured ol B 2018. However, we received
approval by the FDIC to redeem this junior subaatid debt early, and redeemed it also on June0lB. 2

We chose to redeem the $45.0 million of junior sdbwted debt early not only because of its diniimg regulatory capital benefit, but
also for a future positive impact on net interesbime. We have replaced the debt with lower rabet $orm advances from the FHLB.

Wealth Management Assets

As of December 31, 2013, the fair value of the S8ank Wealth Management assets under managemeadamdistration, or AUM,
which are not accounted for as part of our asgeteeased to $1.9 billion from $1.7 billion as oé&mber 31, 2012. AUM consist of $1.0
billion in S&T Trust, $0.7 billion in S&T Financigbervices and $0.2 billion in Stewart Capital Advis The increase in 2013 is primarily
attributable to the improved performance of the.ldu®l global capital markets.

Explanation of Use of Non-GAAP Financial Measures

In addition to the results of operations preseinieatcordance with GAAP, our management uses, laadRieport contains or references,
certain non-GAAP financial measures, such as rietest income on a FTE basis, operating revenughenefficiency ratio. We believe these
non-GAAP financial measures provide informationfukte investors in understanding our underlying@@ional performance and our
business and performance trends as they facittatgarisons with the performance of other companidise financial services industry.
Although we believe that these non-GAAP financiglasures enhance investors’ understanding of oimdsssand performance, these non-
GAAP financial measures should not be consideregltemative to GAAP or considered to be more ingrarthan financial results determir
in accordance with GAAP, nor is it necessarily canagiple with non-GAAP measures which may be preddngether companies.

We believe the presentation of net interest incoma FTE basis ensures comparability of net inténesme arising from both taxable ¢
tax-exempt sources and is consistent with indystagtice. Interest income per the ConsolidatedeStants of Net Income is reconciled to net
interest income adjusted to a FTE basis on pagesng32.

Operating revenue is the sum of net interest incplue noninterest income, excluding security géiisses and non-recurring income and
expenses. In order to understand the significahoetdanterest income to our business and operaéaglts, we believe it is appropriate to
evaluate the significance of net interest incoma esmponent of operating revenue.

The efficiency ratio is recurring noninterest exgedivided by recurring noninterest income plusimetrest income, on a FTE basis, wt
ensures comparability of net interest income agi$iom both taxable and tax-exempt sources andrisistent with industry practice.
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Common return on average tangible assets, comnt@mren average tangible common equity and the wdttangible common equity to
tangible assets exclude goodwill, other intang#sisets and preferred equity in order to show tafssance of the tangible elements of our
assets and common equity. Total assets and tated@® assets are reconciled to total tangiblesaasettotal tangible average assets on page
26. Total shareholders equity and total averagesslotéders equity are also reconciled to total talegtommon equity and total tangible avel
common equity on page 26. These measures are mnsigth industry practice.

Capital Resources

Shareholders’ equity increased $33.9 million toX87million at December 31, 2013 compared to $5&7ldon at December 31, 2012.
The increase in shareholders’ equity is primarikg do the addition of $32.1 million in retainedr@ags, comprised of net income of $50.5
million reduced by common stock dividends of $1®illion. Included in other comprehensive incomesélpwas an increase of $0.9 million
due to the adjustment in the funded status of thel@yee benefit plans offset by the change in U@ gains on securities available-for-sale,
both due to the rise in interest rates during #dteet half of the year.

We continue to maintain a strong capital positiatiha leverage ratio of 9.75 percent as comparédkdeaaegulatory guideline of 5.00
percent to be well capitalized. Our risk-based Tiend Total capital ratios were 12.37 percentlh@6 percent at December 31, 2013, which
places us significantly above the federal bank letgry agencies’ “well capitalized” guidelines ab6 percent and 10.00 percent for Tier 1 an
Total capital. We believe that we have the abilityaise additional capital, if necessary.

In October 2012, we filed a shelf registration esta¢nt on Form S-3 under the Securities Act of 1883mended, with the SEC for the
issuance of up to $300.0 million of a variety ofties including, debt and capital securitiegferred and common stock and warrants. We
may use the proceeds from the issuance of anyisesudor general corporate purposes, which contdiide investments at the holding
company level, investing in, or extending credijtdor subsidiaries, possible acquisitions and stepkirchases. As of December 31, 2013, we
had not issued any securities pursuant to the sigifftration statement.
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

Contractual Obligations

Contractual obligations represent future cash cdmanits and liabilities under agreements with tpiadties and exclude contingent
contractual liabilities for which we cannot reasblygredict future payments. We have various finanabligations, including contractual
obligations and commitments that may require futtiaeh payments. The following table presents &eoember 31, 2013, significant fixed
and determinable contractual obligations to thadips by payment date:

Payments Due In

(dollars in thousands) 2014 2015-2016 2017-2018 Later Years Total
Deposits without a stated matur® $2581,77 $ — % — 3 —  $2,581,77
Certificates of depos® 677,67 284,35¢ 120,10t 8,39/ 1,090,53
Securities sold under repurchase agreen® 33,84% — — — 33,84%
Shor-term borrowing<® 140,00( — — — 140,00(
Long-term borrowing«® 2,36¢ 4,73( 4,90¢ 9,80z 21,81(
Junior subordinated desecurities®) — — — 45,61¢ 45,61¢
Operating and capital leas 2,23: 4,31¢ 4,10( 42,24+ 52,89¢
Purchase obligatior 9,852 20,49¢ 21,61t — 51,96¢
Total $ 3,447,75. $313,90: $150,73( $ 106,06( $ 4,018,441

@) Excludes interes

Operating lease obligations represent short angHierm lease arrangements as described in Péterii,8, Note 10 Premises and
Equipment, in the Consolidated Financial Statemdhischase obligations primarily represent oblmaiunder agreement with our third party
data processing servicer and communications chaigdsscribed in Part I, Item 8, Note 17 Committe@md Contingencies, of this Report.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of business, we offer off-beéasheet credit arrangements to enable our cusgdmeneet their financing objectives.
These instruments involve, to varying degrees, efgmof credit and interest rate risk in excegh@famount recognized in the financial
statements. Our exposure to credit loss, in thatehe customer does not satisfy the terms of gheeanent, equals the contractual amount of
the obligation less the value of any collateral. &pely the same credit policies in making committaemd standby letters of credit that are
used for the underwriting of loans to customeran@itments generally have fixed expiration datesuahrenewals or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Becaasyg of the commitments are expected to expire witheing drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily representdidash requirements.

The following table sets forth the commitments &iters of credit as of December 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Commitments to extend cre« $ 1,038,52! $ 874,13
Standby letters of crec 78,63¢ 95,39¢
Total $ 1,117,16: $ 969,53¢
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Item 7. MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FI NANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS —
continued

Estimates of the fair value of these off-balanceeslitems were not made because of the short-tatanenof these arrangements and the
credit standing of the counterparties.

Our allowance for unfunded commitments is deterchinging a methodology similar to that used to aetee the ALL. Amounts are add
to the allowance for unfunded commitments througharge to current earnings in noninterest expértse balance in the allowance for
unfunded commitments remained relatively uncharegek?.9 million at December 31, 2013 compared t0 $dllion at December 31, 2012.
Liquidity

Liquidity is defined as a financial institutianability to meet its cash and collateral obligasi@t a reasonable cost. This includes the a
to satisfy the financial needs of depositors whatwa withdraw funds or of borrowers needing toesscfunds to meet their credit needs. In
order to manage liquidity risk our Board of Direrstdnas delegated authority to the ALCO for formiolatimplementation and oversight of
liquidity risk management for S&T and S&T Bank. ADG goal is to maintain adequate levels of liquidit a reasonable cost to meet funding
needs in both a normal operating environment angdtential liquidity stress events. ALCO monitarsd manages liquidity through various
ratios, reviewing cash flow projections, performstwprt-term and long-term stress tests and by favidetailed contingency funding plan.
ALCO policy guidelines are in place that definedyrated risk tolerances. If our liquidity positiorowes to a level that has been defined as hig
risk, specific actions are required, such as irm@damonitoring or the development of an action ptareduce the risk position.

Our primary funding and liquidity source is a stalleposit base. We believe S&T Bank has the aliditgtain existing and attract new
deposits, mitigating any funding dependency onrothere volatile sources. Refer to the DepositsiSedf this Part Il, Item 7, MD&A, for
additional discussion on deposits. Although degaasié the primary source of funds, we have idemtifiarious funding sources that can be
as part of our normal funding program when eithstracture or cost efficiency has been identifiliese funding sources include borrowing
availability at the FHLB, Federal Funds lines watifer financial institutions and access to the brel certificates of deposit market including
CDARs.

An important component of S&T’s ability to effeatly respond to potential liquidity stress eventantaining a cushion of highly liquid
assets. At December 31, 2013 we had $314.4 miltidrighly liquid assets, which consisted of $53.iam in interest—bearing deposits with
banks, $259.0 million in unpledged securities add $nillion loans held for sale. The highly liguadsets to total assets resulted in an asset
liquidity ratio of 7.0 percent on December 31, 20ABo, at December 31, 2013, we had a remainimgplaong availability of $1.4 billion with
the FHLB of Pittsburgh. In addition, we have acdes$60.0 million in Federal Funds lines with otfieancial institutions. Refer to Part I,
Item 8, Notes 15 and 16 Short-term and Long-termdwgngs, and the Borrowings section of this Phritém 7, MD&A, for more details on
FHLB borrowings. We are considered well capitalized bank accordinggulatory guidance, therefore access to brok€2slare not
restricted.

Inflation

Management is aware of the significant effect tidia has on interest rates and can have on finbperéormance. Our ability to cope with
this is best determined by analyzing our capabitityespond to changing interest rates and ouityalil manage noninterest income and
expense. We monitor the mix of interest-rate semséssets and liabilities through ALCO in ordergduce the impact of inflation on net
interest income. We also control the effects datidn by reviewing the prices of our products aedvices, by introducing new products and
services and by controlling overhead expenses.
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk is defined as the degree to which cleang interest rates, foreign exchange rates, calitynprices or equity prices can
adversely affect a financial institution’s earnirggscapital. For most financial institutions, inding S&T, market risk primarily reflects
exposures to changes in interest rates. Interesflu@tuations affect earnings by changing nednest income and other interest-sensitive
income and expense levels. Interest rate chanfgst afpital by changing the net present value lmdirak’s future cash flows, and the cash
flows themselves, as rates change. Accepting igkds a normal part of banking and can be an ingmdrsource of profitability and sharehol
value. However, excessive interest rate risk cegatlen a bank’s earnings, capital, liquidity anidesacy. Our sensitivity to changes in interest
rate movements is continually monitored by ALCO.@Q monitors and manages market risk through raieksanalyses, economic value of
equity, or EVE, analysis and simulations in ordemitigate earnings and market value fluctuatioms th changes in interest rates.

Rate shock analyses results are compared to achasdo provide an estimate of the impact that etadte changes may have on 12
months of pretax net interest income. The base aradeate shock analyses are performed on a b&ltiace sheet. A static balance sheet is a
no growth balance sheet in which all maturing andépricing cash flows are reinvested in the samoeuyrct at the existing product spread. F
shock analyses assume an immediate parallel shifiairket interest rates and also include manageassuoimptions regarding the level of
interest rate changes on non-maturity deposit prisdimoninterest-bearing demand, interest-bearmgasthd, money market and savings) and
changes in the prepayment behavior of fixed radadaand securities with optionality. S&T policy delines limit the change in pretax net
interest income over a 12 month horizon using shtecks of +/- 300 basis points. Policy guidelineBreé the percent change in pretax net
interest income by graduated risk tolerance legkfainimal, moderate and high. We have temporailgpended the -200 and -300 basis poin
rate shock analyses. Due to the low interest rat@@ment we believe the impact to net interesbine when evaluating the -200 and -300
basis point rate shock scenarios does not provieenmgful insight into our interest rate risk pimsit

In order to monitor interest rate risk beyond tRenionth time horizon of rate shocks, we also perf&VE analysis. EVE represents the
present value of all asset cash flows minus thegmevalue of all liability cash flows. EVE rateartye results are compared to a base case to
determine the impact that market rate changes raag an our EVE. As with rate shock analyses, E\iporates management assumptions
regarding prepayment behavior of fixed rate loard securities with optionality and core depositdebr and value. S&T policy guidelines
limit the change in EVE given changes in rates/ef360 basis points. Policy guidelines define thecpnt change in EVE by graduated risk
tolerance levels of minimal, moderate and high.Wee also temporarily suspended the EVE -200 880 basis point scenarios due to the
interest rate environment.

The table below reflects the rate shock analysdsEAE results. Both are in the minimal risk tolezarevel.

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Change in Interest % Change in Pretax % Change in % Change in Pretax % Change in
Rate (basis points) Net Interest Income Economic Value of Equity Net Interest Income Economic Value of Equity
+300 7.€ (6.2) 8.2 23.2
+200 5.2 (2.2) 5. 16.€
+100 2.3 0.C 2.C 9.1
-100 (3.4) (10.9) (2.4) (9.7)
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Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK — continued

The results from the rate shock analyses are densiwith having an asset sensitive balance shieeting an asset sensitive balance shee
means more assets than liabilities will repricardyithe measured time frames. The implicationsnodsset sensitive balance sheet will differ
depending upon the change in market interest rat@sexample, with an asset sensitive balance sheetleclining interest rate environment,
more assets than liabilities will decrease in rates situation could result in a decrease in n&trest income and operating income.
Conversely, with an asset sensitive balance sheetising interest rate environment, more aséets kiabilities will increase in rate. This
situation could result in an increase in net irdenecome and operating income. As measured bystaiek analyses, there was not a material
change in our asset sensitive balance sheet positien comparing December 31, 2013 and Decemb&(3?P.,

When comparing the EVE results for December 3132401d December 31, 2012 the percent change to BgHEécreased significantly.
The decrease in EVE results in the +300, +200,+d basis point scenarios is mainly due to a chamghe assumptions related to core
deposit behavior and an increase in long term r&as core deposit behavior study was updated &eoémber 31, 2013 and served as the
basis for updating the assumptions used in EVEyaiglThe study showed we experienced an increabe iaverage size of core deposit
account balances between 2008 and 2013, as a oésuédt low interest rate environment and marketeutainty. This increase is commonly
referred to as surge balances. When rates riss thage balances are more likely to exit core siepooducts and seek higher yielding
products. The prior core deposit behavior studynditiconsider the impact of surge balances duringjrgg rate environment. Overall, the
change in core deposit behavior assumptions neggiimpacted the +300, +200, and +100 basis pogddinber 31, 2013 EVE results
compared to December 31, 2012 by (18.1), (11.@),(4r®).

In addition to rate shocks and EVE, simulationspadormed periodically to assess the sensitivitgssumptions on pretax net interest
income. Simulation analyses most often test fosisiity to yield curve shape and slope changegeigerate shocks, changes in prepayment
assumptions and significant balance mix changesul@tions indicate that an increase in rates, @agtly if the yield curve steepens, will m
likely result in an improvement in pretax net iggrincome. Some of the benefit reflected in oenados may be offset by a change in the
competitive environment and a change in produdepeace by our customers.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data) 2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks, including interest-beatampsits of $53,594 and $257,116 at December 31,

2013 and 201 $ 108,35t $ 337,71
Securities availab-for-sale, at fair valu 509,42! 452,26t
Loans held for sal 2,13¢€ 22,49¢
Portfolio loans, net of unearned incol 3,566,19! 3,346,62;
Allowance for loan losse (46,25%) (46,489

Portfolio loans, ne 3,519,94. 3,300,13
Bank owned life insuranc 60,48( 58,61¢
Premises and equipment, | 36,61¢ 38,67¢
Federal Home Loan Bank and other restricted staic&ost 13,62¢ 15,31
Goodwill 175,82( 175,73:
Other intangible assets, r 3,75¢ 5,35(
Other asset 103,02¢ 120,39!
Total Assets $4,533,19 $4,526,70;
LIABILITIES
Deposits:

Noninteres-bearing deman $ 992,77 $ 960,98(

Interes-bearing deman 312,79( 316,76(

Money marke 281,40: 361,23:

Savings 994,80! 965,57:

Certificates of depos 1,090,53: 1,033,88.
Total Deposits 3,672,301 3,638,42i
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 33,843 62,58:
Shor-term borrowings 140,00( 75,00(
Long-term borrowings 21,81( 34,10:
Junior subordinated debt securit 45,61¢ 90,61¢
Other liabilities 48,30( 88,55(
Total Liabilities 3,961,88 3,989,28!
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Common stock ($2.50 par value)

Authorized—50,000,000 shares

Issued—31,197,365 shares at December 31, 20130dr&d 2

Outstandin—29,737,725 shares at December 31, 2013 and 290/B8&tares at December 31, 2( 77,99 77,99:
Additional paic-in capital 78,14( 77,45¢
Retained earning 468,15t 436,03
Accumulated other comprehensive income (li (12,699 (13,587
Treasury stock (1,459,640 shares at December 3B &0d 1,465,156 shares at December 31, 2012, at

cost) (40,297 (40,486
Total Shareholders’ Equity 571,30t 537,42:
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $4,533,19 $4,526,70:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2013 2012 2011
INTEREST INCOME
Loans, including fee $142,49: $145,18: $154,12:
Investment Securitie:

Taxable 7,47¢ 7,544 8,16¢

Tax-exempt 3,401 3,121 2,34

Dividends 38t 40k 442
Total Interest Income 153,75t 156,25: 165,07¢
INTEREST EXPENSE
Deposits 11,40¢ 16,79¢ 22,95
Borrowings and junior subordinated debt secur 3,151 4,22¢ 4,781
Total Interest Expense 14,56: 21,02« 27,73
NET INTEREST INCOME 139,19: 135,22 137,34t
Provision for loan losse 8,311 22,81¢ 15,60¢
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses 130,88: 112,41 121,73
NONINTEREST INCOME
Securities gains (losses), 1 5 3,01¢ (129
Debit and credit card fet 10,93: 11,13¢ 10,88¢
Wealth management fe 10,69¢ 9,80¢ 8,18(
Service charges on deposit accol 10,48¢ 9,99: 9,97¢
Insurance fee 6,24¢ 6,131 6,23(
Gain on sale of merchant card servicing busil 3,09z — —
Mortgage banking 2,12: 2,87¢ 1,19¢
Other 7,94: 8,95:¢ 7,70¢
Total Noninterest Income 51,527 51,91: 44,057
NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Salaries and employee bene 60,90 60,25¢ 51,07¢
Data processin 9,021 9,62( 6,85:
Net occupanc! 8,02: 7,60% 6,94:
Furniture and equipme 4,88: 5,26z 4,941
Professional services and les 4,18¢ 5,65¢ 5,437
Other taxe: 3,748 3,20( 3,381
Marketing 2,92¢ 3,30z 3,01¢
FDIC insurance 2,772 2,92¢ 3,57(
Other 20,93: 25,03: 18,68t¢
Total Noninterest Expense 117,39. 122,86: 103,90t
Income Before Taxes 65,01 41,46 61,88¢
Provision for income taxe 14,47¢ 7,261 14,62:
Net Income 50,53¢ 34,20( 47,26¢
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize — — 7,611
Net Income Available to Common Shareholder $ 50,53¢ $ 34,20( $ 39,65:
Earnings per common sh—basic $ 1.7C $ 1.1¢ $ 1.4
Earnings per common sh—diluted 1.7¢ 1.1¢ 1.41
Dividends declared per common sh 0.61 0.6( 0.6(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Net Income $ 50,53¢ $34,20( $ 47,26¢
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Tay
Net change in unrealized (losses) gains on sees

availablefor-sale (16,929 4,097 6,70z
Net availabl-for-sale securities (gains) losses reclassified

into earning:s (5) (3,016 124
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefihg 18,29¢ (271) (18,787
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), Before Ta 1,36¢ 81C (11,969
Income tax (expense) benefit related to items loéiotomprehensive incon (47¢) (289 4,18
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss), After Tax 88¢ 52€ (7,779
Comprehensive Income $ 51,42 $34,72¢ $ 39,49(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Accumulated

Additional Other

(in thousands, except share Preferred Common Paid-in Retained Comprehensive Treasury

and per share data) Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total

Balance at December 31, 201 $ 106,13 $ 74,28t $ 51,57( $ 401,73 $ (6,33) $ (48,727) $ 578,66!
Net income for 201 47,26¢ 47,26¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of (7,779 (7,779
Redemption of preferred sto (108,671) (108,679
Preferred stock dividends and discount amortize 2,53¢ (7,61)) (5,072)
Cash dividends declared ($0.60 per sh (16,830) (16,830
Treasury stock issued (182,507 shares, (3,089 4,971 1,882
Recognition of restricted stock compensation exg 1,13¢ 1,13¢
Tax expense from sto-based compensatic (66) (66)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ — $ 74,28 $ 52,637 $ 421,46! $ (14,109 $ (43,75¢) $ 490,52¢
Net income for 201 34,20( 34,20(
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 52¢ 52€
Cash dividends declared ($0.60 per sh (17,359 (17,359
Common stock issued in acquisition (1,483,327 &) 3,70¢ 23,90z 27,61(
Treasury stock issued (117,633 shares, (2,272) 3,27( 99¢
Recognition of restricted stock compensation exg 94¢ 94¢
Tax expense from sto-based compensatic (30) (30)
Balance at December 31, 201 $ — $ 77,99: $  77,45¢ $ 436,03 $ (13,587) $ (40,48¢) $ 537,42
Net income for 201 50,53¢ 50,53¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of 88¢ 88¢
Cash dividends declared ($0.61 per sh (18,13 (18,13)
Treasury stock issued (5,516 shares, (287%) 19t (88)
Recognition of restricted stock compensation ex@ 58€ 58€
Tax benefit from stoc-based compensatic 96 96
Balance at December 31, 201 $ = $ 77,99 $  78,14( $ 468,15! $ (12,699 $ (40,29) $ 571,30t

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income $ 50,53¢ $  34,20( $ 47,26¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigeal by operating activitie:
Provision for loan losse 8,311 22,81¢ 15,60¢
Provision for unfunded loan commitmel (60) 1,811 (1,479
Depreciation and amortizatic 5,33¢ 7,00( 6,327
Net amortization of discounts and premiu 3,82¢ 2,28( 1,191
Stocl-based compensation expel 687 913 96(
Securities (gains) losses, 1 5) (3,01¢€) 124
Net gain on sale of merchant card servicing busi (3,099 — —
Tax (benefit) expense from st-based compensatic (96) 30 66
Mortgage loans originated for s¢ (66,695) (104,92 (68,267)
Proceeds from the sale of loe 87,93: 86,88¢ 74,78(
Deferred income taxe (2,359%) 1,03¢ 2,44¢
Gain on the sale of loans, r (874 (1,619 (875)
Net (increase) decrease in interest receiv (130 973 58¢
Net decrease in interest paya (2,005 (2,37¢) (44%)
Net decrease (increase) in other as 25,68: 18,81¢ 4,137
Net (decrease) increase in other liabili (20,917 18,05 (8,53)
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 86,07¢ 83,89( 73,90z
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of securities availe-for-sale (144,75) (166,78¢) (135,44
Proceeds from maturities, prepayments and cabeafrities availab-for-sale 66,744 87,60 71,31¢
Proceeds from sales of securities avail-for-sale 94 66,57¢ 70
Net proceeds from the redemption of Federal HomanlB®ank stocl 1,68t 5,70( 4,14¢
Net (increase) decrease in lo: (241,17) (21,897) 185,18
Proceeds from the sale of loans not originatedesale 5,15¢ 3,87¢ 8,59¢
Purchases of premises and equipn (2,839 (2,179 (2,53))
Proceeds from the sale of premises and equip 643 14z 404
Net cash acquired from bank acquisitit — 18,63¢ —
Proceeds from the sale of merchant card serviaisgnbss 4,75( — —
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Investing Activitie: (309,68) (8,329 131,74(
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net (decrease) increase in core dept (22,767 207,65: 105,77¢
Net increase (decrease) in certificates of de| 56,174 (217,31) (87,559
Net (decrease) increase in securities sold ungercbase agreemer (28,735 28,44. (10,287
Net increase (decrease) in skterm borrowings 65,00( — 75,00(
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings — 4,311 4,192
Repayments of lor-term borrowings (12,29) (15,089 (1,682)
Repayment of junior subordinated d (45,000 — —
Redemption of preferred sto — — (108,67¢)
Purchase of treasury sha (89) (49) (64)
Sale of treasury shar — 1,047 1,94¢
Preferred stock dividenc — — (5,079
Cash dividends paid to common sharehol: (18,13) (17,35 (16,830
Tax benefit (expense) from st-based compensatic 96 (30) (66)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (5,74%) (8,382) (43,319
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equis (229,35 67,18¢ 162,33(
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 337,71: 270,52t 108,19¢
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Yea $ 108,35¢ $ 337,71: $ 270,52t
Supplemental Disclosure
Interest paic $ 16,56¢ $ 22,32¢ $ 27,73
Income taxes paid, net of refur 13,13( 4,06° 15,10(
Loans transferred to held for si 5,15¢ 19,25¢ 8,75¢
Net assets (liabilities) from acquisitions, exchglcash and cash equivale — (68%) —
Transfers to other real estate owned and othessessed asse 1,23¢ 1,91¢ 8,47:

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Subsidiaries

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations

S&T Bancorp, Inc., or S&T, was incorporated on Maid, 1983 under the laws of the Commonwealth ohBgvania as a bank holding
company and has three wholly owned subsidiarie§; B&nk, 9th Street Holdings, Inc. and STBA Capitaist I. We own a onkalf interest il
Commonwealth Trust Credit Life Insurance CompamyC®CLIC.

We are presently engaged in nonbanking activitiesuigh the following five entities: 9th Street Hioigs, Inc.; S&T Bancholdings, Inc.;
CTCLIC; S&T Insurance Group, LLC and Stewart Cdpitdvisors, LLC. 9th Street Holdings, Inc. and S&&ancholdings, Inc. are investment
holding companies. CTCLIC, which is a joint ventwi¢gh another financial institution, acts as a seirer of credit life, accident and health
insurance policies sold by S&T Bank and the othstitution. S&T Insurance Group, LLC, through itdsidiaries, offers a variety of insurar
products. Stewart Capital Advisors, LLC is a regjistl investment advisor that manages private imaygtaccounts for individuals and
institutions and advises the Stewart Capital Migh €and.

On March 9, 2012, we completed the acquisition@r/ersion of Mainline Bancorp, Inc., or Mainlirebank holding company based in
Ebensburg, Pennsylvania. Mainline had one subgidiainline National Bank, with eight branches &@i®9.5 million in loans and $206.0
million in deposits. The acquisition expanded oarket share and footprint throughout Cambria aradrBlounties of Western Pennsylvania.
The total acquisition cost of Mainline was $27.8liom.

On August 13, 2012, we completed the acquisitioBateway Bank of Pennsylvania, a bank with $99 lianiin loans and $105.4 millio
in deposits, headquartered in McMurray, Pennsybiahie total acquisition cost of Gateway Bank wEs.& million. As of December 31,
2012, Gateway was operating as a separate wholhedwubsidiary of S&T, with all transactions sitice acquisition date consolidated in our
financial statements. On February 8, 2013, GatdBank was merged into S&T Bank, and their two braschre now fully operational
branches of S&T Bank.

Accounting Policies

Our financial statements have been prepared inrdanoe with U. S. generally accepted accountingciples, or GAAP. In preparing the
financial statements, management is required toeneakmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts of assets and liabilities and
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilitiesfabe dates of the balance sheets and revendesx@enses for the periods then ended. Actue
results could differ from those estimates. Our iggnt accounting policies are described below.

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include ticeunts of S&T and its wholly owned subsidiarie.significant intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidatiorestments of 20 percent to 50 percent of thetantling common stock of investees are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting
Reclassification

Certain amounts in prior years’ financial staterseartd footnotes have been reclassified to conforthd current year’s presentation. The
reclassifications had no significant effect on msults of operations or financial condition.
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Business Combinations

We account for business combinations using theisitigun method of accounting. Under this methododounting, the acquired
company’s net assets are recorded at fair valtreeatate of acquisition, and the results of openstiof the acquired company are combined
with our results from that date forward. Acquisiticosts are expensed when incurred. The differbateeen the purchase price and the fair
value of the net assets acquired (including idertiintangibles) is recorded as goodwill.

Fair Value Measurements

We use fair value measurements when recording etbging certain financial assets and liabiliti®ecurities available-for-sale, trading
assets and derivatives are recorded at fair valuerecurring basis. Additionally, from time to 8rwe may be required to record other assets
at fair value on a nonrecurring basis, such assi¢etd for sale, impaired loans, other real esiateed, or OREO, mortgage servicing rights, o
MSRs, and certain other assets.

Fair value is the price that would be receiveddiban asset or paid to transfer a liability in gracipal or most advantageous market in ar
orderly transaction between market participants@imeasurement date. An orderly transactionriaresaction that assumes exposure to the
market for a period prior to the measurement datdlow for marketing activities that are usual @mdtomary for transactions involving such
assets or liabilities; it is not a forced transactiin determining fair value, we use various vatraapproaches, including market, income and
cost approaches. The fair value standard establesimgerarchy for inputs used in measuring faingahat maximizes the use of observable
inputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputequiring that observable inputs be used wivaiilable. Observable inputs are inputs
that market participants would use in pricing aseasr liability, which is developed, based on netidata we have obtained from independent
sources. Unobservable inputs reflect our estimbéssumptions that market participants would uggricing an asset or liability, which are
developed based on the best information availabtkd circumstances.

The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priotdyunadjusted quoted market prices in active ntarke identical assets or liabilities
(Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority tohservable inputs (Level 3 measurement). The flireshierarchy is broken down into th
levels based on the reliability of inputs as foltow

Level 1: valuation is based upon unadjusted quotarket prices for identical instruments tradeddtive markets.

Level 2: valuation is based upon quoted marketgrior similar instruments traded in active markgt®ted market prices for identical or
similar instruments traded in markets that areaative and model-based valuation techniques fochwvhll significant assumptions are
observable in the market or can be corroboratethéket data.

Level 3: valuation is derived from other valuatimethodologies, including discounted cash flow medeld similar techniques that use
significant assumptions not observable in the ntafkdeese unobservable assumptions reflect estinoft@ssumptions that market participants
would use in determining fair value.

A financial instrument’s level within the fair vathierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpat ts significant to the fair value
measurement. Our policy is to recognize transfet&den any of the fair value hierarchy levels atehd of the reporting period in which the
transfer occurred.

The following are descriptions of the valuation heetologies that we use for financial instrumentorded at fair value on either a
recurring or nonrecurring basis.
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Recurring Basis
Securities Available-for-Sale

Securities available-for-sale include both debt equity securities. We obtain fair values for dedturities from a third-party pricing
service which utilizes several sources for valdfirgd-income securities. We validate prices recgifrem our pricing service through
comparison to a secondary pricing service and rgietes. We review the methodologies of the pgaarvice which provides us with a
sufficient understanding of the valuation modessumptions, inputs and pricing to reasonably meathér fair value of our securities. The
market evaluation sources for debt securities delobservable inputs rather than significant unoladde inputs and are classified as Level 2.
The service provider utilizes pricing models thatyby asset class and include availakdele, bid and other market information. Generahg
methodologies include broker quotes, proprietarglel® and vast descriptive terms and conditionabdees, as well as extensive quality
control programs.

Marketable equity securities that have an activetaple market are classified as Level 1. Market&loluity securities that are quotable,
are thinly traded or inactive, are classified agdl@ and securities that are not readily tradetidmnot have a quotable market are classifie
Level 3.

Trading Assets

We use quoted market prices to determine the &irevof our trading assets. Our trading assetheltkin a Rabbi Trust under a deferred
compensation plan and are invested in readily guetetual funds. Accordingly, these assets are ifledss Level 1.

Derivative Financial Instruments

We use derivative instruments including interetd savaps for commercial loans with our customeitgrést rate lock commitments and
the sale of mortgage loans in the secondary maetcalculate the fair value for derivatives usivigely accepted valuation techniques,
including discounted cash flow analysis on the etgxcash flows of each derivative. Each valuatiomsiders the contractual terms of the
derivative, including the period to maturity anctsi®bservable market based inputs, such as intatesturves and implied volatilities.
Accordingly, derivatives are classified as Level\& incorporate credit valuation adjustments ihttaluation models to appropriately reflect
both our own nonperformance risk and the respectiumterparty’s nonperformance risk in calculafimig value measurements. In adjusting
the fair value of our derivative contracts for gféect of nonperformance risk, we have considehnedrmpact of netting and any applicable
credit enhancements and collateral postings.

Nonrecurring Basis
Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consist of 1-4 family residaintians originated for sale in the secondary ntaake, from time to time, certain loans
transferred from the loan portfolio to loans hedd $ale, all of which are carried at the lower o$tcor fair value. The fair value of 1-4 family
residential loans is based on the principal or rmdsantageous market currently offered for simodans using observable market data. The fa
value of the loans transferred from the loan péicfis based on the amounts offered for these laacsrrently pending sales transactions.
Loans held for sale carried at fair value are dfi@ssas Level 3.
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Impaired Loans

Impaired loans are carried at the lower of carryiafyie or fair value. Fair value is determinedtesrecorded investment balance less any
specific reserve. We establish a specific reseageth on the following three impairment methodgh#)present value of expected future cash
flows discounted at the loan’s original effectimerest rate, 2) the loan’s observable market ic®) the fair value of the collateral less
estimated selling costs when the loan is collatdependent and we expect to liquidate the collbtel@vever, if repayment is expected to
come from the operation of the collateral, rathamntliquidation, then we do not consider estimatting costs in determining the fair value of
the collateral. Collateral values are generallyeldaspon appraisals by approved, independent stetifier] appraisers. Appraised values ma
discounted based on our historical knowledge, chamgmarket conditions from the time of appratabur knowledge of the borrower and
borrower’s business. Impaired loans carried atfalue are classified as Level 3.

OREO and Other Repossessed Assets

OREO and other repossessed assets obtained ial partbtal satisfaction of a loan are recordethatiower of recorded investment in the
loan or fair value less cost to sell. Subsequefdrteclosure, these assets are carried at the loftlee amount recorded at acquisition date or
fair value less cost to sell. Accordingly, it magy tecessary to record nonrecurring fair value &ajests. Fair value, when recorded, is
generally based upon appraisals by approved, imdkgme state certified appraisers. Like impairechép@ppraisals on OREO may be
discounted based on our historical knowledge, chamgymarket conditions from the time of appratsabther information available to us.
OREO and other repossessed assets are classiliedels3.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

The fair value of MSRs is determined by calculatimg present value of estimated future net sergicash flows, considering expected
mortgage loan prepayment rates, discount rateacs®y costs and other economic factors, whichdatermined based on current market
conditions. The expected rate of mortgage loangyeyents is the most significant factor driving adue of MSRs. MSRs are considered
impaired if the carrying value exceeds fair valliee valuation model includes significant unobselwatputs; therefore, MSRs are classifie
Level 3.

Other Assets

We measure certain other assets at fair valuemrmmeecurring basis. Fair value is based on thei@gjan of lower of cost or fair value
accounting, or writedowns of individual assets. Valuation methodologissd to measure fair value are consistent withativerinciples of fair
value accounting and consistent with those destr®ve.

Financial Instruments

In addition to financial instruments recorded at ¥alue in our financial statements, fair value@mting guidance requires disclosure of
the fair value of all of an entity’s assets andilities that are considered financial instrumeiiise majority of our assets and liabilities are
considered financial instruments. Many of thesé&rimsents lack an available trading market as charaed by a willing buyer and willing
seller engaged in an exchange transaction. Als®oir general practice and intent to hold ouaficial instruments to maturity and to not
engage in trading or sales activities with respesuch financial instruments. For fair value discire purposes, we substantially utilize the fai
value measurement criteria as required and exglaibeve. In cases where quoted fair values aravastable, we use present value methot
determine the fair value of our financial instrursen

80



Table of Contents

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Other Short-Term Assets

The carrying amounts reported in the ConsolidatelduBe Sheets for cash and due from banks, ingudtarest-bearing deposits,
approximate fair value.
Loans

The fair value of variable rate performing loanbased on carrying values adjusted for credit fisie fair value of fixed rate performing
loans is estimated using a discounted cash flodysisahat utilizes interest rates currently bedffgred for similar loans and adjusted for cr
risk. The fair value of nonperforming loans is lzhse their carrying values less any specific resefhe carrying amount of accrued interest
approximates fair value.

Bank Owned Life Insurance

Fair value approximates net cash surrender valbawmk owned life insurance, or BOLI.

Deposits

The fair values disclosed for deposits without ikedi maturities (e.g., noninterest and interestibgatemand, money market and savings
accounts) are by definition equal to the amounysble on demand. The carrying amounts for varigdtke, fixed-term time deposits
approximate their fair values. Estimated fair valfmr fixed rate and other time deposits are basediscounted cash flow analysis using
interest rates currently offered for time deposiith similar terms. The carrying amount of accrugérest approximates fair value.
Short-Term Borrowings

The carrying amounts of securities sold under refpase agreements and other short-term borrowinge@mate their fair values.

Long-Term Borrowings

The fair values disclosed for fixed rate long-tdyarrowings are determined by discounting their mmttial cash flows using current
interest rates for long-term borrowings of similamaining maturities. The carrying amounts of \agaate longeerm borrowings approxima
their fair values.
Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

The variable rate junior subordinated debt se@giteprice quarterly; therefore, the fair valugsrapimate the carrying values.

Loan Commitments and Standby Letters of Credit

Off-balance sheet financial instruments consistamfimitments to extend credit and letters of crdehtept for interest rate lock
commitments, estimates of the fair value of thdédalance sheet items are not made because shtiré-term nature of these arrangements
and the credit standing of the counterparties.
Other

Estimates of fair value are not made for items #natnot defined as financial instruments, inclgdinch items as our core deposit
intangibles and the value of our trust operations.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents
We consider cash and due from banks, interestsigpdgposits with banks and federal funds sold sk aad cash equivalents.

Securities

We determine the appropriate classification of gées at the time of purchase. All securities Juling both debt and equity securities, are
classified as available-for-sale. These are saesitihat we intend to hold for an indefinite perafdime, but that may be sold in response to
changes in interest rates, prepayment risk, litjitkeeds or other factors. Such securities aréechat fair value with net unrealized gains and
losses deemed to be temporary, reported as a campohother comprehensive income (loss), netxafRealized gains and losses on the sale
of available-for-sale securities and other-thangerary impairment, or OTTI, charges are recordetliiwinoninterest income in the
Consolidated Statements of Net Income. Realizelsgand losses on the sale of securities are detedmwising the specific-identification
method. Bond premiums are amortized to the ca# datl bond discounts are accreted to the matwuaig; 8oth on a level yield basis.

An investment security is considered impairedsifféir value is less than its cost or amortized basis. We perform a quarterly review of
our securities to identify those that may indicateOTTI. Our policy for OTTI within the marketaldguity securities portfolio generally
requires an impairment charge when the security ésloss position for 12 consecutive months, ufasts and circumstances would suggest
the need for an OTTI prior to that time. Our polfoy OTTI within the debt securities portfolio iased upon a number of factors, including bu
not limited to, the length of time and extent toieththe estimated fair value has been less that ttesfinancial condition of the underlying
issuer, the ability of the issuer to meet contraktibligations, the best estimate of the impairnof@rge representing credit losses, the
likelihood of the security’s ability to recover adgcline in its estimated fair value and whethenaggement intends to sell the security or if it i
more likely than not that management will be regdito sell the investment security prior to theusiég's recovery. If the impairment is
considered other-than-temporary based on manag&amewiew, the impairment must be separated intglitland non-credit components. The
credit component is recognized in the Consolid&dements of Net Income and the non-credit comutdeeecognized in other
comprehensive income (loss), net of applicablesaxe

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale consist of 1-4 family residantvans originated for sale in the secondary nteakd from time to time, certain loans
transferred from the loan portfolio to loans heldd $ale, all of which are carried at the lower otcor fair value. If a loan is transferred frore
loan portfolio to the held-for-sale category, amytexdown in the carrying amount of the loan at dage of transfer is recorded as a charge-off
against the allowance for loan loss, or ALL. Sulvssr declines in fair value are recognized as ageh®d noninterest income. When a loan is
placed in the held-for-sale category, we stop aiziog the related deferred fees and costs. Theiréngaunamortized fees and costs are
recognized as part of the cost basis of the lodineatime it is sold. Gains and losses on salésasfs held for sale are included in other
noninterest income in the Consolidated StatemedHteblincome.

Loans

Loans are reported at the principal amount outdtgnaet of unearned income, unamortized premiundismounts and deferred originat
fees and costs. We defer certain nonrefundabledagmation and commitment fees. Accretion of disats and amortization of premiums on
loans are included in interest income in the Cadatgéd Statements of Net Income. Loan originatessfand

82



Table of Contents

NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

direct loan origination costs are deferred and ¢éimedt as an adjustment of loan yield over the retdpelives of the loans without considerat
of anticipated prepayments. If a loan is paid thi§ remaining unaccreted or unamortized net origindees and costs are immediately
recognized into income or expense. Interest isugcktand interest income is recognized on loansiaed.

Closed-end installment loans, amortizing loans iEtby real estate and any other loans with paysrestteduled monthly are reported
past due when the borrower is in arrears two oremaoonthly payments. Other multi-payment obligatiauith payments scheduled other than
monthly are reported past due when one schedulgder# is due and unpaid for 30 days or more.

Generally, consumer loans are charged off agdiesat.L upon the loan reaching 90 days past due.@eruvial loans are charged off as
management becomes aware of facts and circumstdratagise doubt as to the collectability of allboportion of the principal and when we
believe a confirmed loss exists.

Nonaccrual or Nonperforming Loans

We stop accruing interest on a loan (nonaccrual)lednen the borrowes’ payment is 90 days past due. Loans are alsodptataonaccru
status when payment is not past due, but we hawet@bout the borrower’s ability to comply with ¢@ctual repayment terms. When the
interest accrual is discontinued, all unpaid acdiingerest is reversed against interest incomerést income is recognized on nonaccrual loar
on a cash basis if recovery of the remaining ppiakis reasonably assured. As a general rule, acoonal loan may be restored to accrual s
when its principal and interest is paid current Hrelbank expects repayment of the remaining cotuahprincipal and interest, or when the
loan otherwise becomes well secured and in theegeoof collection.

Troubled Debt Restructurings

Troubled Debt Restructurings, or TDRs, are loansrehwe, for economic or legal reasons relatedioreower’s financial difficulty, grant
a concession to the borrower that we would notretlse grant. We strive to identify borrowers indircial difficulty early and work with them
to modify the terms before their loan reaches nonex status. These modified terms generally inelexktensions of maturity dates at a stated
interest rate lower than the current market ratefoew loan with similar risk characteristics, uetions in contractual interest rates or principa
deferment. While unusual, there may be instancgsin€ipal forgiveness. These modifications areggalty for longer term periods that would
not be considered insignificant. Additionally, wiassify loans where the debt obligation has besohdirged through a Chapter 7 Bankruptcy
and not reaffirmed as TDRs.

We individually evaluate all substandard commericiahs that experienced a forbearance or changernrs agreement, as well as all
substandard consumer and residential mortgage thahentered into an agreement to modify theistéxg loan to determine if they should be
designated as TDRs.

All TDRs will be reported as impaired loans for tieenaining life of the loan, unless the restructgragreement specifies an interest rate
equal to or greater than the rate that would begted at the time of the restructuring for a neanlaith comparable risk and it is fully
expected that the remaining principal and intengte collected according to the restructuredeggnent. Further, all impaired loans are
reported as nonaccrual loans unless the loan BRathat has met the requirements to be returnaddouing status. TDRs can be returned to
accruing status if the ultimate collectability dif @ntractual amounts due, according to the restined agreement, is not in doubt and there is
period of a minimum of six months of satisfactogyment performance by the borrower either immebjidtefore or after the restructuring.
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The ALL reflects our estimates of probable lossé®ient in the loan portfolio at the balance skdaét. The methodology for determining
the ALL has two main components: evaluation andaimpent tests of individual loans and evaluatiod Bnpairment tests of certain groups of
homogeneous loans with similar risk characteristics

A loan is considered impaired when it is probahbg wve will be unable to collect all principal ainterest payments due according to the
original contractual terms of the loan agreemenrd.ildividually evaluate all substandard and nonsdarommercial loans greater than
$0.5 million for impairment. All TDRs will be reptad as an impaired loan for the remaining lifehaf bban, unless the restructuring agreemer
specifies an interest rate equal to or greater themate that would be accepted at the time ofgbructuring for a new loan with comparable
risk and it is fully expected that the remainingnpipal and interest will be collected accordinghe restructured agreement. For all TDRs,
regardless of size, as well as all other impaioaah$, we conduct further analysis to determingtbbable loss and assign a specific reserve t
the loan if deemed appropriate. Specific reserve®stablished based upon the following three impait methods: 1) the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loarignal effective interest rate, 2) the loan’selvable market price or 3) the estimated fair
value of the collateral if the loan is collaterap@éndent. Our impairment evaluations consist pilynaf the fair value of collateral
method because most loans are collateral deper@eltdteral values are discounted to consider ditsiom costs when appropriate. A specific
reserve is established or a charge-off is takémeiffair value of the impaired loan is less thamnbcorded investment in the loan balance.

The ALL for homogeneous loans is calculated usisgsaematic methodology with both a quantitativd arqualitative analysis that is
applied on a quarterly basis. The ALL model is casgnl of five distinct portfolio segments: 1) Conmoial Real Estate, or CRE, 2)
Commercial and Industrial, or C&I, 3) CommercialrGtruction, 4) Consumer Real Estate and 5) Othes@uoer. Each segment has a distinc
set of risk characteristics monitored by managemafetfurther assess and monitor risk and performan@ more disaggregated level which
includes our internal risk rating system for thenooercial segments and type of collateral, lientmsiand loan-to-value, or LTV, for the
consumer segments.

We first apply historical loss rates to pools aifs with similar risk characteristics. Loss ratescalculated by historical charge-offs that
have occurred within each pool of loans over tlss lemergence period, or LEP. The LEP is an estiofdte average amount of time from the
point at which a loss is incurred on a loan toghit at which the loss is confirmed. In generag LEP will be shorter in an economic
slowdown or recession and longer during times ohemic stability or growth, as customers are bettde to delay loss confirmation after a
potential loss event has occurred.

Due to the recent improvement in economic conditiave completed an internal study utilizing ouml@harge-off history to recalibrate
the LEPs of the commercial portfolio segments. @Gtest with the improved economic conditions, tHePis have lengthened, and as a result,
we lengthened our LEP assumption for each of thencercial portfolio segments. We estimate the lossrgence period to be three and a hal
years for CRE, two and a half years for C&l and twears for Commercial Construction. We believe thatconsumer portfolio segment LE
have also lengthened as they are influenced bgah® improvement in economic conditions that imgzhtthe commercial portfolio segments.
We therefore also lengthened the LEP assumptiothéoconsumer portfolio to one and a half years.ud&ea two to five year look back period
to calculate the historic loss rates dependingherpbrtfolio segment.

The changes made to the ALL assumptions were appligspectively and did not result in a materiarae to the total ALL. Lengthening
the LEP does increase the historical loss rategtrerdfore the quantitative component of the ALLe Bélieve this makes the quantitative
component
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of the ALL more reflective of inherent losses thaist within the loan portfolio, which resultedardecrease in the qualitative component o
ALL. The changes to the LEPs also improved oumimisinto the inherent risk of the individual comiat portfolio segments. As the
economic conditions have improved, our data inég#lhat the CRE segment has less inherent losthanthe C&I segment contains greater
inherent loss. The ALL at December 31, 2013 refl¢icese changes within the CRE and C&l portfolignsents.

Qualitative adjustments are aggregated into fitegaries, including process, economic conditionanIportfolio, asset quality and other
external factors.

Within the five aforementioned categories, thedaihg qualitative factors are considered:

1) Changes in our lending policies and procedunetding underwriting standards, collection, chexajf and recovery practices not
considered elsewhere in estimating credit los

2) Changes in national, regional, and local econ@and business conditions and developments thedtaffe collectability of the
portfolio, including the condition of various matksegments

3) Changes in the nature and volume of our loan partéand terms of loan:

4) Changes in the experience, ability and depth oflendling management and stz

5) Changes in the volume and severity of past daed, the volume of nonaccrual loans, and the veland severity of adversely
classified or graded loan

6) Changes in the quality of our loan review syst

7) Changes in the value of the underlying collatevalcbllaters-dependent loan:

8) The existence and effect of any concentrationseditand changes in the level of such concentratianc

9) The effect of external factors such as competieind legal and regulatory requirements on thel lefrestimated credit losses in our
current loan portfolio

Bank Owned Life Insurance

We have purchased life insurance policies on aeggécutive officers and employees. We receivedsh surrender value of each policy
upon its termination or benefits are payable upendeath of the insured. Changes in net cash slarealue are recognized in noninterest
income or expense in the Consolidated Statemeridgbhcome.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment, including leasehold impneves, are stated at cost less accumulated dejioecislaintenance and repairs are
charged to expense as incurred, while improventaatextend an asset’s useful life are capitalered depreciated over the estimated
remaining life of the asset. Depreciation expessmputed by the straight-line method for finah@aorting purposes and accelerated
methods for income tax purposes over the estimagetul lives of the particular assets. Managemevriews long-lived assets using events an
circumstances to determine if and when an asssftalsiated for recoverability.

The estimated useful lives for the various assketymaies are as follows:

1) Land and Land Improvemet Non-depreciating ass:
2) Buildings 25 Years

3) Furniture and Fixture 5 Years

4)  Computer Equipment and Softw. 5 Years or term of licens
5) Other Equipmer 5 Years

6) Vehicles 5 Years
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7) Leasehold Improvements Lesser of estimated useful life of the asset (gaEhet5 years unless
established otherwise) or the remaining term ofi¢hse, including renewal
options in the lease that are reasonably assuredenfise

Restricted Investment in Bank Stock

Federal Home Loan Bank, or FHLB, stock is carriedost and evaluated for impairment based on tti@ate recoverability of the par
value. We hold FHLB stock because we are a memitbed=HLB of Pittsburgh. The FHLB requires membterpurchase and hold a specified
level of FHLB stock based upon on the members asde¢, level of borrowings and participation i@t programs offered. Stock in the FH
is non-marketable and is redeemable at the discrefithe FHLB. Members do not purchase stock anRHLB for the same reasons that
traditional equity investors acquire stock in ameistor-owned enterprise. Rather, members purchask t® obtain access to the low-cost
products and services offered by the FHLB. Unligaity securities of traditional for-profit enterpeis, the stock of the FHLB does not provide
its holders with an opportunity for capital appeditin because, by regulation, FHLB stock can oelypbrchased, redeemed and transferred a
par value. Both cash and stock dividends are regas income in taxable investment securitiesérdbnsolidated Statements of Net Income.
FHLB stock is evaluated for OTTI on a quarterlyibas

Atlantic Community Bankers’ Bank, or ACBB, stockdarried at cost and evaluated for impairment basetthe ultimate recoverability of
the carrying value. We do not currently use theemmbership products and services. We acquired AGB&kghrough various mergers of ba
that were ACBB members. ACBB stock is evaluateddaiT| on a quarterly basis.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

We have three reporting units: Community Bankimgurance and Wealth Management. At December 3B, 204 had goodwill of $175
million, including $171.6 million in Community Bairlg, representing 98 percent of total goodwill &d2 million in Insurance, representing
two percent of total goodwill. The carrying valuegoodwill is tested annually for impairment eacbt@er 1 or more frequently if it is
determined that we should do so. We first asseabitatively whether it is more likely than not ththe fair value of a reporting unit is less than
its carrying amount. Our qualitative assessmensiciens such factors as macroeconomic conditionskehaonditions specifically related to
the banking industry, our overall financial perf@amee and various other factors. If we determineithis more likely than not that the fair
value is less than the carrying amount, we proteeest for impairment. The evaluation for impaimhavolves comparing the current
estimated fair value of each reporting unit tccasrying value, including goodwill. If the curreestimated fair value of a reporting unit exceed:
its carrying value, no additional testing is reqdiland impairment loss is not recorded. If therested fair value of a reporting unit is less than
the carrying value, further valuation procedureserformed and could result in impairment of goitidveing recorded. Further valuation
procedures would include allocating the estimagédvialue to all assets and liabilities of the mejpg unit to determine an implied goodwill
value. If the implied value of goodwill of a repioig unit is less than the carrying amount of thadyvill, an impairment loss is recognized in
an amount equal to that excess.

We have core deposit and other intangible assststirey from acquisitions which are subject to atization. We determine the amount of
identifiable intangible assets based upon indep@ntie deposit and insurance contract analysixe dime of the acquisition. Intangible as:
with finite useful lives are evaluated for impairma&vhenever events or changes in circumstancesatelthat their carrying amount may no
recoverable.
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Variable Interest Entities

Variable interest entities, or VIES, are legal #edi that generally either do not have equity itmesswith voting rights or that have equity
investors that do not provide sufficient financiesources for the entity to support its activitéen an enterprise has both the power to direc
the economic activities of the VIE and the obligatto absorb losses of the VIE or the right to reezbenefits of the VIE, the entity has a
controlling financial interest in the VIE. A VIE @h holds financial assets, including loans oriked#es, or other property. The company with
a controlling financial interest, the primary bengiry, is required to consolidate the VIE into@ensolidated Balance Sheets. S&T has one
wholly-owned trust subsidiary, STBA Capital Trusbt the Trust, for which it does not absorb a mgjof expected losses or receive a
majority of the expected residual returns. Atiitsaption in 2008, the Trust issued floating rabsttpreferred securities to the Trustee, another
financial institution, and used the proceeds fromgale to invest in junior subordinated debt, Wiiscthe sole asset of the Trust. The Trust
dividends on the trust preferred securities astrae rate as the interest we pay on our juniorrgifeted debt held by the Trust. Because the
third-party investors are the primary beneficiartbe Trust qualifies as a VIE. Accordingly, theuStrand its net assets are not included in our
Consolidated Financial Statements. However, thejwubordinated debt issued by S&T is includedun Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Joint Ventures

We have made investments directly in Low Income s$ttogi Tax Credit, or LIHTC, partnerships formed witird parties. As a limited
partner in these operating partnerships, we redaieredits and tax deductions for losses incubsethe underlying properties. These
investments are amortized over a maximum of 10syaenich represents the period that the tax creditde utilized. We have determined t
we are not the primary beneficiary of these investts because the general partners have the poweetd the activities that most
significantly impact the economic performance & gartnership and have both the obligation to dbsrpected losses and the right to receive
benefits.

OREO and Other Repossessed Assets

OREO and other repossessed assets are includdtkinassets in the Consolidated Balance Sheetararmbmprised of properties acqui
through foreclosure proceedings or acceptancedekd in lieu of a foreclosure. At the time of fdostire, these properties are recorded at the
lower of the recorded investment in the loan or ¥alue less cost to sell. Loan losses arising ftloenacquisition of such property initially are
charged against the ALL. Subsequently, these aasetsarried at the lower of carrying value or entifair value less cost to sell. Gains or
losses realized subsequent to acquisition arededdn other expenses in the Consolidated StatesnoéiNet Income.

Mortgage Servicing Rights

MSRs are recognized as separate assets when coemtstto fund a loan to be sold are made. Upon camenit, the MSR is established,
which represents the then current estimated fairevaf future net cash flows expected to be redlipe performing the servicing activities. T
estimated fair value of the MSRs is estimated bBgutating the present value of estimated futureseeticing cash flows, considering expectec
mortgage loan prepayment rates, discount ratesicBey costs and other economic factors, whichdmtermined based on current market
conditions. The expected rate of mortgage loangyeyents is the most significant factor driving adue of MSRs. Increases in mortgage |
prepayments reduce estimated future net servi@s flows because the life of the underlying IGareduced. In determining the estimated
value of MSRs, mortgage interest rates,
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

which are used to determine prepayment rates,edecbnstant over the estimated life of the poidfdlISRs are reported in other assets in the
Consolidated Balance Sheets and are amortizedhartmterest income in the Consolidated Statemdrteblncome in proportion to, and over
the period of, the estimated future net servicir@pme of the underlying mortgage loans.

MSRs are regularly evaluated for impairment bagethe estimated fair value of those rights. The M3FRe stratified by certain risk
characteristics, primarily loan term and note riteemporary impairment exists within a risk sifiaation tranche, a valuation allowance is
established through a charge to income equal tartieunt by which the carrying value exceeds thienastd fair value. If it is later determined
that all or a portion of the temporary impairmeatlanger exists for a particular tranche, the vidueallowance is reduced.

MSRs are also reviewed for OTTI. OTTI exists whiea tecoverability of a recorded valuation allowaiscdetermined to be remote, tak
into consideration historical and projected interages and loan pay-off activity. When this sitoatoccurs, the unrecoverable portion of the
valuation allowance is applied as a direct writgvddo the carrying value of the MSR. Unlike a vaioa allowance, a direct write-down
permanently reduces the carrying value of the MB&Rthe valuation allowance, precluding subsequestveries.

Derivative Financial Instruments
Interest Rate Swaps

In accordance with applicable accounting guidancalérivatives and hedging, all derivatives ar@gmized as either assets or liabilitie:
the balance sheet at fair value. Interest rate s\aeg contracts in which a series of interestftates (fixed and variable) are exchanged over a
prescribed period. The notional amounts on whiehititerest payments are based are not exchangesde Herivative positions relate to
transactions in which we enter into an interest satap with a commercial customer while at the stime entering into an offsetting interest
rate swap with another financial institution. Imoection with each transaction, we agree to parést to the customer on a notional amou
a variable interest rate and receive interest fiteencustomer on a same notional amount at a fixed At the same time, we agree to pay
another financial institution the same fixed ingtm@te on the same notional amount and receivedim® variable interest rate on the same
notional amount. The transaction allows our custaimeffectively convert a variable rate loan tfixed rate loan with us receiving a variable
rate. These agreements could have floors or cafiseotontracted interest rates.

Pursuant to our agreements with various finanotitutions, we may receive collateral or may lpned to post collateral based upon
mark-tomarket positions. Beyond unsecured threshold leceltateral in the form of cash or securities rbaymade available to counterpar
of interest rate swap transactions. Based upomcuuent positions and related future collateralirsgments relating to them, we believe any
effect on our cash flow or liquidity position to ematerial.

Derivatives contain an element of credit risk, plossibility that we will incur a loss because armeuparty, which may be a financial
institution or a customer, fails to meet its cootual obligations. All derivative contracts witlméincial institutions may be executed only with
counterparties approved by our Asset and Liab@iognmittee, or ALCO, and derivatives with custommaesy only be executed with customers
within credit exposure limits approved by our Seioan Committee. Interest rate swaps are congiddeevatives, but are not accounted for
using hedge accounting. As such, changes in tiveasd fair value of the derivatives are recordedurrent earnings and included in other
noninterest income in the Consolidated Statemedrteblincome.
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Interest Rate Lock Commitments and Forward Sale Con  tracts

In the normal course of business, we sell origimhatertgage loans into the secondary mortgage laakeh We also offer interest rate |
commitments to potential borrowers. The commitmeanésgenerally for 60 days and guarantee a spédifterest rate for a loan if underwriti
standards are met, but the commitment does najaiblthe potential borrower to close on the loastohdingly, some commitments expire
prior to becoming loans. We can encounter pricisksrif interest rates increase significantly beftre loan can be closed and sold. We may
utilize forward sale contracts in order to mitig#ies pricing risk. Whenever a customer desiresahgoducts, a mortgage originator quotes a
secondary market rate guaranteed for that daydintrestor. The rate lock is executed between thegagee and us and in turn a forward sal
contract may be executed between us and the inv&sith the rate lock commitment and the correspantbrward sale contract for each
customer are considered derivatives, but are ramtuanted for using hedge accounting. As such, ctaimgihe estimated fair value of the
derivatives during the commitment period are reedrith current earnings and included in mortgageibgrin the Consolidated Statements of
Net Income

Allowance for Unfunded Commitments

In the normal course of business, we offer off-betasheet credit arrangements to enable our custdmeneet their financing objectives.
These instruments involve, to varying degrees, efegmof credit and interest rate risk in excegh@famount recognized in the financial
statements. Our exposure to credit loss, in thatehe customer does not satisfy the terms of gheeanent, equals the contractual amount of
the obligation less the value of any collateral. &pely the same credit policies in making committaemd standby letters of credit that are
used for the underwriting of loans to customeran@itments generally have fixed expiration datesuahrenewals or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Becaasyg of the commitments are expected to expire witheing drawn upon, the total
commitment amounts do not necessarily representddash requirements. The allowance for unfundedhtitments is included in other
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets. alt@vance for unfunded commitments is determingidgia similar methodology as our AL
The reserve is calculated by applying historicabloates from our ALL model to the estimated fututization of our unfunded commitments.

Treasury Stock

The repurchase of our common stock is recordedsit At the time of reissuance, the treasury stmount is reduced using the average
cost method. Gains and losses on the reissuaremrohon stock are recorded in additional paid-irtegfo the extent additional paid-in
capital from previous treasury share transactisigt® Any deficiency is charged to retained eaggin

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenues as they are earned basemhtraatual terms or as services are provided wh#eatability is reasonably assured.
Our principal source of revenue is interest incowlgch is recognized on an accrual basis. Intexedtdividend income, loan fees, trust fees,
fees and charges on deposit accounts, insurancaissions and other ancillary income related todmposits and lending activities are
accrued as earned.

Wealth Management Fees

Assets held in a fiduciary capacity by the subsjdiank, S&T Bank, are not our assets and are fibrer@ot included in our Consolidated
Financial Statements. Wealth management fee inéemaported in the Consolidated Statements of Natrhe on an accrual basis.
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Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation may include stock optiadsrestricted stock which is measured using tine/édue method of accounting. The
grant date fair value is recognized over the pediadng which the recipient is required to providgvice in exchange for the award. Stock
option expense is determined utilizing the Black@®&es model. Restricted stock expense is determine) the grant date fair value. We
estimate expected forfeitures when stock-baseddsnare granted and record compensation expensdaprdyards that are expected to vest.

Pensions

The expense for S&T Bank’s qualified and nonqueatifdefined benefit pension plans is actuariallgdeined using the projected unit
credit actuarial cost method. It requires us to en@gonomic assumptions regarding future interéss @and asset returns as well as various
demographic assumptions. We estimate the discatmused to measure benefit obligations by appltfiegrojected cash flow for future
benefit payments to a yield curve of high-qualityporate bonds available in the marketplace anenyloying a model that matches bonds to
our pension cash flows. The expected return on @aets is an estimate of the long-term rate afmeain plan assets, which is determined
based on the current asset mix and estimatesuwhrby asset class. We recognize in the ConsotidBédance Sheets an asset for the plan’s
overfunded status or a liability for the plan’s erfdinded status. Gains or losses related to chandesefit obligations or plan assets resulting
from experience different from that assumed aregpized as other comprehensive income (loss) ipéned in which they occur. To the
extent that such gains or losses exceed ten pestémt greater of the projected benefit obligatiomplan assets, they are recognized as a
component of pension costs over the future sepgc®ds of active plan participants. The fundingjqyofor the qualified plan is to contribute
an amount each year that is at least equal to thienwam required contribution as determined underRlension Protection Act of 2006 and a
new federal law named Moving Ahead for Progregbén21st Century Act, but not more than the maxinamount permissible for taxable
plan sponsors. Our nonqualified plans are unfunded.

Marketing Costs
We expense all marketing-related costs, includohgegtising costs, as incurred.

Income Taxes

We estimate income tax expense based on amourgsterito be owed to the tax jurisdictions wherecareduct business. On a quarterly
basis, management assesses the reasonablenes&fiéctive tax rate based upon our current esérathe amount and components of net
income, tax credits and the applicable statutaxydtes expected for the full year. We classifgiast and penalties as an element of tax
expense.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities arerddteed using the asset and liability method andreperted in other assets or other
liabilities, as appropriate, in the ConsolidatedaBae Sheets. Under this method, the net defeareddset or liability is based on the tax effect:
of the differences between the book and tax bdsissets and liabilities and recognizes enactedgesin tax rate and laws. When deferrec
assets are recognized, they are subject to a i@iugtowance based on management’s judgmentabether realization is more likely than
not.

Accrued taxes represent the net estimated amowentodiaxing jurisdictions and are reported in othesets or other liabilities, as
appropriate, in the Consolidated Balance SheetseVdkiate and assess the relative risks and apat®pax treatment of transactions and fi
positions after considering statutes, regulatipudicial precedent and other information and mamtax accruals
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consistent with the evaluation of these relatiggsiand merits. Changes to the estimate of act¢axed occur periodically due to changes ir
rates, interpretations of tax laws, the statusxah@nations being conducted by taxing authorities ehanges to statutory, judicial and
regulatory guidance. These changes, when they ocanraffect deferred taxes and accrued taxeselhssvthe current period’s income tax
expense and can be significant to our operatingtses

Tax positions are recognized as a benefit onlyig Tmore likely than not” that the tax positiorould be sustained in a tax examination,
with a tax examination being presumed to occur. dteunt recognized is the largest amount of tavefietinat is greater than 50 percent lik
of being realized on examination. For tax positinosmeeting the “more likely than not” test, n& beenefit is recorded.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share, or EPS, is calculatedube twoelass method to determine income allocated to comshareholders. Unvest
share-based payment awards that contain nonfdsfeitaghts to dividends are considered particigpsacurities under the two-class method.
Income allocated to common shareholders is theidetivby the weighted average number of common startstanding during the period.
Potentially dilutive securities are excluded frdme basic EPS calculation.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated undentbie dilutive of either the treasury stock methothe two-class method. Under the
treasury stock method, the weighted average nuoftmymmon shares outstanding is increased by ttenpally dilutive common shares. For
the two-class method, diluted earnings per shatel@ilated for each class of shareholders usiagvsighted average number of shares
attributed to each class. Potentially dilutive commnshares are common stock equivalents relatiogt@utstanding warrants, stock options
and restricted stock.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards Updates, or A SuU
Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulate d Other Comprehensive Income

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013R¥)jorting of Amounts Reclassified out of Accumuta@ther Comprehensive
Income. ASU 2013-02 requires reporting the effécignificant reclassifications out of accumulatgtler comprehensive income by
component on the respective line items in the incstatement parenthetically or in the notes tditteacial statements if the amounts being
reclassified are required under GAAP to be redi@ssin their entirety to net income. This ASU f$eetive for public companies prospectively
for fiscal years, and interim periods within thgsars, beginning after December 15, 2012 and ealdyption is permitted. We have elected the
option of reporting in the notes to the financiatsments. The adoption of ASU 2013-02 impacteg oal disclosures and did not have an
impact on our results of operations or financiadipon.

Clarifying the Scope of Disclosures about Offsettin g Assets and Liabilities

In January 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-04rif@ing the Scope of Disclosures about Offsettikggets and Liabilities in order to
clarify the scope of ASU 2011-11, Disclosures alofisetting Assets and Liabilities, issued in Debem2011. ASU 2011-11 required entities
to disclose both gross and net information abagttiments and transactions eligible for offsehim statement of financial position and
instruments and transactions subject to an agreesimaitar to a master netting arrangement. This A issued to allow investors to better
compare financial statements prepared under GAAPR fimiancial statements prepared under InternakiBimancial Reporting Standards, or
IFRS. ASU 2013-01 clarified that ASU 2011-11 applie derivatives, sale and repurchase agreemediteaarse sale of repurchase
agreements and securities borrowing and seculiieing arrangements, but does not apply to stantanmercial contracts that permit
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either party to net in the event of default undher applicable contract or to broker-dealer unsktggular-way trades. Both ASUs are effective
for public companies retrospectively for fiscal gaand interim periods within those years, begigran or after January 1, 2013. The adop
of ASU 2013-01 and ASU 2011-11 impacted only oscltisures and did not have an impact on our regtitiperations or financial position.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards Updates notye  t Adopted
Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collate  ralized Consumer Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-@&t|&ssification of Residential Real Estate Colkteed Consumer Mortgage Loans
upon Foreclosure. The ASU clarifies that an in tartse repossession or foreclosure has occurredy aretlitor is considered to have received
physical possession of residential real estategutpgollateralizing a consumer mortgage loan, ugitirer the creditor obtaining legal title to
the residential real estate property upon compietifoa foreclosure or the borrower conveying akiast in the residential real estate property
to the creditor to satisfy that loan through cortipleof a deed in lieu of foreclosure. Interim aarthual disclosure is required of both the
amount of foreclosed residential real estate ptggezid by the creditor and the recorded investnrenbnsumer mortgage loans collateralized
by residential real estate property that are inpttoeess of foreclosure. The new standard is éff=cising either the modified retrospective
transition method or a prospective transition metfow fiscal years and interim periods within thgsars, beginning after December 15, 2014
and early adoption is permitted. We do not expeat this ASU will have a material impact on ourules of operations or financial position.

Accounting for Investments in Qualified Affordable Housing Projects

In January 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-@tolinting for Investments in Qualified Affordabletlising Projects. The ASU
permits reporting entities to make an accountinicp@lection to account for investments in qualifiaffordable housing projects using the
proportional amortization method if certain coralits are met. The proportional amortization metheanits the amortization of the initial cost
of the investment in proportion to the tax creditsl other tax benefits received, and recognizeaé¢hvestment performance in the income
statement as a component of income tax expensef{t)efihe new standard is effective retrospectiviet fiscal years and interim periods
within those years, beginning after December 18342@nd early adoption is permitted. We do not ekffeat this ASU will have a material
impact on our results of operations or financiaipon.

Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Whena  Net Operating Loss Tax Credit Carry forward Exists

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11, emnéation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When aQe¢rating Loss Tax Credit
Carry forward Exists. The ASU requires that endisbould present an unrecognized tax benefit aduction of the deferred tax asset for a ne
operating loss, or NOL, or similar tax loss or tawdit carry forward rather than as a liability wh@e uncertain tax position would reduce the
NOL or other carry forward under the tax law. Nevrdisclosures will be necessary. The new standaedféctive for fiscal years, and inter
periods within those years, beginning after Decamibe 2013, and should be applied prospectiveblitanrecognized tax benefits that exist at
the effective date. Retrospective application isnéed. The adoption of this ASU has no impacban results of operations or financial
position.
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Obligations Resulting from Joint and Several Liabil ity Arrangements for Which the Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed
at the Reporting Date

In February 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013aljgations Resulting from Joint and Several LigpiRrrangements for Which the
Total Amount of the Obligation is Fixed at the Repw Date. The ASU requires the measurement afatibns resulting from joint and
several liability arrangements for which the t@aiount of the obligation is fixed at the reportdage as the sum of the amount the reporting
entity agreed to pay on the basis of its arrangémvéh its co-obligors as well as any additionalamt that the entity expects to pay on behalf
of its co-obligors. The new standard is effectigtraspectively for fiscal years and interim periadthin those years, beginning after
December 15, 2013, and early adoption is permifted.adoption of this ASU has no impact on our lteaf operations or financial position.

NOTE 2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

During 2012, we completed two acquisitions, Maialand Gateway. Goodwill was calculated as the sxakthe consideration exchanged
over the net identifiable assets acquired from eacfuisition and will not be deductible for tax poses. Goodwill from both acquisitions was
assigned to our Community Banking segment.

On March 9, 2012, we acquired 100 percent of thmgshares of Mainline, located in Ebensburg, Bglwania, which was the holding
company and sole shareholder of Mainline NatiorailB The acquisition expanded our market shardaotdrint throughout Cambria and
Blair Counties of Western Pennsylvania. Mainlinarstholders were entitled to elect to receive faheshare of Mainline common stock either
$69.00 in cash or 3.6316 shares of S&T common siMekalso purchased Mainline’s preferred stockddsunder the U.S. Treasury Capital
Purchase Program, or CPP, for $4.7 million on M&cR012. The preferred stock was purchased aiddets part of the merger transaction.
Purchase accounting guidance allows for a reasenmvlod of time following an acquisition for thegaiirer to obtain the information
necessary to complete the accounting for a bustesbination. This period, known as the measuremperivd, shall not exceed one year fr
the acquisition date. The measurement period foMhinline acquisition ended on March 9, 2013. ABecember 31, 2012, other liabilities
assumed in the Mainline acquisition were $2.1 onillifollowing the recording of a contingent liabyjilof $0.5 million discovered during the
measurement period that related to an IRS proppsedity for tax year 2010 for Mainline. In July 2)the IRS waived the $0.5 million
proposed penalty which resulted in the revershisfexpense through our Consolidated StatemelNebfncome since the measurement pe
was over and goodwill could no longer be adjus@akh paid to former Mainline shareholders was $8llion and the fair value of common
shares issued was $14.8 million.

On August 13, 2012, we acquired 100 percent of/ttimg shares of Gateway, located in McMurray, Bghrania. The acquisition
expanded our market share and footprint into Wagbimand Butler counties in Pennsylvania. The memsent period for the Gateway
acquisition ended on August 13, 2013. Gateway $lodders were entitled to receive $3.08 in cash@Af57 of a share of S&T common stock
in exchange for one share of Gateway common staslof December 31, 2012, Gateway was operatingsaparate wholly-owned subsidiary
of S&T. On February 8, 2013, Gateway Bank was nttige S&T Bank, and their two branches becamey fofierational branches of S&T
Bank. Cash paid to former Gateway shareholderspyasmillion and the fair value of common sharassiésl was $13.3 million. We also
settled outstanding equity awards for $1.0 million.

93



Table of Contents

NOTE 2. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS — continued

The following table summarizes total considerapaid, assets acquired and liabilities assumeddtr the Mainline and Gateway
acquisitions:

(dollars in thousands) Mainline Gateway Combined
Consideration Paid
Cash $ 12,90 $ 6,23¢ $ 19,14
Common stocl 14,78¢ 13,28¢ 28,07(
Fair value of previously held equity inter 74 272 34¢€
Fair Value of Total Consideration $ 27,76¢ $ 19,79 $ 47,55¢
Fair Value of Assets Acquired
Cash and cash equivalel $ 17,768 $ 20,01¢ $ 37,78:
Securities and other investme 73,32¢ 9,56¢ 82,89:
Loans 129,50: 99,00: 228,50:
Premises and other equipm: 2,28( 49t 2,77¢
Core deposit intangibl 90C 431 1,331
Other asset 12,43¢ 2,66¢ 15,10:
Total Assets Acquired $ 236,21( $ 132,17t $ 368,38t
Fair Value of Liabilities Assumed
Deposits 205,98¢ 105,40( 311,38¢
Borrowings 6,997 9,771 16,77«
Other liabilities 2,144 1,06¢ 3,21:
Total Liabilities Assumed $ 215,13( $116,24! $ 331,37!
Total Fair Value of Identifiable Net Assets 21,08( 15,93 37,01
Goodwill $ 6,68/ $ 3,86¢ $ 10,547

Acquired loans were recorded at fair value wittcaayover of the related ALL. Determining the fa&lue of the loans involved estimati
the amount and timing of principal and interesthcfi@mws expected to be collected on the loans ascbdnting those cash flows at a market
of interest. Loans acquired with evidence of crgdility deterioration were not significant. We acgd $231.9 million of gross loans and
recognized a net combined yield and credit mark3o8 million.

Direct costs related to the acquisitions were egpdras incurred. As of December 31, 2012, we rezedra combined total of $6.0 milli
of merger related expense. For the Mainline actioisiwe recognized $4.5 million of merger relagegbense during 2012; including $1.8
million in change in control, severance and othepleyee costs, $2.0 million in data processing @mttermination and conversion costs and
$0.7 million in legal, professional and other exgeriMinimal merger related expense pertaining édMiainline acquisition was recognized in
2013. For the Gateway acquisition, we recognize8 #iillion of merger related expense; consistingnprily of legal, professional and other
expense of $0.6 million, $0.6 million in changecontrol, severance and other employee costs adnfillion in data processing contract
termination and conversion costs. During 2013, @gnized an additional $0.8 million in Gateway geerelated expense, primarily due to
the system conversion in February 2013.
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The following table reconciles the numerators aedaininators of basic and diluted EPS:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands, except share and per share data) 2013 2012 2011
Numerator for Earnings per Common Share—Basic:
Net income $ 50,53¢ $  34,20( $ 47,26¢
Less: Preferred stock dividends and discount a@aiitin — — 7,611
Less: Income allocated to participating she 147 12€ 13C
Net Income Allocated to Common Shareholder $ 50,39: $ 34,07 $ 39,52¢
Numerator for Earnings per Common Share—Diluted:
Net income $ 50,53¢ $  34,20( $ 47,26¢
Less: Preferred stock dividends and discount amaiitin — — 7,611
Net Income Available to Common Shareholder $ 50,53¢ $  34,20( $  39,65:
Denominators:
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstandi—Basic 29,647,23 28,976,61 27,966,98
Add: Dilutive potential common shar 35,32: 32,26! 23,16¢
Denominator for Treasury Stock Methoc—Diluted 29,682,55 29,008,88 27,990,15
Weighted Average Common Shares Outstanding—Basic 29,647,23 28,976,61 27,966,98
Add: Average participating shares outstanc 86,49( 107,27: 92,21
Denominator for Two-Class Methoc—Diluted 29,733,72 29,083,89 28,059,19
Earnings per common sh—basic $ 1.7C $ 1.1¢ $ 1.41
Earnings per common sh—diluted $ 1.7C $ 1.1¢ $ 1.41
Warrants considered anti-dilutive excluded fronutiNle potential common

shares 517,01: 517,01: 517,01:
Stock options considered anti-dilutive excludedrfrdilutive potential common

shares 619,41¢ 747,44 757,58(
Restricted stock considered anti-dilutive excluffedh dilutive potential

common share 51,16¢ 75,01% 69,04
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The following tables present our assets and ligslithat are measured at fair value on a reculrasis by fair value hierarchy level at
December 31, 2013 and 2012. There were no transédnseen Level 1 and Level 2 for items measurddiavalue on a recurring basis during
the periods presented.

December 31, 2013

(dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS
Securities availab-for-sale:
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchags $ — $234,75: $ — $234,75:
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenircorporations and agenc — 63,77¢ — 63,77¢
Residential mortgage-backed securities of U.S. gowent corporations and
agencies — 48,66¢ — 48,66¢
Commercial mortgage-backed securities of U.S. gowent corporations and
agencies — 39,05: — 39,05:
Obligations of states and political subdivisic — 114,26: — 114,26«
Marketable equity securitie 202 8,71: — 8,91¢
Total securities availablefor-sale 20z 509,22: — 509,42!
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 2,86¢ — — 2,86¢
Total securities 3,06¢ 509,22: — 512,28¢
Derivative financial asset
Interest rate sway — 13,69¢ — 13,69¢
Interest rate lock commitmer — 85 — 85
Forward sale contrac — 34 — 34
Total Assets $3,06¢ $523,04( $ — $526,10¢
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate sway $ — $ 13,64: $ — $ 13,64
Total Liabilities $ — $ 13,64: $ — $ 13,64:
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December 31, 2012

(dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS
Securities availab-for-sale:
Obligations of U.S. government corporations anchages $ — $212066 $ — $212,06¢
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveentrcorporations and agenc — 57,89¢ — 57,89t
Residential mortgar-backed securities of U.S. government corporatiosagencie — 50,62: — 50,62:
Commercial mortga¢-backed securities of U.S. government corporationkagencie — 10,15¢ — 10,15¢
Obligations of states and political subdivisic — 112,76 — 112,76
Marketable equity securitie 14C 8,31¢ 30C 8,75¢
Total securities availablefor-sale 14C 451,82¢ 30C 452,26t
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 2,22: — — 2,228
Total securities 2,36: 451,82t 30C 454,48
Derivative financial asset
Interest rate sway — 23,74¢ — 23,74¢
Interest rate lock commitmer — 467 — 467
Total Assets $2,36:  $476,04. $ 30C $478,70:
LIABILITIES
Derivative financial liabilities
Interest rate sway $ — $23522 $ — $ 2352
Forward sale contrac — 48 — 48
Total Liabilities $ — $2357C $ — $ 23,57(

We classify financial instruments as Level 3 whatugtion models are used because significant irgret®iot observable in the market.
The following table presents the changes in assetsured at fair value on a recurring basis foclviaie have utilized Level 3 inputs to
determine the fair value:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012

Balance at beginning of ye $ 30C $ 46z
Total gains included in other comprehensive incdlogs)® 44 75
Net purchases, sales, issuances and settle| — (237)
Transfers out of Level (344 —
Balance at End of Yeat $ — $  30C

@) Changes in estimated fair value of available-gate investments are recorded in accumulated atberprehensive income (loss) while gains and lossessales are recorded in
security gains (losses), net in the ConsolidatedeBtents of Net Incom

In the second quarter of 2013, $0.3 million wasgfarred out of Level 3 into Level 2 as a resulaaiecurity becoming listed on a national
securities exchange. There were no Level 3 liaddlimeasured at fair value on a recurring basiarigrof the periods presented.
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NOTE 4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS — continued

We may be required to measure certain assetsalitities on a nonrecurring basis. Nonrecurringetsare recorded at the lower of cos
fair value in our financial statements. There waodiabilities measured at fair value on a nonrgngrbasis at December 31, 2013 and 2012.
The following table presents our assets that arsomed at fair value on a nonrecurring basis bydhevalue hierarchy level as of the dates
presented:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

(dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
ASSETS®

Loans held for sal $ — $ — $151¢ $151c $ — $ — $ — $ —
Impaired loan: — — 19,197 19,197 — — 44,05¢ 44,05¢
Other real estate ownt — — 317 317 — — 58t 58t
Mortgage servicing right — — 1,02t 1,02t — — 2,10¢ 2,10¢
Total Assets $ — $ —  $22,05¢F $22,05¢ $ — $ —  $46,75(  $46,75(

@) This table presents only the nonrecurring items #ra recorded at fair value in our financial stetents
The carrying values and fair values of our finahitiatruments at December 31, 2013 and 2012 aiepted in the following tables:

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2013

Carryin(I;

(dollars in thousands) Value (D) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks, including inte-bearing deposit $ 108,35¢ $ 108,35t $108,35¢ $ — $ —
Securities availab-for-sale 509,42! 509,42! 202 509,22: —
Loans held for sal 2,13¢ 2,13¢ — — 2,13¢
Portfolio loans, net of unearned incol 3,566,19! 3,538,07: — — 3,538,07.
Bank owned life insuranc 60,48( 60,48( — 60,48( —
FHLB and other restricted sto 13,62¢ 13,62¢ — — 13,62¢
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 2,86¢ 2,86¢ 2,86¢ — —
Mortgage servicing right 2,91¢ 3,14: — — 3,14:
Interest rate sway 13,69¢ 13,69¢ — 13,69¢ —
Interest rate lock commitmer 85 85 — 85 —
Forward sale contrac 34 34 — 34 —

LIABILITIES
Deposits $3,672,30: $3,673,62. $ — $ — $3,673,62.
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 33,84% 33,84" — — 33,84%
Shor-term borrowings 140,00( 140,00( — — 140,00(
Long-term borrowings 21,81( 22,92: — — 22,92¢
Junior subordinated debt securit 45,61¢ 45,61¢ — — 45,61¢
Interest rate sway 13,64% 13,64° — 13,64% —

@) As reported in the Consolidated Balance Sh
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NOTE 4. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS — continued

Fair Value Measurements at December 31, 2012

Carryin?

(dollars in thousands) value ) Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks, including inte-bearing deposit $ 337,71 $ 337,71 $337,71: $ — $ —
Securities availab-for-sale 452,26t 452,26t 14C 451,82t 30C
Loans held for sal 22,49¢ 22,60 — — 22,60
Portfolio loans, net of unearned incol 3,346,62; 3,347,60:; — — 3,347,60:;
Bank owned life insuranc 58,61¢ 58,61¢ — 58,61¢ —
FHLB and other restricted sto 15,31t 15,31t — — 15,31t
Trading securities held in a Rabbi Tr 2,22: 2,22: 2,22: — —
Mortgage servicing right 2,10¢ 2,10¢ — — 2,10¢
Interest rate sway 23,74¢ 23,74¢ — 23,74¢ —
Interest rate lock commitmer 467 467 — 467 —

LIABILITIES
Deposits $3,638,42! $3,643,68. $ — $ — $3,643,68.
Securities sold under repurchase agreen 62,58: 62,58: — — 62,58:
Shor-term borrowings 75,00( 75,00( — — 75,00(
Long-term borrowings 34,10: 36,23¢ — — 36,23
Junior subordinated debt securit 90,61¢ 90,61¢ — — 90,61¢
Interest rate sway 23,52: 23,52: — 23,52: —
Forward sale contrac 48 48 — 48 —

@) As reported in the Consolidated Balance Sh

NOTE 5. RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND DUE FROM BANK ACCO UNTS

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve 8ystethe Federal Reserve, imposes certain resequerements on all depository
institutions. These reserves are maintained iridima of vault cash or as an interest-bearing baamith the Federal Reserve. The required
reserves averaged $39.7 million for the year er#d® and $36.6 million for the years ended 2012201dL.

NOTE 6. DIVIDEND AND LOAN RESTRICTIONS

S&T is a legal entity separate and distinct frosnbianking and other subsidiaries. A substantigigoof our revenues consist of dividend
payments we receive from S&T Bank. S&T Bank, imfus subject to state laws and regulations thait the amount of dividends it can pay to
us. In addition, both S&T and S&T Bank are subjectarious general regulatory policies relatinghte payment of dividends, including
requirements to maintain adequate capital abovdatgy minimums. The Federal Reserve has indicttgatdbanking organizations should
generally pay dividends only if (i) the organizat®net income available to common shareholders theepast year has been sufficient to fully
fund the dividends and (ii) the prospective rateafings retention appears consistent with tharorgtion’s capital needs, asset quality and
overall financial condition. Thus, under certaircaimstances based upon our financial conditionability to declare and pay quarterly
dividends may require consultation with the FedBegerve and may be prohibited by applicable Fé&earserve regulations. If we were to |
a dividend in contravention of Federal Reserve let@gns, the Federal Reserve could raise supegvismmcerns. We redeemed our Series A
Preferred Stock on December 7, 2011, and thergferare no longer subject to the dividend restnictioposed by participation in the CPP.
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NOTE 6. DIVIDEND AND LOAN RESTRICTIONS — continued

Federal law prohibits us from borrowing from S&Trikaunless such loans are collateralized by speaffigations. Further, such loans .
limited to 10 percent of S&T Bank’s capital and ditdthal paid-in capital. In April 2012, we closedb&.0 million line of credit with S&T Bank
that had been secured by investments of anotheidiaty of S&T.

NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The following tables present the amortized costfaindvalue of available-for-sale securities ashaf dates presented:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Gross Gross Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized Amortized Unrealized  Unrealized
(dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Fair Value Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Obligations of U.S. government
corporations and agenci $235,18. $ 2,151 $ (2,58)) $234,75. $207,22¢ $ 4,89C $ (53) $212,06¢

Collateralized mortgage obligations of

U.S. government corporations and

agencies 63,77¢ 601 (603%) 63,77 56,08t 1,811 — 57,89¢
Residential mortgage-backed securit

of U.S. government corporations &

agencies 47,93¢ 1,42( (68E) 48,66¢ 47,27¢ 3,34¢ — 50,62:
Commercial mortgagbacked securitie

of U.S. government corporations &

agencies 40,35’ — (1,305 39,05: 10,12¢ 29 — 10,15¢
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 115,57: 1,294 (2,602 114,26¢ 107,91: 4,90¢ (52) 112,76
Debt Securities 502,82( 5,46¢ (7,77¢p  500,51( 428,63 14,98: (105) 443,51
Marketable equity securitie 7,57¢ 1,33¢ — 8,91¢ 7,672 1,09t (12) 8,75¢
Total $510,39¢ $ 6,802 $ (7,776 $509,42' $436,30! $ 16,077 $ (11€) $452,26¢
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NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE — continued

The following table shows the composition of grass net realized gains and losses for the periceisepted:

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Gross realized gair $ 5 $ 3,02
Gross realized losst — 11
Net Realized Gains $ 5 $ 3,01¢

The following tables present the fair value anddbe of gross unrealized losses by investment eate of the dates presented:

December 31, 2013

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or More Total
Number Unrealized Number Unrealized Unrealized
of of
(dollars in thousands) Securities Fair Value Losses Securities Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses
Obligations of U.S. government
corporations and agenci 16  $126,01° $ (2,58)) —  $ — —  $126,01° $ (2,58))

Collateralized mortgage

obligations of U.S. government

corporations and agenci 3 39,52: (6039) — — — 39,52: (603)
Residential mortgage-backed

securities of U.S. governmen

corporations and agenci 2 22,82 (68E) — — — 22,82: (685)
Commercial mortgage-backed

securities of U.S. government

corporations and agenci 4 39,05: (1,305 — — — 39,05: (1,305
Obligations of states and politice

subdivisions 16 47,52¢ (1,739 2 10,08¢ (869 57,611 (2,602
Debt Securities 41 274,94, (6,919 2 10,08¢ (869) 285,03 (7,776

Marketable equity securitie — — — — — — — _

Total Temporarily Impaired
Securities 41 $27494. $ (6,919 2 $10,08¢ $ (863 $285,03( $ (7,776
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NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE — continued

(dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2012

Less Than 12 Months

12 Months or More

Total

Number

of

Securities

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

Number Unrealized
of
Securities

Fair Value Losses

Unrealized

Fair Value Losses

Obligations of U.S. governmen
corporations and agenci

Collateralized mortgage
obligations of U.S.
government corporations and
agencies

Residential mortgage-backed
securities of U.S. governmet
corporations and agenci

Commercial mortgage-backed
securities of U.S. government
corporations and agenci

Obligations of states and politic
subdivisions

2

w

$11,37C  $ (59

11,28¢ (52)

- $ — 3 —

$11,37C  $ (59

11,28¢ (52)

Debt Securities
Marketable equity securitie

22,65t (105)
22¢ (11)

22,65¢ (105)
22¢ (11)

Total Temporarily Impaired
Securities

5

$2288  $ (116

- $ — 3 —

$2288 $ (116

We do not believe any individual unrealized losefBecember 31, 2013 represents an OTTI. As oebdxer 31, 2013, the unrealized
losses on 43 debt securities were primarily atteble to changes in interest rates and not retatéuke credit quality of these securities. All ¢
securities are determined to be investment gradexenpaying principal and interest according edbntractual terms of the security. There
were no unrealized losses on marketable equityrsiesu We do not intend to sell and it is moreelikthan not that we will not be required to
sell any of the securities in an unrealized lossitium before recovery of their amortized cost.

Net unrealized losses of $0.6 million and net ulired gains of $10.4 million were included in acadated other comprehensive income
(loss), net of tax, at December 31, 2013 and 20h2ealized gains of $4.4 million and $10.5 milliovet of tax, were netted against unrealized
losses of $5.0 million and $0.1 million, net of t&éor these same periods. During 2013 reclassifinatout of accumulated other comprehen
income (loss) into earnings were insignificant. iDgr2012, unrealized gains, net of tax, reclassifiat of accumulated other comprehensive
income (loss) into earnings were $2.0 million, whihrealized losses reclassified into earningedord OTTI were minimal.
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NOTE 7. SECURITIES AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE — continued

The amortized cost and fair value of securitieslalbke-for-sale at December 31, 2013 by contraatuatiurity are included in the table
below. Actual maturities may differ from contradtusaturities because issuers may have the rigbaltar prepay obligations with or without
call or prepayment penalties.

December 31, 2013

Amortized

(dollars in thousands) Cost Fair Value
Due in one year or le: $ 27,76 $ 27,90¢
Due after one year through five ye. 167,91« 168,87
Due after five years through ten ye 69,36« 68,02«
Due after ten yeal 85,71« 84,21«

350,75: 349,01!
Collateralized mortgage obligations of U.S. goveenircorporations and agenc 63,77¢ 63,77¢
Residential mortga¢-backed securities of U.S. government corporatiomisagencie 47,93¢ 48,66¢
Commercial mortga¢-backed securities of U.S. government corporationkagencie 40,35’ 39,05
Debt Securities 502,82 500,51(
Marketable equity securitie 7,57¢ 8,91¢
Total $ 510,39¢ $ 509,42!

At December 31, 2013 and 2012, securities withyagrvalues of $243.2 million and $307.5 million negpledged for various regulatory
and legal requirements.

NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE

Loans are presented net of unearned income ofrilliBn and $0.2 million at December 31, 2013 a®d 2 The following table indicates
the composition of the loans as of the dates pteden

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Commercia
Commercial real esta $ 1,607,75 $ 1,452,13
Commercial and industri 842,44¢ 791,39t
Commercial constructio 143,67! 168,14
Total Commercial Loan 2,593,88! 2,411,67.
Consume
Residential mortgag 487,09: 427,30:
Home equity 414,19! 431,33!
Installment and other consurnr 67,88:¢ 73,87¢
Consumer constructic 3,14¢ 2,437
Total Consumer Loar 972,31¢ 934,95(
Total Portfolio Loans 3,566,19! 3,346,62.
Loans held for sal 2,13¢ 22,49¢
Total Loans $ 3,568,33! $ 3,369,12
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

As of December 31, 2012 we had $19.3 million imiaeld for sale that related to a participatianléor which we had not received fur
from the participating banks.

We attempt to limit our exposure to credit riskdiyersifying our loan portfolio and actively managiconcentrations. When
concentrations exist in certain segments, we nigigfais risk by monitoring the relevant economidiaators and internal risk rating trends and
through stress testing. Total commercial loansasgmted 73 percent of total portfolio loans at Drawer 31, 2013 and 72 percent of total
portfolio loans at December 31, 2012. Within oumeooercial portfolio, CRE and commercial constructmmmtfolios combined comprise 68
percent of total commercial loans and 49 percemttad portfolio loans at December 31, 2013 angbéitent of total commercial loans and 48
percent of total portfolio loans at December 311 20~urther segmentation of the CRE and commetoiastruction portfolios by industry and
collateral type reveal no concentration in excdssre percent of total loans at either December2813 or December 31, 2012. The majority
of both commercial and consumer loans are madesmésses and individuals in Western Pennsylvasialting in a geographic concentrati
The conditions of the local and regional econoraiesmonitored closely through publicly availabléadas well as information supplied by our
customers. Management believes underwriting guidsliactive monitoring of economic conditions andaing review by credit
administration mitigates the concentration risksprd in the loan portfolio. Only the CRE and conerarconstruction portfolios combined
have any significant out-of-state exposure wittp28ent of the combined portfolio and 11 percenbt#l loans being out-of-state loans at
December 31, 2013 and 19 percent of the combingébpo and nine percent of total loans being ofistate loans at December 31, 2012. Our
CRE and commercial construction portfolios combinetiofstate exposure, excluding the contiguous stat€&had, West Virginia, New Yor
and Maryland, was 7.9 percent of the combined pliotind 3.9 percent of total loans at Decembe2813 and 8.4 percent of the combined
portfolio and 4.1 percent of total loans at Decenfiie 2012.

The following table summarizes the restructuredhdoas of the dates presented:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Performing Nonperforming Performing Nonperforming

Total Total
(dollars in thousands) TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs TDRs
Commercial real esta $ 19,71: % 3,89¢ $2360¢ $ 1422( $ 9,582  $23,80:
Commercial and industri 7,521 1,88¢ 9,40¢ 8,27( 93¢ 9,20¢
Commercial constructio 5,33¢ 2,70¢ 8,04¢ 11,73 5,32¢ 17,05¢
Residential mortgag 2,581 1,35¢ 3,931 3,07¢ 2,752 5,83(
Home equity 3,92¢ 21¢ 4,14z 4,19¢ 341 4,53¢
Installment and other consurr 154 3 157 24 — 24
Total $ 39,22¢ $ 10,067 $49,29¢ $ 4152 $ 18,94(  $60,46:
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

The following tables present the restructured Idanshe 12 months ended December 31:

2013
Pre-Modification Post -Modification
Outstanding Outstanding Total Difference
Number of Recorded Recorded in Recorded
(dollars in thousands) Loans Investment (Y Investment (Y Investment
Commercial real estate
Principal deferra 4 $ 2,772 $ 2,49¢ $ (27¢)
Interest rate reduction and maturity dat:
extensior 2 664 63€ (28)
Principal forgivenes® 1 4,33¢ 4,21¢ (123)
Maturity date extensio 1 21¢ 21¢ —
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 6 227 19C (37
Commercial and industrial
Principal deferra 2 67C 63€ (32
Maturity date extensio 1 751 73¢ (12
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 1 3 1 (2
Residential mortgage
Principal deferra 2 15z 14¢ (4)
Interest rate reductic 1 54 54 —
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 8 617 59z (25)
Home equity
Principal deferra 1 174 17 (157)
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 3C 1,032 982 (50)
Installment and other consumer
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 11 104 91 (13)
Total by Concession Type
Principal deferra 9 3,76¢ 3,29¢ (477
Interest rate reductic 1 54 54 —
Interest rate reduction and maturity datt
extensior 2 664 63€ (28)
Principal forgivenes® 1 4,33¢ 4,21¢ (123
Maturity date extensio 2 97C 95¢ (12
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 56 1,98 1,85¢ (127)
Total 71 $ 11,77¢ $ 11,01¢ $ (761

@ Excludes loans that were fully paid off or fullyacgec-off by period end. The pre-modification balancpresents the balance outstanding prior to modifaratThe post-modification
balance represents the outstanding balance at gezitd.

() This loan had debt forgiveness of $0.1 milliorhie ¢ustomer; however, the loan was previously ouaff to a balance below the actual contractudhhae.

(3  Chapter 7 bankruptcy loans where the debt has beally discharged through the bankruptcy court ad reaffirmed
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

2012
Pre-Modification Post -Modification
Outstanding Outstanding Total Difference
Number of Recorded Recorded in Recorded
(dollars in thousands) Loans Investment (1) Investment (1) Investment
Commercial real estate
Maturity date extensio 3 $ 704 $ 693 $ (11)
Interest rate reductic 2 1,78¢ 1,76¢ ()
Commercial and industrial
Maturity date extensio 4 2,82¢ 2,601 (229
Commercial construction
Maturity date extensio 6 2,89¢ 1,87¢ (1,020
Residential mortgage
Maturity date extensio 1 47¢E 43¢ (36)
Interest rate reductic 2 67 67 —
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 76 2,34¢ 2,34¢ —
Home Equity
Discharge of det 161 4,53( 4,53( —
Installment and other consumer
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 5 25 25 —
Total by Concession Type
Maturity date extensio 14 6,89¢ 5,601 (1,29))
Interest rate reductic 4 1,852 1,83t ()]
Chapter 7 bankruptc® 242 6,90/ 6,90/ —
Total 26C $ 15,654 $ 14,34¢ $ (1,308

@ Excludes loans that were fully paid off or fullyacgec-off by period end. The pre-modification balancpresents the balance outstanding prior to modifaratThe post-modification

balance represents the outstanding balance at pezitd.
(®)  Chapter 7 bankruptcy loans where the debt has besally discharged through the bankruptcy court amd reaffirmed

During 2013, we had $2.0 million of new TDRs rethte our consumer portfolio for borrowers who hiaéit debt discharged and not
reaffirmed through Chapter 7 bankruptcy compare®6t® million in 2012. These loans are almostelarted as accruing TDRs as the
borrowers are current on their payments and mabnbézhistory of delinquency.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, we modifledddns that were not considered to be TDRs, incgitivo CRE loans totaling $1.1
million, six C&I loans totaling $6.4 million, twoammercial construction loans totaling $0.6 millamd a $0.9 million residential mortgage
loan. Modifications primarily represented insigo#nt delays in the timing of payments, concessidmsre we were adequately compensated
through principal pay downs, fees or additionalateral or we concluded that no concession wastgdars of December 31, 2013, we have
no commitments to lend additional funds on any TDRs

We returned six TDRs to accruing status duringttheve months ended December 31, 2013 totaling $fillon. We did not return any
TDRs to accruing status during the twelve montldedrDecember 31, 2012.
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NOTE 8. LOANS AND LOANS HELD FOR SALE — continued

Defaulted TDRs are loans having a payment defd@0alays or more after the restructuring takesegld@he following table is a summary
of TDRs which defaulted during the years ended By 31, 2013 and 2012 that had been restructuitbthwhe last 12 months prior to
defaulting:

Defaulted TDRs
For the For the
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Number of Number of

Recorded Recorded

(dollars in thousands) Defaults Investment Defaults Investment

Commercial real esta 1 $ 75 — $ —

Commercial and Industri 2 43¢ — —

Commercial constructio — — — —

Residential real esta 8 607 — —

Home equity 6 19z — —

Total 17 $ 1,31: — $ —

The following table is a summary of nonperformirsgets as of the dates presented:
December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Nonperforming Assets

Nonaccrual loan $12,387 $36,01¢

Nonaccrual TDR: 10,067 18,94(

Total nonaccrual loar 22,45¢ 54,95¢

OREO 41C 911

Total Nonperforming Assets $ 22,86¢ $ 55,86¢

OREO consists of eight properties and is includeother assets in the Consolidated Balance SHe&tsur policy to obtain OREO
appraisals on an annual basis.

We have granted loans to certain officers and thre®of S&T as well as to certain affiliates of tfficers and directors in the ordinary
course of business. These loans were made on stiblyathe same terms, including interest rated emllateral, as those prevailing at the time
for comparable transactions with unrelated persaosdid not involve more than normal risk of colédwlity.

The following table presents a summary of the aggpeamount of loans to any such persons as ofrileee31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of ye $ 36,07t $ 31,82:
New loans 22,53¢ 29,46
Repayment (34,767 (25,21))
Balance at End of Year $ 23,84¢ $ 36,07¢

NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

We maintain an ALL at a level determined to be adeg to absorb estimated probable credit lossesénhin the loan portfolio as of the
balance sheet date. We develop and document argtiteALL methodology based on the following poliicsegments: 1) CRE, 2) C&l, 3)
Commercial Construction, 4) Consumer Real EstademrOther Consumer.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

The following are key risks within each portfolieggnent:

CRE —Loans secured by commercial purpose real estatieiding both owner occupied properties and investnproperties for various
purposes such as hotels, strip malls and apartm@ptsrations of the individual projects as welfjsbal cash flows of the debtors are the
primary sources of repayment for these loans. Binglition of the local economy is an important iredar of risk, but there are also more
specific risks depending on the collateral typavel as the business prospects of the lesseeg iithject is not owner occupied.

C&|l —Loans made to operating companies or manufacttoethe purpose of production, operating capaeitgounts receivable, inventory
equipment financing. Cash flow from the operatiohthe company is the primary source of repaymenttfese loans. The condition of the
local economy is an important indicator of riskf there are also more specific risks dependindherirtdustry of the company. Collateral for
these types of loans often do not have sufficiahtein a distressed or liquidation scenario tsiathe outstanding debt.

Commercial Construction —Loans made to finance construction of buildingsthier structures, as well as to finance the adoqnsand
development of raw land for various purposes. Wihiterisk of these loans is generally confinech®donstruction period, if there are
problems, the project may not be complete, andiels, snay not provide sufficient cash flow on itsrote service the debt or have sufficient
value in a liquidation to cover the outstandingipipal. The condition of the local economy is appartant indicator of risk, but there are also
more specific risks depending on the type of piogexl the experience and resources of the developer

Consumer Real Estate —Loans secured by first and second liens such e teguity loans, home equity lines of credit andifamily
residences, including purchase money mortgagespiitmary source of repayment for these loans isrtheme and assets of the borrower.
condition of the local economy, in particular theemployment rate, is an important indicator of fizskthis segment. The state of the local
housing market can also have a significant impadhes segment because low demand and/or declivonge values can limit the ability of
borrowers to sell a property and satisfy the debt.

Other Consumer —Loans made to individuals that may be securedshgta other than 1-4 family residences, as welhaecured loans. This
segment includes auto loans, unsecured loans mesldind credit cards. The primary source of repayfoe these loans is the income and
assets of the borrower. The condition of the lec@nomy, in particular the unemployment rate, isngportant indicator of risk for this
segment. The value of the collateral, if therenig, as less likely to be a source of repaymenttduess certain collateral values.

We further assess risk within each portfolio segngrpooling loans with similar risk characteristi€-or the commercial loan classes, the
most important indicator of risk is the internadlgsigned risk rating, including pass, special noargind substandard. Consumer loans are
pooled by type of collateral, lien position and LT&f consumer real estate loans. Historical losssrare applied to these loan pools to
determine the reserve for loans collectively evi@ddor impairment. Management monitors variouslitrguality indicators for both the
commercial and consumer loan portfolios, includitetinquency, nonperforming status and changeskratings on a monthly basis.

We monitor our ALL methodology to ensure that itésponsive to the current economic environmenér@hwe past year, the economic
conditions within our markets have improved, andhaee experienced significant improvement in oeditrquality, including lower net
charge-offs, lower delinquency, lower nonperformliogns and lower special mention and substandarsloompared to December 31, 2012.
Accordingly, the assumptions used within the ALLreveeevaluated during the third quarter of 201Begesponsive to the improved economic
environment and the changes in our credit quality.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

The ALL methodology for groups of loans collectiyelvaluated for impairment is comprised of bottuargitative and qualitative analy:s
A key assumption in the quantitative componentefreserve is the loss emergence period, or LE€ LER is an estimate of the average
amount of time from the point at which a loss istimed on a loan to the point at which the lossisfirmed. In general, the LEP will be shol
in an economic slowdown or recession and longeinduimes of economic stability or growth, as cuséss are better able to delay loss
confirmation after a potential loss event has aaalirDue to the recent improvement in economic itimms, we completed an internal study
utilizing our loan charge-off history to recalibeahe LEPs of the commercial portfolio segmentsistient with the improved economic
conditions, the LEPs have lengthened, and as & resulengthened our LEP assumption for each efcbmmercial portfolio segments. We
believe that the consumer portfolio segment LER® lzdso lengthened as they are influenced by time $aprovement in economic conditions
that impacted the commercial portfolio segments.tiiéeefore also lengthened the LEP assumptiorhiaconsumer portfolio segments during
the third quarter of 2013.

The changes made to the ALL assumptions were appti@spectively and did not result in a materiarape to the total ALL at
September 30, 2013. Lengthening the LEP does iserthee historical loss rates and therefore thetgatine component of the ALL. We
believe this makes the quantitative component ®&hL more reflective of inherent losses that ewigthin the loan portfolio, which resulted
a decrease in the qualitative component of the Alllie changes to the LEPs also improved our insijbtthe inherent risk of the individual
commercial portfolio segments. As the economic @ s have improved, our data indicates that tREEGegment has less inherent loss and
that the C&l segment contains greater inherent [bse ALL at December 31, 2013 reflects these chanmgthin the CRE and C&I portfolio
segments.

The following tables present the age analysis of dae loans segregated by class of loans as dfties presented:

December 31, 2013

Total

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Non- Past Due
(dollars in thousands) Current Past Due Past Due performing Loans Total Loans
Commercial real esta $1,595,59 $ 1,20¢ $ 207 $ 10,75( $12,16¢ $1,607,75!
Commercial and industri: 836,27t 2,59¢ 27¢ 3,29¢ 6,17: 842,44
Commercial constructio 139,13¢ 1,04¢ 751 2,742 4,547 143,67!
Residential mortgag 481,26( 82¢ 1,66¢ 3,33¢ 5,83z 487,09:
Home equity 408,77 2,46¢ 65¢ 2,291 5,41¢ 414,19!
Installment and other consunr 67,42( 382 44 37 462 67,88:
Consumer constructic 3,14¢ — — — — 3,14¢
Total $3,531,60! $ 8,53¢ $ 3,60¢ $ 22,45¢ $34,59¢ $3,566,19!
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

December 31, 2012

Total

30-59 Days 60-89 Days Non- Past Due
(dollars in thousands) Current Past Due Past Due performing Loans Total Loans
Commercial real esta $1,41893 $ 223( $ 41 $ 30,55¢ $33,19¢ $1,452,13.
Commercial and industri; 780,31! 4,40¢ 237 6,43¢ 11,08: 791,39¢
Commercial constructio 150,82: 10,54: — 6,77¢ 17,32( 168,14
Residential mortgag 416,36« 1,71z 1,94¢ 7,27¢ 10,93¢ 427,30:
Home equity 424,48! 2,33¢ 86¢ 3,65¢ 6,85( 431,33!
Installment and other consunr 73,33¢ 40€ 95 4C 541 73,87¢
Consumer constructic 2,21¢ — — 21¢ 21¢ 2,437
Total $3,266,47. $ 21,63 $ 3,55¢ $ 54,95¢ $80,14¢ $3,346,62

We monitor the commercial loan portfolio throughiaternal risk rating system. Loan risk ratings assigned based upon the
creditworthiness of the borrower and are reviewe@ ongoing basis according to our internal pedicl oans within the pass rating generally
have a lower risk of loss than loans risk ratedpescial mention and substandard.

Our risk ratings are consistent with regulatorydgmice and are as follows:

Pass—The loan is currently performing and is of higlatity.

Special Mention—A special mention loan has potential weaknessaswhrrant management’s close attention. If letarrected, these
potential weaknesses may result in deterioraticth@fepayment prospects or in the strength otmdit position at some future date.
Economic and market conditions, beyond the borrtsa@mtrol, may in the future necessitate this gifasation.

Substandard—A substandard loan is not adequately protecteithéyet worth and/or paying capacity of the bornowreby the collateral
pledged, if any. Substandard loans have a welhddfiveakness, or weaknesses that jeopardize thdditpn of the debt. These loans are
characterized by the distinct possibility that wit sustain some loss if the deficiencies are ratected.

The following tables present the recorded investrirenommercial loan classes by internally assigm&dratings as of the dates presen

December 31, 2013

Commercial % of Commercial % of Commercial % of % of
(dollars in thousands) Real Estate Total and Industrial Total Construction Total Total Total
Pass $1,519,72 945% $ 792,02 94.% $ 119,17 82.9% $2,430,92 93.1%
Special mentiol 57,07: 3.6% 34,08t 4.1% 15,62 10.9% 106,77¢ 4.1%
Substandar 30,96 1.£% 16,33¢ 1.£% 8,87 6.2% 56,17¢ 2.2%
Total $1,607,75 100.% $ 842,44 100.(% $ 143,67' 100.% $2,593,88! 100.(%
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

December 31, 2012

Commercial % of Commercial % of Commercial % of % of
(dollars in thousands) Real Estate Total and Industrial Total Construction Total Total Total
Pass $1,265,81! 87.2% $ 718,07 90.7% $ 118,84: 70.1%  $2,102,72. 87.2%
Special mentiol 96,15¢ 6.€% 42,01¢ 5.2% 30,74¢ 18.2% 168,92( 7.C%
Substandar 90,16 6.2% 31,31( 4.C% 18,55¢ 11.(% 140,03 5.8%
Total $1,452,13. 100.% $ 791,39 100.(% $ 168,14. 100.% $2,411,67. 100.%

We monitor the delinquent status of the consumetfg@im on a monthly basis. Loans are consideredpesforming when interest and
principal are 90 days or more past due or managehasndetermined that a material deterioratioméntiorrower’s financial condition exists.

The risk of loss is generally highest for nonparfing loans.

The following tables present the recorded investrirenonsumer loan classes by performing and ndapeing status as of the dates

presented:
December 31, 2013
Installment
Residential
(dollars in % of Home % of and other % of Consumer % of % of
thousands) Mortgage  Total Equity  Total consumer _ Total Construction  Total Total Total
Performing $ 483,75 99.2%  $411,90: 99.46 $ 67,846 99.9% $ 3,14¢ 100.(%  $966,65: 99.4%
Nonperforming 3,33¢ 0.7% 2,291 0.€% 37 0.1% — — 5,66¢ 0.6%
Total $ 487,090 100.(%  $414,19! 100.% $ 67,88: 100.%0 $ 3,14¢  100.(%  $972,31¢ 100.(%
December 31, 2012
Installment
Residential
(dollars in % of Home % of and other % of Consumer % of % of
thousands) Mortgage  Total Equity  Total consumer  Total Construction Total Total Total
Performing $ 420,028 98.3%  $427,68] 99.2% $ 73,83t 99.9% $ 2,21¢  91.1%  $923,76: 98.8%
Nonperforming 7,27¢ 1.7% 3,65°% 0.6% 40 0.1% 21¢€ 8.9% 11,18¢ 1.2%
Total $ 427,300 100.(%  $431,33! 100.% $ 73,87 100.% $ 2,437 100.(%  $934,95( 100.(%

We individually evaluate all substandard and nonsgdccommercial loans greater than $0.5 millionifopairment. Loans are considere:
be impaired when based upon current informationearshts it is probable that we will be unable tbew all principal and interest payments
due according to the original contractual termthefloan agreement. All TDRs will be reported asnapaired loan for the remaining life of t
loan, unless the restructuring agreement spedcfidaterest rate equal to or greater than thethatewvould be accepted at the time of the
restructuring for a new loan with comparable risk & is expected that the remaining principal andrest will be fully collected according to
the restructured agreement. For all TDRs, regasdiésize, as well as all other impaired loanscaeduct further analysis to determine the
probable loss and assign a specific reserve ti#reif deemed appropriate.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

The following table presents investments in loamssadered to be impaired and related informatiothase impaired loans as of the dates
presented:

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Unpaid
Principal Unpaid
Recorded Related Recorded Principal Related
(dollars in thousands) Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance Allowance
With a related allowance recorde
Commercial real esta $ — $ — $ — $ 6,13¢ $ 6,86« $ 1,22¢
Commercial and industri — — — 1,86¢ 2,79( 1,00z
Commercial constructio 681 1,38: 25 79¢ 89¢ 3
Consumer real esta 53 53 53 — — —
Other consume 33 33 19 — — —
Total with a Related Allowance Recordec 767 1,46¢ 97 8,801 10,55( 2,231
Without a related allowance record:
Commercial real esta 26,96¢ 35,47 — 33,85¢ 45,95 —
Commercial and industri; 9,58( 9,70: — 11,41¢ 12,227 —
Commercial constructio 7,391 12,35! — 17,71: 27,48¢ —
Consumer real esta 8,02¢ 9,46¢ — 10,827 12,02¢ —
Other consume 124 12¢ — 25 25 —
Total without a Related Allowance Recordec 52,08¢ 67,12: — 73,84( 97,71¢ —
Total:
Commercial real esta 26,96¢ 35,47 — 39,99/ 52,81’ 1,22¢
Commercial and industri; 9,58( 9,70: — 13,28: 15,017 1,00z
Commercial constructio 8,07: 13,73¢ 25 18,51 28,38: 3
Consumer real esta 8,07¢ 9,51 53 10,827 12,02¢ —
Other consume 157 161 19 25 25 —
Total $ 52,85¢ $68,59: $ 97 $ 82,64 $108,26t¢ $ 2,231

As of December 31, 2013, $27.0 million of CRE loanmprised 51 percent of the total impaired lodrs5@.9 million. These impaired
loans are collateralized primarily by commerciallrestate properties such as retail or strip maffg;e buildings and various other types of
commercial purpose properties. These loans area@neonsidered collateral dependent and charfeaste recorded when a confirmed loss
exists. Approximately $9.9 million of charge-offave been recorded relating to these CRE loansthedife of these loans. It is our policy to
obtain appraisals on an annual basis on impairuslor sooner if facts and circumstances warrdwetraise. As of December 31, 2013, these
loans had collateral with an estimated fair vaksslcost to sell of approximately $43.7 million. Wae current appraisals on all CRE impa
loans except for one loan for $0.7 million. We hae¢ ordered an appraisal as we are currently regat a settlement agreement with the
borrower which would result in the collection oéthemaining recorded investment in the loan.
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

The following table summarizes investments in loemssidered to be impaired and related informadiothose impaired loans for the

years presente

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2013

December 31, 2012

Average Interest Average Interest
Recorded Income Recorded Income
(dollars in thousands) Investment Recognized Investment Recognized
With a related allowance recorde
Commercial real esta $ 1,89 $ — $ 5,79¢ $ 21€
Commercial and industri — — 1,82¢ —
Commercial constructio 1,652 49 4,44¢ —
Consumer real esta 60 6 — —
Other consume 24 4 — —
Total with a Related Allowance Recorded 3,631 59 12,06¢ 21¢€
Without a related allowance record:
Commercial real esta 29,31+ 92¢ 41,13¢ 1,117
Commercial and industri; 11,43¢ 254 11,67: 32¢
Commercial constructio 14,11 32¢ 22,29¢ 571
Consumer real esta 8,71¢ 43¢ 20,53¢ 68
Other consume 114 6 6 —
Total without a Related Allowance Recordec 63,69:¢ 1,951 95,64¢ 2,08(
Total:
Commercial real esta 31,20¢ 92¢ 46,93¢ 1,33(
Commercial and industri; 11,43¢ 254 13,49¢ 32¢
Commercial constructio 15,76¢ 37¢ 26,74¢ 571
Consumer real esta 8,77¢ 447 20,53: 68
Other consume 13€ 10 6 —
Total $ 67,32« $ 2,01C $107,71¢ $ 2,29¢
The following tables detail activity in the ALL fadhe periods presented:
2013
Commercial
Commercial Commercial Consumer Other
(dollars in thousands) Real Estate and Industrial Construction Real Estate Consumer Total Loans
Balance at beginning of ye $ 25,24¢ $ 7,75¢ $  7,50( $ 5,05¢ $ 921 $ 46,48¢
Chargeoffs (4,60)) (2,719 (4,852 (2,407 (1,009 (15,57¢)
Recoveries 3,38¢ 2,14: 531 651 324 7,03¢
Net (Charge-offs)/ Recoveries (1,219 (572) (4,320 (1,756 (67¢) (8,540
Provision for loan losse (5,117 7,24¢ 2,19t 3,06( 922 8,311
Balance at End of Year $ 18,92: $ 14,43 $ 5,37¢ $ 6,36: $ 1,16¢ $ 46,25¢
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NOTE 9. ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES — continued

2012
Commercial
Commercial Commercial Consumer Other
(dollars in thousands) Real Estate and Industrial Construction Real Estate Consumer Total Loans
Balance at beginning of ye $ 29,80« $ 11,27: $ 3,70z $ 3,16¢ $ 894 $ 48,84:
Chargr-offs (9,627) (5,27¢) (10,527 (2,509 (1,07¢) (29,019
Recoveries 1,25¢ 1,15: 891 197 341 3,841
Net (Charge-offs)/ Recoveries (8,369 (4,12%) (9,630 (2,317 (737) (25,177)
Provision for loan losse 3,81( 61C 13,42% 4,20¢ 764 22,81t
Balance at End of Year $ 25,24¢ $ 7,75¢ $ 7,50( $ 5,05¢ $ 921 $ 46,48
The following tables present the ALL and recordegestments in loans by category as of December 31:
2013
Allowance for Loan Losses Portfolio Loans

Individually Collectively Individually Collectively

Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for
(dollars in thousands) Impairment Impairment Total Impairment Impairment Total
Commercial real esta $ — $ 18,92: $18,92: $ 26,96¢ $ 1,580,78 $1,607,75!
Commercial and industri — 14,43 14,43: 9,58( 832,86¢ 842,44¢
Commercial constructio 25 5,34¢ 5,37« 8,07 135,60: 143,67!
Consumer real esta 53 6,30¢ 6,36: 8,07¢ 896,35 904,43t
Other consume 19 1,14¢ 1,168 157 67,72¢ 67,88:
Total $ 97 $ 46,15¢ $46,25¢ $ 52,85t $ 3,513,34 $3,566,19!

2012
Allowance for Loan Losses Portfolio Loans

Individually Collectively Individually Collectively

Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for Evaluated for
(dollars in thousands) Impairment Impairment Total Impairment Impairment Total
Commercial real esta $ 1,22¢ $ 24,02( $25,24¢ $ 39,99« $ 1,412,13! $1,452,13.
Commercial and industrii 1,00z 6,751 7,75¢ 13,28: 778,11: 791,39t
Commercial constructio 3 7,49 7,50( 18,51 149,63: 168,14:
Consumer real esta — 5,05¢ 5,05¢ 10,827 850,24t 861,07!
Other consume — 921 921 25 73,85( 73,87¢
Total $ 2,23! $ 44,25 $46,48:¢ $ 82,64 $  3,263,98 $3,346,62.
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NOTE 10. PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

The following table is a summary of premises angiggent as of the dates presented:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Land $ 6,19¢ $ 6,49(
Premise: 42,32( 43,43¢
Furniture and equipme 25,13¢ 24,94«
Leasehold improvemen 5,94 5,96¢

79,59¢ 80,83:
Accumulated depreciatic (42,987 (42,157
Total $ 36,61¢ $ 38,67¢

Depreciation expense related to premises and eguipwas $3.5 million in 2013, $3.9 million in 2042d $4.3 million in 2011.

Certain banking facilities are leased under arrareggs expiring at various dates until the year 2084 account for these leases on a
straight-line basis due to escalation clauseslebes are accounted for as operating leases,tdrceme capital lease. Rental expense for
premises amounted to $2.5 million, $2.4 million &id9 million in 2013, 2012 and 2011. Includedtie tental expense for premises are lease
entered into with two S&T directors, which tota®@.2 million each year in 2013, 2012 and 2011.

Minimum annual rental and renewal option paymeatsach of the following five years and thereaéter approximately:

(dollars in thousands) Operating Capital Total
2014 $ 2,157 $ 76 $ 2,23:
2015 2,12( 76 2,19¢
2016 2,04 76 2,12
2017 1,99¢ 76 2,072
2018 1,952 76 2,02¢
Thereatftel 41,48: 763 42,24«
Total $51,75: $1,14% $52,89¢

NOTE 11. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table presents goodwill as of theedapresented:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Balance at beginning of ye $ 175,73: $ 165,27:
Additions 87 10,46(
Balance at End of Yeatr $ 175,82 $175,73:

Gooduwill represents the excess of the purchase prier the fair value of net assets acquired. Aattid goodwill of $10.5 million was
recorded during 2012, including $6.7 for our acijiais of Mainline and $3.8 million for our acquigih of Gateway. Refer to Note 2 Business
Combinations for further details on these acquisgi

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually or radrequently if it is determined that a triggerieeent has occurred. Based upon our
gualitative assessment performed for our annual
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NOTE 11. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS — con tinued

impairment analysis, we concluded that it is mdely than not that the fair value of the reportingts exceeds the carrying value. In general,
the overall macroeconomic conditions and more $ipatliy the economic conditions of the banking istly have continued to improve.
Additionally, our overall performance has improwat we did not identify any other facts and circtanses causing us to conclude that it is
more likely than not that the fair value of theagpg units would be less than the carrying value.

The following table shows a summary of intangildeets as of the dates presented:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Gross carrying amount at beginning of y $ 16,40: $ 15,07(
Additions — 1,331
Accumulated amortizatio (12,647 (11,05)
Balance at End of Year $ 3,75¢ $ 5,35(

Intangible assets as of December 31, 2013 congé$t®8.2 million for the acquisition of core depssi$0.1 million for the acquisition of
wealth management relationships and $0.5 milligrtHe acquisition of insurance contract relatiopshiWe determined the amount of
identifiable intangible assets based upon indepare deposit, wealth management and insuranteam valuations. Other intangible as
are evaluated for impairment whenever events on@ésin circumstances indicate that their carrgimgpunts may not be recoverable. There
were no triggering events in 2013 requiring an impant analysis to be completed.

Amortization expense on finite-lived intangible etsstotaled $1.6 million, $1.7 million and $1.7 lioih for 2013, 2012 and 2011. The
following is a summary of the expected amortizatiapense for finite-lived intangibles assets, assgmo new additions, for each of the five
years following December 31, 201

(dollars in thousands) Amount
2014 $1,12¢
2015 88:¢
2016 64%
2017 50C
2018 134
Total $3,29]
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NOTE 12. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVIT IES

The following table indicates the amount representhe value of derivative assets and derivatailities at December 31:

Derivatives (included in Derivatives (included
Other Assets) in Other Liabilities)

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instrument
Interest Rate Swap Contracts—Commercial Loans
Fair value $ 13,69¢ $ 23,74¢ $ 13,64% $ 23,52
Notional amoun 261,75¢ 227,53: 261,75¢ 227,53:
Collateral poste: — — 12,61 19,59¢
Interest Rate Lock Commitments—Mortgage Loans
Fair value 85 467 — —
Notional amoun 3,98¢ 14,28 — —
Forward Sale Contract——Mortgage Loans
Fair value 34 — — 48
Notional amoun 5,25( — — 14,10(

the carrying values in the Consolidated Balanceesha&t December 31:

Derivatives (included Derivatives (included
in Other Assets) in Other Liabilities)
(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instrument
Gross amounts recogniz $14,01: $24,26: $ 13,96! $ 24,03¢
Gross amounts offs (3149 (514 (319 (519
Net amounts presented in the Consolidated Balaheet€ 13,69¢ 23,74¢ 13,641 23,52:
Gross amounts not offs® — — (12,617 (19,599
Net Amount $13,69¢ $23,74¢ $ 1,03¢ $ 3,92

@) Amounts represent posted collate

The following table indicates the gain or loss gatieed in income on derivatives for the years erddedember 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Derivatives not Designated as Hedging Instrument

Interest rate swap contra—commercial loan $(174)  $101 $ (39
Interest rate lock commitmer—mortgage loan (382) 228 27
Forward sale contra—mortgage loan 82 47 (507)
Total Derivative (Loss) Gain $(474) $371 $(51¢8)
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NOTE 13. MORTGAGE SERVICING RIGHTS

For the years ended December 31, 2013, 2012 arld #84.1-4 family mortgage loans that were solBdderal National Mortgage
Association, or FNMA, amounted to $62.9 million 238 million and $67.9 million. At December 31, 202812 and 2011 our servicing
portfolio totaled $327.4 million, $329.2 million di$332.6 million.

The following table indicates MSRs and the netyiag values:

Servicing Net Carrying
Valuation
(dollars in thousands) Rights Allowance Value
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,32( $ 1,167 $ 2,15¢
Additions 82¢€ — 82¢
Amortization (940 — (940
Temporary impairment recaptL — (67) 67
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,20¢ $ 1,10C $ 2,10¢
Additions 78C — 78C
Amortization (77¢) — (77¢)
Temporary impairment recaptu — (811) 811
Balance at December 31, 201 $ 3,20¢ $ 28¢ $ 2,91¢

NOTE 14. DEPOSITS

The following table presents the composition ofaEts at December 31 and interest expense foradhesyended December 31:

2013 2012 2011

Interest Interest Interest
(dollars in thousands) Balance Expense Balance Expense Balance Expense
Noninteres-bearing deman $ 992,77¢ 3 — $ 96098 $ — $ 81868t $ —
Interes-bearing deman 312,79( 75 316,76( 14€ 283,61: 363
Money marke 281,40: 44¢ 361,23: 52¢ 278,09: 37¢€
Savings 994,80! 1,73¢ 965,57: 2,35¢ 802,94: 1,265
Certificates of depos 1,090,53: 9,15( 1,033,88. 13,76¢ 1,152,52i 20,94¢
Total $ 3672300 $ 1140¢ $ 3638420 $ 16,79¢ $ 3,33585 $ 2295:

The aggregate of all certificates of deposit ovHIG000 amounted to $433.8 million and $368.1 omillat December 31, 2013 and 2012.
The following table indicates the scheduled magsibf certificates of deposit at December 31, 2013

(dollars in thousands) Amount
2014 $ 677,67
2015 217,11(
2016 67,24¢
2017 72,86¢
2018 47,23¢
Thereaftel 8,39«
Total $ 1,090,53
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NOTE 15. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings are for terms under one wearwere comprised of retail repurchase agreemenBEPOs, and FHLB advances.
We define REPOs with our local retail customersetail REPOs. Securities pledged as collateral utidise REPO financing arrangements
cannot be sold or repledged by the secured padyaentherefore accounted for as a secured borgoWwiALB advances are for various terms
secured by a blanket lien on residential mortgamgesother real estate secured loans.

The following table represents the compositionhafrsterm borrowings, the weighted average intersst as of December 31 and interest
expense for the years ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011

Weighted Weighted Weighted

Average Average Average
Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest Interest
(dollars in thousands) Balance Rate  Expense Balance Rate  Expense Balance Rate  Expense
REPOs $ 33,847 0.01% $ 62 $ 62,58 0204 $ 82 $ 30,37( 0.11% $ 53
FHLB advance: 140,00( 0.30% 27¢ 75,00( 0.19% 12¢ 75,00( 0.18% 2
Total Short-term Borrowings $173,84° 0.24% $ 341 $13758. 0.19% $ 20t $105,37( 0.16% $ 55

We had a $5.0 million line of credit with S&T Baskcured by investments of another subsidiary of S&iich was closed in April 2012.
NOTE 16. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS AND SUBORDINATED DEBT

Our long-term borrowings at the Pittsburgh FHLBo&®ecember 31, 2013 and 2012 were $21.6 millicch$88.9 million. FHLB
borrowings are collateralized by a blanket lierresidential mortgages and other real estate setomed. Total loans pledged as collateral at
the FHLB were $2.2 billion at year end 2013. The_BHhas eliminated the requirement that it may regjabllateral delivery for any portion of

credit exposure that exceeds 75 percent of maxilmamowing capacity. We were eligible to borrow opan additional $1.3 billion based on
qualifying collateral, to a maximum borrowing cajpaof $1.5 billion.
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NOTE 16. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — continued

The following table represents the balance of lterga borrowings, the weighted average interestaatef December 31 and interest
expense for the years ended December 31:

(dollars in thousand) 2013 2012 2011
Long-term borrowings $21,81( $34,10: $31,87+
Weighted average interest ri 3.01% 3.17% 3.4(%
Interest expens $ 74€ $ 1,107 $ 1,091

Scheduled annual maturities and average intereest far all of our long-term debt, including a daplease of $0.2 million, for each of the
five years and thereafter subsequent to Decemhe&t3B are as follows:

(dollars in thousands) Balance Average Rate
2014 $ 2,36¢ 3.36%
2015 2,39¢ 3.41%
2016 2,33( 3.44%
2017 2,412 3.53%
2018 2,49¢ 3.67%
Thereaftel 9,80¢ 2.44%
Total $21,81( 3.01%
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NOTE 16. LONG-TERM BORROWINGS AND SUBORDINATED DEBT — continued

Junior Subordinated Debt Securities

The following table represents the compositionuoiigr subordinated debt securities at Decembemn8lilze interest expense for the years
ended December 31:

2013 2012 2011

Interest Interest Interest
(dollars in thousands) Balance Expense Balance Expense Balance Expense
2006 Junior subordinated de $25000 $ 47t $25000 $ 52z $25000 $ 1,34«
2008 Junior subordinated d—trust preferred securitie 20,61¢ 77C 20,61¢ 80¢ 20,61¢ 777
2008 Junior subordinated de — 427 20,00( 81¢ 20,00( 78€
2008 Junior subordinated de — 40¢ 25,00( 76€ 25,00( 72¢
Total $ 45,61¢ $ 2,07 $90,61¢ $ 2,91F $90,61¢ $ 3,63¢

The following table summarizes the key terms ofjanior subordinated debt securities:

2006 Junior 2008 Trust 2008 Junior 2008 Junior
(dollars in thousands) Subordinated Debt Preferred Securities Subordinated Debt Subordinated Debt
Junior Subordinated De $25,000 — $20,000 $25,00C
Trust Preferred Securitit — $20,000 — —
Stated Maturity Dat: 12/15/203¢ 3/15/2038 6/15/2018 5/30/2018
Optional redemption date at par Any time after Any time after Any time after Any time after
9/15/2011 3/15/2013 6/15/2013 5/30/2013
Regulatory Capite Tier 2 Tier 1 Tier 2 Tier 2
Interest Rate 3 month LIBOR 3 month LIBOR 3 month LIBOR 3 month LIBOR
plus 160 bp: plus 350 bp: plus 350 bp: plus 250 bp:
Interest Rate at December 31, 2( 1.84% 3.74% — —

We completed a private placement of the trust prefesecurities to a financial institution duritng tfirst quarter of 2008. As a result, we
own 100 percent of the common equity of STBA Cafitast I. The trust was formed to issue mandataedeemable capital securities to
third-party investors. The proceeds from the stb® securities and the issuance of the commoityelqy STBA Capital Trust | were invested
in junior subordinated debt securities issued byTag third party investors are considered the anjnbeneficiaries; therefore, the trust
qualifies as a VIE, but is not consolidated into fimancial statements. STBA Capital Trust | papsdends on the securities at the same ra
the interest paid by us on the junior subordinalelk held by STBA Capital Trust I.

We repaid $45.0 million of junior subordinated debdune 2013 because of its diminishing regulatayital benefit and the future
positive impact on net interest income. We replabedunding primarily with FHLB short-term advaisce
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NOTE 17. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments
The following table sets forth our commitments &etters of credit as of the dates presented:

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Commitments to extend cre« $1,038,52! $874,13°
Standby letters of crec 78,63¢ 95,39¢
Total $1,117,16! $969,53¢

Estimates of the fair value of these off-balanceeslitems were not made because of the short-tetanenof these arrangements and the
credit standing of the counterparties.

Our allowance for unfunded loan commitments tot$2® million at December 31, 2013 and $3.0 millédrbecember 31, 2012.

We have future commitments with third party vendorsdata processing and communication charges pPatcessing and communication
expense of $9.5 million and $10.3 million for 2048 2012 included $0.8 million and $2.3 milliononetime merger related expense. We
$7.4 million of data processing and communicatigpesse in 2011.

The following table sets forth the future estimapegments related to data processing and commigricgtharges for each of the five ye
following December 31, 2013:

(dollars in thousands) Total
2014 $ 9,852
2015 10,11
2016 10,38t
2017 10,66«
2018 10,95!
Total $51,96¢
Litigation

In the normal course of business, we are subjecatious legal and administrative proceedings daitns. While any type of litigation
contains a level of uncertainty, we believe thatalitcome of such proceedings or claims pendinigwilhave a material adverse effect on ou
consolidated financial position or results of opierss.

NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense (benefit) for the years endest@eer 31 are comprised of;

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Current $16,83¢ $6,22: $12,17¢
Deferred (2,359 1,03¢ 2,44¢
Total $14,47¢ $7,261 $14,62:

The provision for income taxes differs from the amtocomputed by applying the statutory federal medax rate to income before inco
taxes. We ordinarily generate an annual effecxerate that is less than the statutory rate qgie88ent primarily due to benefits resulting from
tax-exempt interest, excludable dividend income;egempt income on BOLI and tax benefits associatighl LIHTC from certain partnership
investments.
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NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES — continued

The statutory to effective tax rate reconciliationthe years ended December 31 is as follows:

2013 2012 2011
Statutory tax rat 35.C% 35.C% 35.(%
Low income housing tax credi (6.9% (10.5% (5.5%
Tax-exempt interes (4.5% (6.1% (4.0)%
Bank owned life insuranc (1.0% (1.2% (1.2%
Acquisition costt — 0.E% —
Dividend exclusior (0.9% (0.7% (0.60%
Other — 1.1% —
Effective Tax Rate 22.2% 17.5% 23.€%

Income taxes applicable to security gains wergimcant in 2013, $1.1 million in 2012 and insificant in 2011. Significant components
of our temporary differences were as follows at@mwber 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Deferred Tax Liabilities:
Net unrealized holding gains on securities avag-for-sale $ — $ (5,58¢)
Prepaid pensio (3,730 (4,727)
Deferred loan incom (1,619 (969)
Purchase accounting adjustme (807) (935)
Depreciation on premises and equiprmr (1,06)) (1,969
Other (823 (690
Total Deferred Tax liabilities (8,029 (14,869
Deferred Tax Assets:
Net unrealized holding losses on securities avie-for-sale 361 —
Allowance for loan losse 18,89( 16,53¢
Tax credit carryforwards (expires in 20 yee — 1,43(
Other employee benefi 2,36¢ 2,701
Low income housing partnershi 3,141 2,89(
Net adjustment to funded status of pens 6,49¢ 12,89¢
Impairment of securitie 1,31: 1,37t
Delinquent interest on nonaccrual loi 1,62¢ 1,71¢
State net operating loss carryforwa 1,82¢ 1,49¢
Other 3,95( 3,157
Gross Deferred Tax Asset: 39,97¢ 44,20¢
Less: Valuation allowanc (2,199 (1,499
Total Deferred Tax Assets 37,78( 42,707
Net Deferred Tax Assel $29,75: $ 27,84

We establish a valuation allowance when it is mitedy than not that we will not be able to realthe benefit of the deferred tax assets.
Except for Pennsylvania net operating losses, ot\@nd net unrealized tax capital loss carryfodsawe have determined that a valuation
allowance is unnecessary for the deferred tax s&setause it is more likely than not that thesetassill be realized through future reversal
existing temporary differences and through futaseable income. The valuation allowance is reviegedirterly and adjusted based on
management’s assessments of
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NOTE 18. INCOME TAXES — continued

realizable deferred tax assets. Gross deferredssats were reduced by a valuation allowance 8fi#ilion related to Pennsylvania income
tax NOLs and $0.4 million related to the net unizeal capital losses as utilization of these lossest likely. The PA NOL carryforwards total
$18.3 million and will expire in the years 2020-30&nd net unrealized tax capital losses total 80lifon at December 31, 2013.
Unrecognized Tax Benefits

A reconciliation of the change in Federal and Sgatess unrecognized tax benefits, or UTB, for tharg ended December 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Balance at beginning of ye $ 97¢ $ 20C $242
Prior period tax position
Increase 924 — —
Decreast — — —
Current period tax positior — 913 (42
Reductions for statute of limitations expiratic — (135) —
Balance at End of Year $1,90: $ 97¢ $20C
Amount That Would Affect the Effective Tax Rate if Recognizec $ 14¢ $ 147 $197

We classify interest and penalties as an elemetgixaéxpense. We monitor changes in tax statutgsegyulations to determine if
significant changes will occur over the next 12 thanAs of December 31, 2013 no significant charigé$TB are projected, however, tax
audit examinations are possible.

We recognized $0.2 million related to interest@12, $0.2 million in 2012 and insignificant amouim<011 in the Consolidated
Statements of Net Income.

During 2013, the IRS completed its examinationwf 2010 tax year. The exam was closed with no ri@htadjustments impacting tax
expense. As of December 31, 2013, all income taxms filed for the tax years 2011 through 2012aensubject to examination by the IRS.
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NOTE 19. TAX EFFECTS ON OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

The following tables present the tax effects ofe¢bhmponents of other comprehensive income (losghfoyears ended December 31:

Tax
(Expense) Net of
Pre-Tax Tax

(dollars in thousands) Amount Benefit Amount
2013
Net change in unrealized (losses) gains on seesi@dtvailabl-for-sale $(16,929) $ 5,92t $(11,009)
Net availabl-for-sale securities (gains) losses reclassified intoiegs 5) 2 3
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefilg 18,29¢ (6,40%) 11,89
Other Comprehensive Income $ 1,36¢ $ (479 $ 88¢
2012
Net change in unrealized gains (losses) on seesidtiailabl-for-sale $ 4,09i $ (1,439 $ 2,66
Net availabl-for-sale securities (gains) losses reclassified intoniegs (3,016 1,05¢ (1,967
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefihg (277 95 (176
Other Comprehensive Income $ 8LC $ (289 $ 52
2011
Net change in unrealized gains (losses) on seesi@dtvailabl-for-sale $ 6,702 $ (2,34¢6) $ 4,35¢
Net availabl-for-sale securities losses (gains) reclassified intoiegs 124 (43 81
Adjustment to funded status of employee benefihg (18,787 6,57¢ (12,217
Other Comprehensive (Loss) Incom $(11,967) $ 4,187 $ (7,779

NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

We maintain a defined benefit pension plan, or Rtamering substantially all employees hired ptmdanuary 1, 2008. The benefits are
based on years of service and the empl®yeempensation for the highest five consecutivesygathe last ten years. Contributions are intel
to provide for benefits attributed to employee 8=3v0 date and for those benefits expected taabeed in the future.
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

The following table summarizes the activity in thenefit obligation and Plan assets deriving theléghstatus, which is recorded in other
liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Change in Projected Benefit Obligatior

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of y $102,45: $ 93,03!
Service cos 2,76 2,78¢
Interest cos 3,98¢ 4,35¢
Plan participan’ contributions — 71
Actuarial (gain) los: (7,16%) 6,72:
Benefits paic (6,070 (4,519
Projected Benefit Obligation at End of Year $ 95,96¢ $102,45:
Change in Plan Assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y $ 81,08t $ 72,62¢
Actual return on plan asse 14,53¢ 9,81(
Employer contribution — 3,10(¢
Plan participan’ contributions — 71
Benefits paic (6,070 (4,519
Fair Value of Plan Assets at End of Yea $ 89,55¢ $ 81,08¢
Funded Status $ (6,417 $(21,36¢)

The following table sets forth the amounts recogdiin accumulated other comprehensive income (ktdSecember 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Prior service cred $(1,309) $(1,447)
Net actuarial los 18,37: 36,29°
Total (Before Tax Effects) $17,06¢ $34,85¢

Below are the actuarial weighted average assungtisad in determining the benefit obligation:

2013 2012
Discount rate 4.7%% 4.0(%
Rate of compensation incree 3.0(% 3.0(%
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

The following table summarizes the components bpeeiodic pension cost and other changes in PFlaata and benefit obligation
recognized in other comprehensive income (lossihfetyears ended December 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Components of Net Periodic Pension Co:

Service co—benefits earned during the peri $ 2,761 $2,78¢ $ 2,371
Interest cost on projected benefit obligat 3,98¢ 4,35¢ 4,16:
Expected return on plan ass (6,207%) (5,569 (5,379
Amortization of prior service cost (cred (13¢) (237 @)
Recognized net actuarial Ic 2,42¢ 2,47¢ 773
Net Periodic Pension Expens $ 2,832 $ 3,91¢ $ 1,921

Other Changes in Plan Assets and Benefit ObligatioRecognized in Other Comprehensiv:
Income (Loss)

Net actuarial loss (gait $(15,499 $ 2,471 $20,42:
Recognized net actuarial Ic (2,425 (2,479 (773
Prior service cred — — (1,519
Recognized prior service cre 13¢ 137 7
Total (Before Tax Effects) $(17,78¢) $ 14C $18,14!
Total Recognized in Net Benefit Cost and Other Comehensive Income (Loss) (Before Ta

Effects) $(14,959) $ 4,05¢ $20,06¢

The following table summarizes the actuarial weighverage assumptions used in determining neidieipension cost:

2013 2012 2011
Discount rate 4.00% 4.75% 5.75%
Rate of compensation incree 3.00% 4.00% 4.00%
Expected return on asst 8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

The net actuarial loss included in accumulatedratbemprehensive income (loss) expected to be rézedin net periodic pension cost
during the year ended December 31, 2014 is $0I®milThe prior service credit expected to be redped during the same period is
$0.1 million.

The accumulated benefit obligation for the Plan $&8.3 million at December 31, 2013 and $93.5 millat December 31, 2012.

We consider many factors when setting the assuatecof return on Plan assets. As a general gusléii@ assumed rate of return is equal
to the weighted average of the expected returnsdoh asset category and is estimated based onid¢astreturns as well as expected future
returns. The weighted average discount rate iveifirom corporate yield curves.

S&T Bank’s Retirement Plan Committee determines the investpicy for the Plan. In general, the targeteskasllocation is 50 perce
to 70 percent equities and 30 percent to 50 pefoestt income. A strategic allocation within eadset class is employed based on the Plan’s
time horizon, risk tolerances, performance expagtatand asset class preferences. Investment marteaee discretion to invest in any equity
or fixed-income asset class, subject to the seesiguidelines of the Plan’s Investment Policy Stent.

At this time, S&T Bank is not required to make altaontribution to the Plan in 2014. No contribotiavere made during 2013.
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

The following table provides information regardiestimated future benefit payments to be paid it @fi¢he next five years and in the
aggregate for the five years thereafter:

(dollars in thousands) Amount
2014 $ 5,72¢
2015 6,69¢
2016 6,32¢
2017 6,182
2018 7,22(
201¢—2023 36,57¢

We also have supplemental executive retiremensp@nSERPS, for certain key employees. The SERPsrdunded. The projected
benefit obligations related to the SERPs were $#li8on and $3.5 million at December 31, 2013 a®d2 These amounts also represent the
net amount recognized in the statement of finarpmaltion for the SERPs. Net periodic benefit céstshe SERPs were $0.4 million, $0.5
million and $0.3 million for each of the years edd@ecember 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011. Additionally5$nillion and $2.0 million before tax
were reflected in accumulated other comprehensieeme (loss) at December 31, 2013 and 2012, itioelto the SERPs. The actuarial
assumptions used for the SERPs are the same a&subed for the Plan.

We maintain a Thrift Plan, a qualified defined edmnition plan, in which substantially all employese eligible to participate. We make
matching contributions to the Thrift Plan up to Bércent of participants’ eligible compensation araly make additional profit-sharing
contributions as provided by the Thrift Plan. Expenelated to these contributions amounted to $illn in 2013, $1.3 million in 2012 and
$1.1 million in 2011.

Fair Value Measurements

The following tables present our Plan assets medsairfair value on a recurring basis by fair vdiierarchy level at December 31, 2013
and 2012. There were no transfers between Levetll avel 2 for items of a recurring basis during geriods presented. The decrease of $2.
million in Level 3 plan assets between Decembe2812 and December 31, 2013 is due to the saleesktinvestments. There were no
purchases or transfers of Level 3 plan assetsi3.20

December 31, 2013
Fair Value Asset Classes (1)

(dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivalel® $ — $2,94¢ $ — $ 2,94¢
Fixed Income® 26,44¢ — — 26,44¢
Equities:
Equity index mutual fun—domestic® 1,55¢ — — 1,55¢
Equity index mutual fun—internationa(®) 2,491 — — 2,49
Domestic Individual Equitie®) 55,20¢ — — 55,20¢
International Individual Equitie(” 901 — — 901
Total Assets at Fair Value $86,61( $2,94¢ $ — $89,55¢

) Refer to Note 1 Summary of Significant Accountiolices, Fair Value Measurements for a descriptigrievels within the fair value hierarch
(@ This asset class includes FDIC insured money mans&tuments
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NOTE 20. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS — continued

() This asset class includes a variety of fixed ineanutual funds which primarily invests in investhtgade rated securities. Investment managers kiazetion to invest in fixed
income related securities including futures, opsi@md other derivatives. Investments may be maderiencies other than the U.S. doll.

4 The sole investment within this asset class is 68Pindex iShare:

() The sole investment within this asset class is MSXEIE Index iShare:

()  This asset class includes individual domestic @giihvested in an active -cap strategy. It may also include convertible bol

(M) This asset class includes American Depository Res;@r ADR

December 31, 2012
Fair Value Asset Classes ()

(dollars in thousands) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cash and cash equivale(® $ — $8,58¢ $ — $ 8,58¢
Fixed Income® 22,21 — 1,432 23,64
Equities:
Equity index mutual fun—domestic® 1,93¢ — — 1,93¢
Equity index mutual fun—internationa(®) 4,21¢ — — 4,21¢
Domestic Individual Equitie® 39,63: — — 39,63
International Individual Equitie®™ 1,80z — — 1,80z
Equity—Partnership® — — 1,27¢ 1,27¢
Total Assets at Fair Value $69,79¢ $8,58¢ $2,707 $81,08¢

@) Refer to Note 1 Summary of Significant Accountiokicies, Fair Value Measurements for a descriptidtevels within the fair value hierarch

() This asset class includes FDIC insured money mank&tuments

() This asset class includes a variety of fixed ineanutual funds and a partnership which primarilyeists in investment grade rated securities. Imvest managers have discretion to
invest in fixed income related securities includintyires, options and other derivatives. Investmemiy be made in currencies other than the U.3ard

4 The sole investment within this asset class is 68Pindex iShare:

() The sole investment within this asset class is MSXEIE Index iShare:

()  This asset class includes individual domestic égiinvested in an active -cap strategy. It may also include convertible bol

(7)  This asset class includes American Depository Res;@r ADR

(®)  This asset class includes a Partnership pricechieyitivestment manager which invests in equitiesTBills.

NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN

We adopted an Incentive Stock Plan in 1992 thatigeal for granting incentive stock options, nonstatty stock options, restricted stock
and appreciation rights. On October 17, 1994, 8#21Stock Plan was amended to include outsidetdiiecThe 1992 Stock Plan had a
maximum of 3,200,000 shares of our common stockeapited ten years from the date of board appréMaDecember 31, 2002, 3,180,822
nonstatutory stock options and restricted stockbbesh granted under the 1992 Stock Plan. No fuatvards will be made under the 1992
Stock Plan. All grants under the 1992 Stock Plarerexpired at December 31, 2012.

We adopted an Incentive Stock Plan in 2003 thatiges for granting incentive stock options, nongtaty stock options, restricted stock
and appreciation rights. The 2003 Stock Plan hassdémum of 1,500,000 shares of our common stockeapites ten years from the date of
board approval. The 2003 Stock Plan is similah&®1992 Stock Plan, which the 2003 Stock Plan cepla

Stock Options

As of December 31, 2013, 428,900 nonstatutory stptions are outstanding under the 2003 Stock Ranstatutory stock options
granted in 2006 and 2005 are fully vested and laatem-year life. These stock options were fullyenged in 2010.
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NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN — continued

The fair value of option awards under the nonstayustock option plan were estimated on the dagrant using the Black-Scholes
valuation model, which is dependent upon certasuiamptions. We use the simplified method in develgghe estimated life of the option,
whereby the expected life is presumed to be theanid between the vesting date and the end ofdhé&actual term. There have been no
nonstatutory stock options granted since 2006.

The following table summarizes activity for nonstaty stock options for the years ended December 31

2013 2012 2011
Weighted Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Weighted Average Weighted Average
Remaining Remaining Remaining
Average Contractual Number of Average Contractual Number of Average Contractual
Number Exercise Exercise Exercise
of Shares Price Term Shares Price Term Shares Price Term
Outstanding at beginning of ye 675,50 $ 35.1¢ 757,05( $ 34.3¢ 930,70 $ 32.8(
Grantec — — — — — —
Exercisec — — — — — —
Forfeited (246,600  31.3¢ (81,55()  27.2¢ (173,650  26.11
Outstanding at End of Year 428,90( $ 37.3¢ l.4yearr 67550( $ 35.1¢ 2.0yeart 757,05( $ 34.3: 2.8year:
Exercisable at End of Year 428,90( $ 37.3¢ l.4yearr 675500 $ 35.1¢ 2.0yeart 757,05( $ 34.37 2.8year:

The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstag@ind exercisable was zero as of December 31, 2012, and 2011. The aggregate
intrinsic value represents the total pretax inidnvalue (the difference between our closing stoigke on the last trading day of the fourth
guarter and the exercise price, multiplied by theber of in-the-money options) that would have beseived by the option holders had all
option holders exercised their options on Decer8tie2013.

As of December 31, 2013, 2012 and 2011 all outétanstock options have vested. During the yeargémkcember 31, 2013, 2012 and
2011 no stock options were exercised.

Restricted Stock

We periodically issue restricted stock to employaed directors, pursuant to the 2003 Stock PlarofA3ecember 31, 2013, 259,673
restricted shares have been granted under this plan

During 2013, 2012 and 2011, we granted 18,942,6Ma%d 19,890 restricted shares of common stoak,tiside directors. The grants are
part of the compensation arrangement approvedéZtmpensation and Benefits Committee wherebyitieetdrs receive compensation in
both the form of cash and restricted shares of comstock. These shares fully vest one year aftedé#te of grant.

Also during 2013, 2012 and 2011, we granted 3,28/0Q08 and 60,157 restricted shares of common $tos&nior management. The
awards to senior management were granted in agooedaith performance levels set by the CompensatmmhBenefits Committee. During the
years ended 2013 and 2012 restricted shares wemgzdgron two occasions and have different vestamgpgs. The restricted stock grants
2013 of 3,247 shares and for 2012 of 9,897 shagsisfully on the second anniversary of the gratéslarhe restricted shares granted unde
Long Term Incentive Plan for 2012 of 38,111 shamssisted of both time and performance-based awtreie were no shares granted under
this plan in 2013. Vesting for the time-based awasdb0 percent after two
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NOTE 21. INCENTIVE AND RESTRICTED STOCK PLAN AND DI VIDEND REINVESTMENT PLAN — continued

years and the remaining 50 percent at the endeahiid year. The performar-based awards vest at the end of the three yemdp&uring
2011 the restricted shares granted occurred or theeasions and have different vesting periods.fifstegrant, or 16,497 restricted shares,
vests fully on the second anniversary of the gda¢. The second grant, or 11,104 restricted shaested fully on January 1, 2012. The third
grant, or 32,556 restricted shares, was grantedrungt Long Term Incentive Plan (2011 LTIP) andtsés the same manner as explained
above.

Of the 4,688 restricted shares granted in 201@11s®ares fully vested one year after the dateaftgThe remaining 2,807 shares grante
vest 50 percent on each of the one and two yeavensaries from the date of grant. During the vesperiod, the recipient receives dividends
and has the right to vote the unvested sharesagtalfitthe recipient leaves S&T before the encheftesting period, shares will be forfeited
except in the case of retirement, disability ortHe@here accelerated vesting provisions are defividun the plan agreement.

Compensation expense for time-based restrictet #aecognized ratably over the period of servimerally the entire vesting period,
based on fair value on the date of grant. For grar&tde to directors, the fair value is determingthk closing price of the stock on the date of
grant. The average of the high and low prices efstiock on the grant date is used for senior manage Compensation expense for
performance-based restricted stock is recognizadblsaover the remaining vesting period once tkelihood of meeting the performance
measure is probable. During 2013, 2012 and 201Yewegnized compensation expense of $0.6 milliér) #illion and $1.1 million and
realized a tax benefit of $0.2 million, $0.3 mitiand $0.4 million.

The following table provides information about reged stock for the years ended December 31:

Weighted Average

Restricted Grant Date

Stock Fair Value

Non-vested at December 31, 201 31,67( $ 24.5¢
Grantec 80,04" 21.3¢
Vested 23,91 23.6¢
Forfeited 1,65% 23.6¢
Non-vested at December 31, 201 86,15( $ 21.8¢
Grantec 67,37( 21.5¢
Vested 37,11¢ 19.7¢
Forfeited 1,38: 19.5¢
Non-vested at December 31, 201 115,01¢ $ 22.3¢
Grantec 22,18¢ 19.1¢
Vested 45,86¢ 19.6¢
Forfeited 11,92¢ 21.3(
Non-vested at December 31, 2013 79,41F $ 21.5(

As of December 31, 2013, there was $0.9 milliototdl unrecognized compensation cost related toicted stock that will be recognized
as compensation expense over a weighted averaigel péone year.
Dividend Reinvestment Plan

We also sponsor a Dividend Reinvestment and Stackhase Plan, or Dividend Plan, where shareholdesspurchase shares of S&T
common stock at the average fair value with reiteatdividends and voluntary cash contributions. pla@ administrator and transfer agent
may purchase shares directly from us from sharigkihéreasury or purchase shares in the open rmtKalfill the Dividend Plan’s needs.
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NOTE 22. PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION

The following condensed financial statements sunmadhe financial position of S&T Bancorp, Inc.aDecember 31, 2013 and 2012
and the results of its operations and cash flowsdgh of the three years ended December 31, 2012,and 2011.

BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
ASSETS
Cash $ 14,85 $ 12,20:
Investments in
Bank subsidian 553,82! 523,66
Nonbank subsidiarie 19,56: 19,93
Other asset 4,447 3,12¢
Total Assets $ 592,67 $ 558,92¢
LIABILITIES
Long-term debt $ 20,61¢ $ 20,61¢
Other liabilities 754 88¢
Total Liabilities 21,37 21,507
Total Shareholders Equity 571,30¢ 537,42:
Total Liabilities and Shareholders’ Equity $ 592,67 $ 558,92

STATEMENTS OF NET INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011
Dividends from subsidiarie $24,08" $35,60: $23,02¢
Investment incom 15 17 121
Interest expense on lo-term debi 76¢ 80¢ 777
Other expense 2,57¢ 1,80( 1,091
Income before Equity in Undistributed Net Income ofSubsidiaries 20,75¢ 33,01: 21,28.
Equity in undistributed net income (distributiondgrcess of net income) ¢

Bank subsidian 29,92¢ 1,371 25,59(

Nonbank subsidiarie (147 (183) 39z
Net Income $50,53¢ $34,20( $47,26¢
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NOTE 22. PARENT COMPANY CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMA TION — continued

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012 2011

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income $ 50,53¢ $ 34,20( $ 47,26¢
Equity in (undistributed net income) distributionéxcess of net income of subsidial (29,785 (1,189 (25,987)
Tax (benefit) expense from st-based compensatic (96) 30 66
Other 121 1,02¢ 10,14t

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 20,77¢ 34,06t 31,49

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net investments in subsidiari — (5,03Y) —

Acquisitions — (14,127 —

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities — (19,159 —

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Redemption of preferred sto — — (108,679
(Purchase) Sale of treasury shares (88) 99¢ 1,94¢
Preferred stock dividenc — — (5,072
Cash dividends paid to common sharehols (18,13Y) (17,357 (16,830)
Tax benefit (expense) from st-based compensatic 96 (30 (66)
Net Cash Used in Financing Activities (18,129 (16,389 (128,69
Net increase (decrease) in Ci 2,65( (1,482 (97,205
Cash at beginning of ye 12,20: 13,68¢ 110,88
Cash at End of Year $ 14,85: $ 12,20: $ 13,68¢

NOTE 23. REGULATORY MATTERS

We are subject to various regulatory capital rezmaignts administered by the federal banking agerfeakire to meet the minimum capi
requirements can initiate certain mandatory angipbsadditional discretionary actions by regulattirat, if undertaken, could have a direct
material effect on our financial statements. Urahgpital guidelines and the regulatory frameworkgia@mpt corrective action, we must meet
specific capital guidelines that involve quantitatmeasures of our assets, liabilities and cedtiibalance sheet items as calculated under
regulatory accounting practices. Our capital am®and classification are also subject to qualiggidgments by the regulators about risk
weightings and other factors.

The most recent natifications from the Federal Resand the FDIC categorized S&T and S&T Bank al eapitalized under the
regulatory framework for corrective action. Theevé been no conditions or events that we believe bhanged S&T or S&T Bank’s status
during 2013 and 2012.

Tier 1 capital consists principally of shareholdexuity, including preferred stock; excluding itemecorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), less goodwill andratitangibles. For regulatory purposes, trust prefisecurities totaling $20.0 million,
issued by an unconsolidated trust subsidiary of S&derlying such junior subordinated debt, areudet in Tier 1 capital for S&T. Total
capital consists of Tier 1 capital plus junior sudoated debt and the ALL subject to limitation. \&lerently have $25.0 million in junior
subordinated debt which is included in Tier 2 cadibr S&T in accordance with current regulatorpaging requirements.
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NOTE 23. REGULATORY MATTERS — continued

Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsure capital adequacy require us to maintainmmini amounts and ratios of Total and
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets and Tieafital to average assets. As of December 31, 20d2@12, we met all capital adequacy
requirements to which we are subject.

The following table summarizes risk-based capitabants and ratios for S&T and S&T Bank.

To be
Well Capitalized
Minimum Under Prompt
Regulatory Capital Corrective Action
Actual Requirements Provisions
(dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2013
Total Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T $494,98( 14.3¢%  $275,68: 8.0(%  $344,60t 10.0(%
S&T Bank 457,54( 13.35% 274,25 8.0(% 342,82: 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T 426,23¢ 12.3% 137,84. 4.0% 206,76: 6.0(%
S&T Bank 389,58 11.3t% 137,12¢ 4.0% 205,69: 6.0(%
Leverage Rati®)
S&T 426,23: 9.7%% 174,82: 4.0(% 218,53( 5.0(%
S&T Bank 389,58« 8.95% 174,08: 4.0(% 217,60: 5.0(%
As of December 31, 201
Total Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T $504,04: 15.3¢%  $262,02! 8.0(%  $327,53t 10.0(%
S&T Bank 452,90¢ 14.35% 252,48 8.0(% 315,61: 10.0(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets
S&T 392,50¢ 11.9¢% 131,01! 4.0% 196,52. 6.0(%
S&T Bank 343,33: 10.8t% 126,24 4.0(% 189,36¢ 6.0(%
Leverage Rati®)
S&T 392,50¢ 9.31% 168,56 4.0(% 210,70 5.0(%
S&T Bank 343,33: 8.45% 162,61: 4.0(% 203,26¢ 5.0(%

(1) Minimum requirement is 3.00 percent for the moghlyi rated financial institutions

NOTE 24. CAPITAL PURCHASE PROGRAM

On December 7, 2011 we redeemed all of the $108liom or 108,676 shares, of Series A PreferreatBissued on January 16, 2009 in
conjunction with our participation in the CPP. Upexdemption, a one-time na&sh reduction to net income available to commamestolder:
of $1.8 million, or $0.06 per common share, warded for the remaining unamortized discount ofgteferred stock. Refer to Item 8, Note
23 Regulatory Matters, of this Report for additibdiaclosures regarding capital requirements.

In connection with the issuance of the preferredisto the U.S. Treasury in 2009, we also issueditS. Treasury a warrant to purchase
517,012 shares of our common stock at an initinspare exercise price of $31.53. The warrant ples/for the adjustment of the exercise |
and the number of shares of our common stock i$sugdon exercise pursuant to customary anti-difuficovisions, such as upon stock splits
or distributions of securities or other assetsdlaérs of our common stock and upon certain issego€ our common stock at or below a
specified price relative to the initial exercisécpr A binomial pricing model was used to calculdie fair value of the common stock warrant
we issued on January 16, 2009 resulting in a flirey of $4.0 million.
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NOTE 24. CAPITAL PURCHASE PROGRAM — continued

The assumptions used to calculate the fair valubeofvarrant are summarized below:

Assumption Value
Contractual tern 10 year
Exercise price $ 31.5:
Estimated fair value of company stc $ 29.14
Expected life 10 year
Risk-free rate over expected life of the warr 2.3€%
Expected volatility 28.4%
Expected dividend yiel 3.85%

We utilized the average of daily and monthly higtalrvolatility for purposes of this valuation. Vdé not repurchase the warrant
concurrently with the redemption of the preferremtk in 2011. The warrant remains outstanding @ah@December 31, 2013. The U.S.
Treasury had agreed not to exercise voting powtr respect to any shares of common stock issued exercise of the warrant, but sold the
warrant in 2013, and the buyer is not under antrioti®ns with regard to voting power of the statkhe warrant is exercised. The warrant will
remain outstanding until January 2019 or untiiekercised by the owner at the exercise pric8df3B per share.

NOTE 25. SEGMENTS

We operate three reportable operating segmentsn@ority Banking, Insurance and Wealth Management.

e Our Community Banking segment offers services winickude accepting time and demand deposits, atigig commercial and
consumer loans and providing letters of credit enedlit card service:

e Our Insurance segment includes a full-service ersce agency offering commercial property and cagirsdurance, group life and
health coverage, employee benefit solutions ansiopal insurance line

« Our Wealth Management segment offers discount lbagjeeservices, services as executor and trustesr wilts and deeds, guardian
and custodian of employee benefits and other smidtbrokerage services, as well as a registeregiment advisor that manages
private investment accounts for individuals andiingons.

The following represents total assets by reportapkrating segment as of December 31:

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2012
Community Banking $ 4,524,93 $ 4,516,19
Insurance 6,92¢ 9,30z
Wealth Managemel 1,32¢ 1,20¢
Total Assets $ 4,533,19 $ 4,526,70

135



Table of Contents

NOTE 25. SEGMENTS — continued

The following tables provide financial informatiéor our three segments. The financial results eflibsiness segments include allocation
for shared services based on an internal analyaistipports line of business and branch performamasurement. Shared services include
expenses such as employee benefits, occupancysepamputer support and other corporate overtiwah with these allocations, the
financial results are not necessarily indicativéhef business segments’ financial condition andltesf operations as if they existed as
independent entities. The information provided urtte caption “Eliminations” represents operations considered to be reportable segment:
and/or general operating expenses and eliminatindsadjustments, which are necessary for purpdsesanciling to the Consolidated

Financial Statements.

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Community
Wealth

(dollars in thousands) Banking Insurance Management Eliminations Consolidated

Interest incomt $ 153,45( $ 2 $ 517 $ (213 $ 153,75t
Interest expens 16,50¢ — — (1,945 14,56
Net interest income (expens 136,94. 2 517 1,732 139,19:
Provision for loan losse 8,311 — — — 8,311
Noninterest incom 34,64¢ 5,48 10,66: 732 51,527
Noninterest expens 91,73] 5,04: 9,53¢ 5,97¢ 112,29
Depreciation expens 3,43( 47 30 — 3,501
Amortization of intangible asse 1,49: 51 48 — 1,591
Provision (benefit) for income tax 17,21; 12C 66C (3,519 14,47¢
Net Income (Loss) $ 49,40¢ $ 224 $ 90¢€ $ — $ 50,53¢

For the Year Ended December 31, 2012
Community
Wealth

(dollars in thousands) Banking Insurance Management Eliminations Consolidated

Interest incom $ 155,86! $ 1 $ 454 $ (69 $ 156,25:
Interest expens 22,13t — — (1,117 21,02«
Net interest income (expens 133,73( 1 454 1,04z 135,22
Provision for loan losse 22,81t — — — 22,81t
Noninterest incom 36,42: 5,26: 9,78¢ 44C 51,91:
Noninterest expens 97,68 5,41¢ 9,44¢ 4,692 117,24.
Depreciation expens 3,83: 48 31 — 3,917
Amortization of intangible asse 1,60(C 52 57 — 1,70¢
Provision (benefit) for income tax 10,20 (88) 352 (3,210 7,261
Net Income (Loss) $ 34,01 $ (169 $ 354 $ — $  34,20(
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NOTE 25. SEGMENTS — continued

For the Year Ended December 31, 2011

Community
Wealth
(dollars in thousands) Banking Insurance Management Eliminations Consolidated
Interest incom: $ 164,73¢ $ 1 $ 307 $ 33 $ 165,07
Interest expens 27,69: 291 — (250 27,73:
Net interest income (expens 137,04¢ (290) 307 282 137,34t
Provision for loan losse 15,60¢ — — — 15,60¢
Noninterest incom 30,19¢ 5,23¢ 8,32¢ 29¢ 44,057
Noninterest expens 81,18( 5,19¢ 7,30z 4,23¢ 97,91.
Depreciation expens 4,16 57 32 — 4,25¢
Amortization of intangible asse 1,61¢ 52 66 — 1,735
Provision (benefit) for income tax 17,911 (127) 492 (3,65%) 14,62:
Net Income (LosS) $ 46,75 $ (235 $ 742 $ — $ 47,26¢
NOTE 26. OTHER NONINTEREST EXPENSE
Other noninterest expense is presented in the kedbbsv:
Years Ended December 31,

(dollars in thousands) 2013 2011
Other noninterest expenses

Joint venture amortizatic $ 4,09t $ 4,19¢ $ 3,30:

Amortization of intangible: 1,591 1,70¢ 1,73

Other real estate ownt 44t 2,16¢ 1,51¢

Other 14,80: 16,95¢ 12,12¢
Total Other Noninterest Expenses $20,93: $ 25,03¢ $18,68¢

137



Table of Contents

NOTE 27. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table presents selected financiahdat the most recent eight quarters.

2013 2012

(dollars in thousands, except per Fourth Third Second First Fourth Third Second First
share data) (unaudited) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
Interest incomt $38,77¢ $38,58. $38,55:! $37,84! $38,92( $38,82( $39,37( $39,14(
Interest expens 3,12¢ 3,301 3,951 4,17¢ 4,62¢ 5,02¢ 5,551 5,81¢
Provision for loan losse 1,562 3,41¢ 1,02: 2,307 4,21F 2,30t 7,02: 9,27
Net interest income after provision for loan

losses 34,09: 31,85¢ 33,57 31,36: 30,07¢ 31,49( 26,79¢ 24,04¢
Security gains, ne — 3 — 2 — 2,17 6 84C
Noninterest incom 11,31: 12,53¢ 12,867 14,80¢ 11,56¢ 12,57¢ 12,52t 12,22¢
Noninterest expens 29,44 27,94 28,38¢ 31,61¢ 29,717 31,01¢ 29,34 32,78
Income before taxes 15,957 16,45 18,05 14,55: 11,92¢ 15,21¢ 9,98: 4,33t
Provision for income taxe 4,09¢ 4,207 3,951 2,222 2,40( 2,628 1,38 85E
Net Income Available to Commor

Shareholders $11,85¢ $12,247 $14,10¢ $12,33( $ 9,52« $1259¢ $ 8,600 $ 3,48(
Per Share Data
Common earnings per sh—diluted $ 04C $ 041 $ 047 $ 041 $ 032 $ 04 $ 03C $ 0.12
Dividends declared per common sh 0.1¢€ 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t 0.1¢ 0.1t 0.1t 0.1t
Common book valu 19.2] 18.6¢ 18.3¢ 18.3:2 18.0¢ 17.9i 17.6¢ 17.45

NOTE 28. SALE OF MERCHANT CARD SERVICING BUSINESS

We sold our existing merchant card servicing bussrfer $4.8 million during the first quarter of Z20Consequently, we terminated an
agreement with our existing merchant processoiirmndred a termination fee of $1.7 million. As auk of this transaction, we recognized a
gain of $3.1 million in the first quarter of 2018.conjunction with the sale of the merchant cand/iing business, we entered into a marke
and sales alliance agreement with the purchasemfdamitial term of ten years. The agreement previthat we will actively market and refer
our customers to the purchaser and in return @dléive a share of the future revenue. Future revendependent on the number of referrals,
number of new merchant accounts and volume ofiactiv
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiafth€ Company) internal control over financial repm as of December 31, 2013,
based on criteria establishedimernal Control —Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission (COSQO). The Company’s manageimeasponsible for maintaining effective internahtrol over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness offriatecontrol over financial reporting, includedtire accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our resgibility is to express an opinion on the Compargternal control over financial reporti
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stadwdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigianternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreiuch other procedures as we considered necesghg/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company'’s internal control over financial repodiis a process designed to provide reasonablessesuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting princip
A company'’s internal control over financial repodiincludes those policies and procedures thai€ftrin to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reftbettransactions and dispositions of the assdtseocfompany; (2) provide reasonable assuranc
that transactions are recorded as necessary tatg@aparation of financial statements in accor@anwith generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditureb®tbmpany are being made only in accordance witioaizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanabburance regarding prevention or timely detectfainauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssaubject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in condition
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all maleespects, effective internal control over fia&l reporting as of December 31, 2(
based on criteria establishedimernal Control —Integrated Framework (1998%ued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrike
Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the
consolidated balance sheets of the Company asadiger 31, 2013 and 2012, and the related consadiddatements of net income,
comprehensive income, changes in shareholderstyeguid cash flows for each of the years in theahyear period ended December 31, 201
and our report dated February 21, 2014 expressed@urelified opinion on those consolidated finahstatements.

/s KPMG LLP
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 21, 2014

139



Table of Contents

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Shareholders
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeets of S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiariesf &ecember 31, 2013 and 2012,
and the related consolidated statements of netiecoomprehensive income, changes in shareholeguity, and cash flows for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2013. These cdasedi financial statements are the responsibifith@ Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementsdas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the &mdbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digs in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenenelaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apditgide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaarferred to above present fairly, in all mateéspects, the financial position of S&T
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December @13 2nd 2012, and the results of its operationstarahsh flows for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2013, in caifipwith U.S. generally accepted accounting pptes.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bio@wnited States), the Company’
internal control over financial reporting as of Bawer 31, 2013, based on criteria establishédt@mnal Control —Integrated Framework
(1992)issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated February 21, 2014
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigsra the Company’s internal control over financégorting.

/s KPMG LLP
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 21, 2014
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Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTA NTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURES

None

Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participatiorS&fT’s Chief Executive Officer, or CEO, and Chigh&ncial Officer, or CFO (its
principal executive officer and principal financificer), management has evaluated the effects®néthe design and operation of S&T's
disclosure controls and procedures as of Decenthe2@®.3. In designing and evaluating the disclosorgrols and procedures, management
recognizes that any controls and procedures, ntentadw well designed and operated, can providg m@dsonable assurance of achieving the
desired control objectives.

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduresatetesigned to ensure that information requivdaetdisclosed by us in the reports
we file or submit under the Securities Exchange#934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, is dechiprocessed, summarized and rep:
within the time periods required by the Securities Exchange Commission, or the SEC, and thatisfmfmation is accumulated and
communicated to S&T’s management, including our GiB@ CFO, as appropriate, to allow timely decisi@mgarding required disclosure.

Based on and as of the date of such evaluationCE@ and CFO concluded that the design and oparatfiour disclosure controls and
procedures were effective in all material respeaxgsyf the end of the period covered by this Report

b) Management’s Report on Internal Control over Fin  ancial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting, as such term is definec
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f). Management assessdds3%stem of internal control over financial refiog as of December 31, 2013, in
relation to criteria for effective internal contmber financial reporting as described in “Inter@aintrol Integrated Framework (1992),” issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations offtteadway Commission in 1992. Based on this assgsmanagement concludes that, a:
of December 31, 2013, S&T’s system of internal omraver financial reporting is effective and metts criteria of the “Internal Control
Integrated Framework (1992).”

KPMG LLP, independent registered public accounfing, has issued a report on the effectiveness8af'Sinternal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2013, which is inctliderein.

¢) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Repor  ting

No changes were made to S&T’s internal control dwemcial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(fider the Exchange Act) during the
last fiscal quarter that materially affected, ag ezasonably likely to materially affect, S&T'sénbal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

Not applicable
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PART Il
Item 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORA TE GOVERNANCE

The information required by Part Ill, Item 10 ofrRo10-K is incorporated herein from the sectionttlied “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance”, “Election of Ditexs”, “Executive Officers of the Registrant” an@drporate Governance and Board and
Committee Meetings” in our proxy statement relatiogur May 19, 2014 annual meeting of shareholders

ltem 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

This information required by Part I, Item 11 offfn 10-K is incorporated herein from the sectiontitied “Compensation Discussion a
Analysis;” “Executive Compensation;” “Director Coepsation;” “Compensation Committee Interlocks amglder Participation”; and
“Compensation Committee Report” in our proxy stadahrelating to our May 19, 2014 annual meetinghareholders.

Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Except as set forth below, the information requisgdPart 111, Item 12 of Form 10-K is incorporatgdm the sections entitled “Principal
Beneficial Owners of S&T Common Stock” and “Ben&fidwnership of S&T Common Stock by Directors @ificers” in our proxy
statement relating to our May 19, 2014 annual mgeidf shareholders.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION UPDATE
The following table provides information as of Dedger 31, 2013 related to the equity compensatiangin effect at that time.

@) (b) (c)

Number of securities

Number of securities to Weighted average remaining available for
be issued upon exercise exercise price of future issuance under
outstanding options, equity compensation
of outstanding options, plan (excluding securities
Plan category warrants and rights warrants and rights reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plan
approved by shareholde® 428,90( $ 37.36: —

Equity compensation plans not
approved by shareholde — — _

Total 428,90( $ 37.36! —
@) Awards granted under the 2003 Incentive Stock F

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSAC TIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by Part 1ll, Item 13 ofrRo10-K is incorporated herein from the sectionttled “Related Person Transactions”
and “Director Independence” in our proxy statenretdting to our May 19, 2014 annual meeting of ehalders.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by Part Ill, Item 14 ofrRo10-K is incorporated herein from the sectiontkat “Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm” in our proxy statement relatingaor May 19, 2014 annual meeting of shareholders.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(&) The following documents are filed as part of thepRBrt.

Consolidated Financial StatementsThe following consolidated financial statementsiacduded in Part I, Item 8 of this Report. Nodimcial
statement schedules are being filed because th@eddnformation is inapplicable or is presentedhe Consolidated Financial Statements or
related notes.

Consolidated Balance She 72
Consolidated Statements of Net Inco 73
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Inc 74
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareh’ Equity 75
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flc 76
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem 77

Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firm, on Effectiveness of Internal Coh@eer Financial Reportin -~ 13¢
Report of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Publicdunting Firm, on Consolidated Financial States 14C
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(b) Exhibit:
2.1

3.4

3.€

3.8
10.2

10.c

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of Septefthez011, between S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Mainline
Bancorp, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 2.1 to S&T Bancdrg. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Septemb@r
2011 and incorporated herein by referel

Amendment No. 1 to the Agreement and Plan of Memged as of January 27, 2012, between S&T Bancol
Inc. and Mainline Bancorp, Inc., dated Septembe2042. Filed as Exhibit A to Form S-4 Registration
Statement (No. 3-178424) dated January 30, 2012 and incorporatesirhby reference

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated March 29, 2b&Ryeen S&T Bancorp, Inc. and Gateway Bank of
Pennsylvania filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the S&T Bam;dnc. Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Aprjl2012
and incorporated herein by referen

Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bancorp, Inc. Riles Exhibit B to Registration Statement (No. 2&35n
Form <-4 of S&T Bancorp, Inc., dated May 5, 1983, and ipooated herein by referenc

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to Form S-4 Registnat
Statement (No. --02600) dated January 15, 1986, and incorporatezirhby reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective May 8, 1989, incorporated hergyn
reference. Filed as exhibit 3.3 to S&T Bancorp, kuenual Report on Form 10-K for year ending Decemb
31, 1998 and incorporated herein by refere

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective July 21, 1995. Filed as exhihi to
S&T Bancorp, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foayending December 31, 1998 and incorporated herei
by reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective June 18, 1998. Filed as exi8hitto
S&T Bancorp, Inc. Annual Report on Form 10-K foayending December 31, 1998 and incorporated herei
by reference

Amendment to Articles of Incorporation of S&T Bampplnc. effective April 21, 2008. Filed as ExhiBitl to
S&T Bancorp, Inc. Quarterly Report on Form 10-@dilon August 7, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference

Certificate of Designations for the Series A PnafdrStock. Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to S&T Bancorp,.|@arrent
Report on Form-K filed on January 15, 2009 and incorporated helgineference

By-laws of S&T Bancorp, Inc., as amended, April 2008. Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to S&T Bancorp, Inc.
Quarterly Report on Form -Q filed on August 7, 2008 and incorporated hergimdference

S&T Bancorp, Inc. 2003 Incentive Stock Plan. FiedExhibit 4.2 to Form S-8 Registration Statemisiat
333-111557) dated December 24, 2003 and incorporatesinhisy reference.

S&T Bancorp, Inc. Thrift Plan for Employees of S&hnk, as amended and restated. Filed as Exhibtb4.2
Form S-8 Registration Statement (No. 333-15654fgdiRecember 31, 2008 and incorporated herein by
reference.’
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(b) Exhibit:
10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€
10.€
21
23
24
31.1
31.2
32
101

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan af Bé&ncorp, Inc. Filed as Exhibit 4.2 to Form S-3
Registration Statement (No. 333-156555) dated Jar®j@2009 and incorporated herein by referendedFis
Exhibit 4.2 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. on Forn-8 filed on January 2, 2009 and incorporated hdvgireference.:

Severance Agreement, by and between Todd D. BndeS&T Bancorp, Inc., dated December 31, 2008dFile
as Exhibit 10.1 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Current RegmrtForm 8-K filed on January 2, 2009 and incorpexta
herein by reference

Severance Agreement, by and between David G. Anwold S&T Bancorp, Inc. dated December 31, 2008.
Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Curr&#port on Form 8-K filed on January 2, 2009 and
incorporated herein by referenci

Severance Agreement, by and between Mark KochvéhS&T Bancorp, Inc. dated as of January 1, 2009.
Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to S&T Bancorp, Inc. Curr&#port on Form 8-K filed on February 26, 2010 and
incorporated herein by referenci

Severance Agreement, by and between David RuddutIS&T Bancorp, Inc. dated as of January 1, 2
S&T Bancorp, Inc. 2014 Incentive Plan

Subsidiaries of the Registra

Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Pukdicounting Firm.

Power of Attorney

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of the Chief Executive Offici

Rule 13i-14(a) Certification of the Principal Financial @#ir.

Rule 13i-14(b) Certification of the Chief Executive Officend Principal Financial Office

The following financial information from the Regiaht's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ehde
December 31, 2013 is formatted in eXtensible BussriReporting Language (XBRL): (i) Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) Consolidated Statements ofideime, (iii) Consolidated Statements of Comprehen
Income, (iv) Consolidated Statements of Chang&hireholders’ Equity, (v) Consolidated Statemehts o
Cash Flows and (vi) Notes to Consolidated Finarfsfatements

* Management Contract or Compensatory Plan or Arraegé
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Michael J. Donnelly
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Director 02/21/1«
Director 02/21/1«
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147



Exhibit 10.9

S&T BANCORP, INC.
2014 INCENTIVE PLAN

1. Definitions. In the Plan, except where the context otherwigicates, the following definitions shall apply:

1.1. “Affiliate” means a corporation, partnershijusiness trust, limited liability company, or otliemm of business organization at
least a majority of the total combined voting powgall classes of stock or other equity interedterhich is owned by the Company, either
directly or indirectly, and any other entity desa¢ggd by the Committee in which the Company hagtifgiant interest.

1.2. “Agreement” means an agreement or other donu(irecluding a plan or sub-plan) evidencing an Advéor Awards). An
Agreement may be in written or such other formhes@ommittee may specify in its discretion, andGloenmittee may, but need not, require a
Participant to sign an Agreement.

1.3. “Award” means a grant of an Option, Restrickdck, a Restricted Stock Unit, a Performance A\war an Other Stock-Based
Award.

1.4. “Board” means the Board of Directors of thexpany.

1.5. “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.

1.6. “Committee” means the Compensation and Ben€iiimmittee of the Board or such other committes(g)committee(s) or
person(s) the Board or an authorized committeee@Bpard appoints to administer the Plan or to naaidéor administer specific Awards
hereunder. If no such appointment is in effectgttame, “Committee” shall mean the Board. Notwittraling the foregoing, “Committee”
means the Board for purposes of granting Awardsdmbers of the Board who are not Employees, andnéstaring the Plan with respect to
those Awards, unless the Board determines otherwise

1.7. “Common Stock” means the Company’s commonkstoar value $2.50 per share.

1.8. “Company” means S&T Bancorp, Inc. and any essor thereto.

1.9. “Date of Exercise” means the date on whichQbepany receives notice of the exercise of andbpti accordance with
Section 7.

1.10.“Date of Grar” means the date on which an Award is granted umdePlan



1.11. “Effective Date” means the earlier of theedduat the Plan is adopted by the Board or is dipptroved by the Company’s
stockholders

1.12. “Eligible Person” means any person who isa@Employee, (b) a member of the Board or thedoadirectors of an
Affiliate, or (c) a consultant or independent cator to the Company or an Affiliate.

1.13. “Employee” means any person whom the Comendttermines to be an employee of the Company Affdiate.
1.14. “Exercise Price” means the price per Sharehath an Option may be exercised.

1.15. “Fair Market Value” means, as of any datewhich the Shares are listed or quoted on a seesigtkchange or quotation
system, and except as otherwise determined by éhenittee, (a) for the purpose of the granting ofafas, the average of the high and low
closing sale price for the Common Stock as repasteduch securities exchange or quotation systetiéoten trading day period ending on
relevant date and (b) for other purposes undePtae, the closing sale price of a Share as reportexlich securities exchange or quotation
system as of the relevant date , and if the Skaesot listed or quoted on a securities exchanggiatation system, then an amount equal to
the then fair market value of a Share as deterntiyettie Committee pursuant to a reasonable mettiogted in good faith for such purpose;
provided, however, that in the case of the grammoOption that is intended to not provide for &edal of compensation within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code, Fair Market Value shelbletermined pursuant to a method permitted byi®@ed409A of the Code for determining
the fair market value of stock subject to a nonifjedl stock option that does not provide for a defieof compensation within the meaning of
Section 409A of the Code.

1.16. “Incentive Stock Option” means an Option that Committee designates as an incentive stoé&rophder Section 422 of the
Code.

1.17. “Nonqualified Stock Option” means an Optibattis not an Incentive Stock Option.
1.18. “Option” means an option to purchase Sharastgd pursuant to Section 6.

1.19. “Option Period” means the period during whachOption may be exercised.

1.20. “Other Stock-Based Award” means an Award @aupursuant to Section 11.

1.21. “Participant” means an Eligible Person whs been granted an Award.
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1.22. “Performance Award” means a performance ageadted pursuant to Section 10.

1.23. “Performance Goals” means performance gbalsthe Committee establishes, which may be baseatisfactory internal or
external audits, achievement of balance sheetcomnie statement objectives, cash flow, customesfaation metrics, achievement of customel
satisfaction goals, dividend payments, earningdying before or after taxes, interest, depremmtand amortization), earnings growth,
earnings per share, economic value added, expénsisling sales, general and administrative expgnh®fficiency ratio, improvement of
financial ratings, internal rate of return, markkare, geographic expansion, net asset valuenemni, net operating gross margin, net
operating profit after taxes, net sales growth rafieg income, operating margin, comparisons tgorformance of other companies, pro
forma income, regulatory compliance, return meas(ireluding return on assets (including averaget3, designated assets, capital, capital
employed, equity, or stockholder equity, and rettersus the Company’s cost of capital), revenusessstock price (including growth
measures and total stockholder return), compatisstock market indices, implementation or completyf one or more projects or
transactions (including mergers, acquisitions, aifions, and restructurings), working capitalaay other objective goals that the Committee
establishes. Performance Goals may be absoluteiinterms or measured against or in relationshigther companies comparably, similarh
otherwise situated. Performance Goals may be péatito an Eligible Person or the department, tnaAdfiliate, or division in which the
Eligible Person works, or may be based on the padace of the Company, one or more Affiliates,her Company and one or more Affiliates
and may cover such period as the Committee mayfgpec

1.24. “Plan” means this S&T Bancorp, Inc. 2014 mteee Plan, as amended from time to time.
1.25. “Restricted Stock” means Shares granted patdo Section 8.

1.26. “Restricted Stock Unitsheans an Award providing for the contingent grdr8lwares (or the cash equivalent thereof) purs
to Section 9.

1.27. “Section 422 Employee” means an Employee izleanployed by the Company or a “parent corporatirisubsidiary
corporation” (each as defined in Sections 424(é)(&nof the Code) with respect to the Companyluding a “parent corporation” or
“subsidiary corporation” that becomes such aftepdidn of the Plan.

1.28. “Share” means a share of Common Stock.

1.29. “Ten-Percent Stockholder” means a Section#ployee who (applying the rules of Section 424fdhe Code) owns stock
possessing more than ten percent (10%) of thedotabined voting power of all classes of stockhef Company or a “parent corporation” or
“subsidiary corporation” (each as defined in Sewtid24(e) and (f) of the Code) with respect toGoenpany.
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Unless the context expressly requires the contrafgrences in the Plan to (a) the term “Secti@fiéns to the sections of the Plan, and (b) the
word “including” means “including (without limitadn).”

2. Purpose The Plan is intended to assist the Company anffffiliates in attracting and retaining Eligibl@Rons of outstanding ability
and to promote the alignment of their interesthlibse of the stockholders of the Company.

3. Administration. The Committee shall administer the Plan and dtaale plenary authority, in its discretion, to grAwards to Eligible
Persons, subject to the provisions of the Plan.d@mmmittee shall have plenary authority and disenetsubject to the provisions of the Plar
determine the Eligible Persons to whom it grantsafdg, the terms (which terms need not be identafad)l Awards, including without
limitation, the Exercise Price of Options, the tioreimes at which Awards are granted, the numb&hares covered by Awards, whether an
Option shall be an Incentive Stock Option or a Nalified Stock Option, any exceptions to nontraredféity, any Performance Goals
applicable to Awards, any provisions relating tstireg, and the periods during which Options magxercised and Restricted Stock shall be
subject to restrictions. In making these deternimmat the Committee may take into account the eatfithe services rendered or to be renc
by Award recipients, their present and potentiatdbutions to the success of the Company andffiiates, and such other factors as the
Committee in its discretion shall deem relevanbj&ct to the provisions of the Plan, the Committkall have plenary authority and discretion
to interpret the Plan and Agreements, prescribenanand rescind rules and regulations relatingemt and make all other determinations
deemed necessary or advisable for the administrafithe Plan and Awards granted hereunder. Thermi@tations of the Committee on the
matters referred to in this Section 3 shall be inigénd final. The Committee may delegate its autyhander this Section 3 and the terms of
the Plan to such extent it deems desirable andnsistent with the requirements of applicable law.

4. Eligibility . Awards may be granted only to Eligible Persomsyided that Incentive Stock Options may be grawielg to Eligible
Persons who are Section 422 Employees.

5. Stock Subject to Plan

5.1. Subject to adjustment as provided in SectRyrtie maximum number of Shares that may be ispuesiant to Awards
(including Incentive Stock Options) under the ARA50,000. Shares issued under the Plan may, ahevdr in part, be authorized but unissuec
Shares or Shares that shall have been, or magdequired by the Company in the open market, wapgitransactions, or otherwise.

5.2. If an Option expires or terminates for anysmrawithout having been fully exercised, if shaveRestricted Stock are forfeited,
or if Shares covered by an Award are not issuedt@forfeited, the unissued or forfeited Shareshhd been subject to the Award shall be
available for the grant of additional Awards; pided, however, that in the case of Shares that iindeld (or delivered) to pay the Exercise
Price of an Option or withholding taxes pursuanBéztions 7.2, 7.3, or 17, no such withheld (oiveéetd) Shares shall be available for the
grant of Awards hereunder.



5.3. Subject to adjustment as provided in SectRrttie maximum number of Shares with respect telwhn Employee may be
granted Awards under the Plan (whether settlecharé& or the cash equivalent thereof) during atgndar year is 50,000. The maximum
number of Shares with respect to which an Empldyesbeen granted Awards shall be determined irrdanoce with Section 162(m) of the
Code.

6. Options.

6.1. Options granted under the Plan shall be elttemtive Stock Options or Nonqualified Stock @p8, as designated by the
Committee. Each Option granted under the Plan Sleadl Nonqualified Stock Option unless expresayiified as an Incentive Stock Option,
and each Option shall be evidenced by an Agreethahspecifies the terms and conditions of the @ptDptions shall be subject to the terms
and conditions set forth in this Section 6 and sattler terms and conditions not inconsistent withPlan as the Committee may specify. Sucl
terms and conditions may provide that an Option begxercised only as described in Section 7.3amde for the payment of cash in lieu
of the issuance of all or a portion of the Shasssable upon exercise (with Shares paid in castybeilued at Fair Market Value). The
Committee may, in its discretion, condition thergrar vesting of an Option upon the achievemertraf or more specified Performance Goals

6.2. The Exercise Price of an Option granted utitePlan shall not be less than 100% of the FankBtavalue of a Share on the
Date of Grant. Notwithstanding the foregoing, ia ttase of an Incentive Stock Option granted torapl&yee who, on the Date of Grant is a
Ten-Percent Shareholder, the Exercise Price shabbaless than 110% of the Fair Market Value 8hare on the Date of Grant.

6.3. The Committee shall determine the Option Rioo an Option, which shall be specifically settfioin the Agreement, provide
that an Option shall not be exercisable after tary (five years in the case of an Incentive S@gtion granted to an Employee who on the
Date of Grant is a Ten-Percent Stockholder) franDiate of Grant.

7. Exercise of Options

7.1. Subject to the terms of the applicable Agresimen Option may be exercised, in whole or in,dartdelivering to the Compat
a notice of the exercise, in such form as the Cdtemimay prescribe, accompanied by (a) full payrf@rthe Shares with respect to which the
Option is exercised or (b) to the extent providethie applicable Agreement, irrevocable instructitma broker to deliver promptly to the
Company cash equal to the exercise price of theo@pt

7.2. To the extent provided in the applicable Agrest or otherwise authorized by the Committee, gantrof the Exercise Price
may be made by delivery (including constructive\@ely) of Shares (provided that such Shares, ifiaed
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pursuant to an Option or other Award granted heteunr under any other compensation plan maintdayetie Company or any Affiliate,
have been held by the Participant for such peifad)y, as the Committee may specify) valued at Mairket Value on the Date of Exercise.

7.3. To the extent provided in the applicable Agreat, an Option may be exercised by directing tam@any to withhold from the
Shares to be issued upon exercise of the Optiopdtion thereof) being exercised a number of Shhewing a Fair Market Value not in exc
of the aggregate Exercise Price of the Option ¢atign thereof being exercised), with payment &f blalance of the exercise price, if any, b
made pursuant to Section 7.1 and/or Section 7.2.

8. Restricted Stock Awards€Each grant of Restricted Stock under the Plaii Baasubject to an Agreement specifying the teamd
conditions of the Award. Restricted Stock grantadar the Plan shall consist of Shares that ardatest as to transfer, subject to forfeiture,
subject to such other terms and conditions as trerfittee may specify. Such terms and conditions prayide, in the discretion of the
Committee, for the lapse of such transfer restiior forfeiture provisions to be contingent uplos achievement of one or more specified
Performance Goals.

9. Restricted Stock Unit Award€Each grant of Restricted Stock Units under tteRBhall be evidenced by an Agreement that
(a) provides for the issuance of Shares (or thk egsivalent thereof) to a Participant at such ¢ghas the Committee may specify and
(b) contains such other terms and conditions a€timamittee may specify, including terms that caodithe issuance, vesting, or payment of
Restricted Stock Unit Awards upon the achieveméone or more specified Performance Goals.

10. Performance Award¥ach Performance Award granted under the Plahlshavidenced by an Agreement that (a) providesHe
payment of cash or issuance of Shares to a Paicgontingent upon the attainment of one or mpeeified Performance Goals over such
period as the Committee may specify, and (b) castauch other terms and conditions as the Commmittespecify. If the terms of a
Performance Award provide for payment in the foifmSbares, for purposes of Section 5.3, the Perfoom@ward shall be deemed to cover a
number of Shares equal to the maximum number ofeShhat may be issued upon payment of the Award.rmaximum cash amount payable
to any Employee pursuant to all Performance Awgrdsted to an Employee during a calendar year abakxceed $2,000,000.

11. Other StoclBased Awards The Committee may in its discretion grant stoekdxl awards of a type other than those otherwise
provided for in the Plan, including the issuancefer for sale of unrestricted Shares (“Other &tBased Awards”). Other Stock-Based
Awards shall cover such number of Shares and hasteterms and conditions as the Committee shadraéhe, including terms that condition
the payment or vesting of the Other Stock-Basedr8wa@on the achievement of one or more Perform&uas.
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12. Dividends and Dividend EquivalentShe terms of an Award may provide a Participaith whe right, subject to such terms and
conditions as the Committee may specify, to recdivielend payments or dividend equivalent paymeuitls respect to Shares covered by sucl
Award, which payments (a) may be either made ctiyren credited to an account established for thgi€ipant, (b) may be made contingent
upon the achievement of one or more PerformancésGarad (c) may be settled in cash or Shares, tasndimed by the Committee; provided,
however, that in no event shall any dividends eid#ind equivalents be paid out with respect toamyested Awards that are performance
awards.

13. Capital Events and Adjustments

13.1. In the event of any change in the outstan@iognmon Stock by reason of any stock dividend kssptit, reverse stock split,
spin-off, split-off, recapitalization, reclassifitan, combination or exchange of shares, mergersalidation, liquidation or the like, the
Committee shall provide for a substitution for djustment in: (a) the number and class of secaritithject to outstanding Awards or the type
of consideration to be received upon the exerais@sting of outstanding Awards, (b) the Exercised?of Options, (c) the aggregate number
and class of Shares for which Awards thereafter begagranted under the Plan, and (d) the maximumbeuwf Shares with respect to whick
Employee may be granted Awards during any calepear.

13.2. Any provision of the Plan or any Agreementhi contrary notwithstanding, in the event of agee or consolidation to whic
the Company is a party or any sale, dispositioexashange of at least 50% of the Company’s CommookSir all or substantially all of the
Company’s assets for cash, securities or othergotppor any other similar transaction or eventkea “Transaction”), the Committee shall
take such actions, and make such changes andradjustto outstanding Awards as it deems equitablémay in its discretion, cause any
Award granted hereunder to (a) vest in whole grart, (b) be assumed or continued by any successmquirer, and/or (c) be canceled (in
whole or in part) in consideration of a paymentgayments), in such form as the Committee may peamjual to the fair value of the cance
Award (or portion thereof), as determined by then@uttee in its discretion. The fair value of an ©ptshall be deemed to be equal to the
product of (a) the number of Shares the Option {end has not previously been exercised) anthé@xcess, if any, of the Fair Market
Value of a Share as of the date of cancellatiom theeExercise Price of the Option. For sake ofitgland notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herein, (a) the fair value of an Optionwdobe zero if the Fair Market Value of a Sharedsal to or less than the Exercise Price and
(b) payments in cancellation of an Award in conigectvith a Transaction may be delayed to the saxtenethat payment of consideration to
holders of Shares in connection with the Transadtalelayed as a result of escrows, earn-outdphoks, or any other contingencies.

13.3. The Committee need not take the same actidaruhis Section 13 with respect to all Awardsvidh respect to all Participar
and may, in its discretion, take different actiovith respect to vested and unvested portions &ward. No
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fractional shares or securities shall be issuedyant to any adjustment made pursuant to this@et8, and any fractional shares or securitie
resulting from any such adjustment shall be elingday rounding downward to the next whole shareegurity, either with or without
payment in respect thereof, as determined by therfiiiee. All determinations required to be madeaurttis Section 13 shall be made by the
Committee in its discretion and shall be final dmting.

14. Termination or AmendmenfThe Board may amend or terminate the Plan inraggect at any time; provided, however, that dfter
stockholders of the Company have approved the BlarBoard shall not amend or terminate the Plahout approval of (a) the Company’s
stockholders to the extent applicable law or retipia or the requirements of the principal exchamg@terdealer quotation system on which
the Common Stock is listed or quoted, if any, reggistockholder approval of the amendment or teatiain, and (b) each affected Participa
the amendment or termination would adversely atfeetParticipant’s rights or obligations under @vwyard granted prior to the date of the
amendment or termination.

15. Modification, Substitution of Awards

15.1. Subject to the terms and conditions of tlamPthe Committee may modify the terms of any aniding Awards; provided,
however, that (a) no modification of an Award shaithout the consent of the Participant, alteingpair any of the Participant’s rights or
obligations under such Award, and (b) except asaygal by the Company’s stockholders and subjeSettiion 13, in no event may an Option
be (i) modified to reduce the Exercise Price of@ption or (ii) cancelled or surrendered in consatien for cash, other Awards, or the grant of
a new Option with a lower Exercise Price.

15.2. Anything contained herein to the contrarywitbtstanding, Awards may, in the discretion of @@mmittee, be granted under
the Plan in substitution for stock options and otagards covering capital stock of another corponatvhich is merged into, consolidated wi
or all or a substantial portion of the propertystock of which is acquired by, the Company or afiliafe. The terms and conditions of the
substitute Awards so granted may vary from the sesimd conditions set forth in the Plan to suchréxds the Committee may deem approp
in order to conform, in whole or part, to the psigns of the awards in substitution for which tiaeg granted. Such substitute Awards shall nc
be counted toward the Share limit imposed by Se&i8, except to the extent the Committee detersniim&t counting such Awards is required
in order for Awards granted hereunder to be elegtbl qualify as “performance-based compensatiotfiiwithe meaning of Section 162(m) of
the Code.

16. Stockholder ApprovalThe Plan, and any amendments hereto requirirststdder approval pursuant to Section 14, are stijpe
approval by vote of the stockholders of the Compatrijie next annual or special meeting of stockérsldollowing adoption by the Board. If
the adoption of the Plan is not so approved byabmpany’s stockholders, any Awards granted undePtan shall be cancelled and vaid
initio immediately following such next annual or speciaeting of stockholders.
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17. Withholding. The Company'’s obligation to issue or deliver $8aor pay any amount pursuant to the terms of amgréd granted
hereunder shall be subject to satisfaction of apple federal, state, local, and foreign tax witdhmy requirements. To the extent authorize:
the Committee, and in accordance with such ruldbea€ommittee may prescribe, a Participant magfgainy withholding tax requirements
by one or any combination of the following mear@:téndering a cash payment, (b) authorizing thegamy to withhold Shares otherwise
issuable to the Participant, or (c) deliveringhte Company already-owned and unencumbered Shares.

18. Term of Plan Unless sooner terminated by the Board pursuaBetdion 14, the Plan shall terminate on the dwteis ten years after
the Effective Date, and no Awards may be grantesinarded after such date. The termination of tla Bhall not affect the validity of any
Award outstanding on the date of termination.

19. Indemnification of Committeeln addition to such other rights of indemnificatias they may have as members of the Board or
Committee, the Company shall indemnify membershiefGommittee against all reasonable expensesdingattorneys’ fees, actually and
reasonably incurred in connection with the defesfsny action, suit or proceeding, or in connectidtih any appeal therein, to which they or
any of them may be a party by reason of any a¢tiken or failure to act under or in connection vtite Plan or any Award granted hereunder,
and against all amounts reasonably paid by thesetihement thereof or paid by them in satisfactiba judgment in any such action, suit or
proceeding, if such members acted in good faithiargdmanner which they believed to be in, andapptosed to, the best interests of the
Company.

20. General Provisions

20.1. The establishment of the Plan shall not camfen any Eligible Person any legal or equitalgatragainst the Company, any
Affiliate or the Committee, except as expressiymted in the Plan. Participation in the Plan shall give an Eligible Person any right to be
retained in the service of the Company or any Fsftd.

20.2. Neither the adoption of the Plan nor its sigbian to the Company’s stockholders shall be takémpose any limitations on
the powers of the Company or its Affiliates to issgrant or assume options, warrants, rights,icéstr stock or other awards otherwise than
under the Plan, or to adopt other stock optiortricted stock, or other plans, or to impose anynenent of stockholder approval upon the
same.

20.3. The interests of any Eligible Person underRtan and/or any Award granted hereunder areuljéct to the claims of
creditors and may not, in any way, be transferasdigned, alienated or encumbered except to teatgxtovided in an Agreement.
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20.4. The Plan shall be governed, construed andnégtered in accordance with the laws of the Conwealth of Pennsylvania
without giving effect to conflict of laws principge

20.5. Notwithstanding any other provision of tharPbr any Agreement to the contrary, Awards andStmgres issued or payments
made under Awards shall be subject to any compiensaawback or recoupment policy (or policies)ttttee Company may have in effect fr
time to time, subject to such terms and conditiminsuch policy (or policies).

20.6. The Committee may require each person acgu8hares pursuant to Awards granted hereundeptesent to and agree with
the Company in writing that such person is acqgithre Shares without a view to distribution therddfe certificates for such Shares may
include any legend which the Committee deems apjatepto reflect any restrictions on transfer. édktificates for Shares issued pursuant to
the Plan shall be subject to such stock transfersrand other restrictions as the Committee mayndadvisable under the rules, regulations,
and other requirements of the Securities and Exgdn@ommission, any stock exchange upon which therian Stock is then listed or
interdealer quotation system upon which the ComBtoick is then quoted, and any applicable federataie securities laws. The Committee
may place a legend or legends on any such cetéfda make appropriate reference to such resmniti

20.7. The Company shall not be required to issyecartificate or certificates for Shares with resge Awards granted under the
Plan, or record any person as a holder of recohafes, without obtaining, to the complete satt&fa of the Committee, the approval of all
regulatory bodies the Committee deems necessatyweihout complying to the Board’s or Committeetanplete satisfaction, with all rules
and regulations under federal, state or local lesv@ommittee deems applicable.

20.8. To the extent that the Plan provides fordase of stock certificates to reflect the issuavfc@hares, the issuance may be
effected on a noncertificated basis, to the extenprohibited by applicable law or the rules of atock exchange or automated dealer
guotation system on which the Shares are tradedradtional Shares shall be issued or deliveredyant to the Plan or any Award. The
Committee shall determine whether cash, other Asjardother property shall be issued or paid in ieany fractional Shares or whether any
fractional Shares or any rights thereto shall éefted or otherwise eliminated.

20.9. Awards granted under this Plan are intendedmply with the requirements of Section 409Ate Code (including the
exceptions thereto), to the extent applicable,sdvadl be interpreted in accordance with such requénts. Notwithstanding anything to the
contrary herein, if the issuance of shares or paymkcash under an Agreement constitutes the paytoe Participant of nonqualified
deferred compensation for purposes of Section 48f%Ae Code and the Participant is a “specified leyg®e” (as determined under Treas. Reg
§ 1.409A-1(i)), then such issuance of Shares omgey of cash shall, to the extent necessary to owigh the
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requirements of Section 409A of the Code, be madhe later of (a) the date specified in the Agreetor (b) the date that is six (6) months
after the date of the Participant’s separation feamvice (or, if earlier, the date of the Participadeath). In no event shall the Company or an
of its Affiliates have any liability to any Partmant with respect to any Award failing to qualifyr any specific tax treatment (such as an Of
designated as an incentive stock option failingualify for treatment as an incentive stock optimrer Section 422 of the Code) or for any
taxes or penalties incurred by a Participant uisdstion 409A of the Code with respect to any Awaitte Committee may grant Awards that
qualify as performance-based compensation undein8ei62(m) and awards that do not so qualify.

11



Exhibit 21
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

S&T Bancorp, Inc., a Pennsylvania corporation, fimancial holding company. The table below setshfall of our subsidiaries as to state or
jurisdiction of organizatior

Subsidiary State or Jurisdiction of Organization
S&T Bank Pennsylvanic

9th Street Holdings, In Delaware

S&T Bancholdings, Inc Delaware

S&T Insurance Group, LL¢ Pennsylvani:

S&T Professional Resources Group, L Pennsylvani:

S&T-Evergreen Insurance, LL Pennsylvanic

S&T Settlement Services, LL Pennsylvanic

Stewart Capital Advisors, LL! Pennsylvanic

STBA Capital Trust Delaware

Commonwealth Trust Credit Life Insurance Comp Arizona



Exhibit 23
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
S&T Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries:

We consent to the incorporation by reference irréigistration statement Nos. 333-183978, 333-16,1333-157297 and 33B56555, on Forr
S-3, and No. 333-156541 on Form S-8 of S&T Banchp, and subsidiaries of our reports dated Felgr@ar 2014, with respect to the
consolidated balance sheets of S&T Bancorp, Ind.sasidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 202thenrelated consolidated statemen
net income, comprehensive income and changes isfstlders’ equity, and cash flows for each of tharg in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2013, and the effectiveness of intearerol over financial reporting as of Decembér 3013, which reports appear in the
December 31, 2013 annual report on Form 10-K of &&ncorp, Inc. and subsidiaries.

/sl KPMG LLP
Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania
February 21, 2014



Exhibit 24
POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature appears betmh,(a “Signatory”) constitutes and
appoints Joseph A. Kirk, Jeffrey D. Grube and Frédhklones (each an “Agent,” and collectively, “Agghor any of them, his true and lawful
attorney-in-fact and agent for and in his namegeland stead, in any and all capacities, to sigrCibmpany’s Annual Report on Form KGor
the year ended December 31, 2013 and to file the swith all exhibits thereto, and all amendmemtstber documents in connection
therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Comianis€Each Signatory further grants to the Agenitiolver and authority to do and perform
each and every act and thing requisite and neggssahe judgment of such Agent, to be done innamtion with any such signing and filing,
as full to all intents and purposes as he migltiooild do in person, and hereby ratifies and corfiaththat said Agent may lawfully do or ca
to be done by virtue hereof.

This Power of Attorney may be executed simultankonsone or more counterparts, each of which shalleemed an original, but all of
which constitute but one and the same instrument.

Signature Title Date

/sl Charles G. Urtin Chairman of the Board and February 21, 2014
Charles G. Urtir Director
/sl Todd D. Brice Chief Executive Officer and February 21, 2014
Todd D. Brice Director

Director February 21, 2014
John J. Delane
/sl Michael J. Donnelly Director February 21, 2014
Michael J. Donnelly
/s/ William J. Gatti Director February 21, 2014
William J. Gatti
/sl Jeffrey D. Grube Director February 21, 2014
Jeffrey D. Grube
s/ Frank W. Jones Director February 21, 2014
Frank W. Jone
/sl Joseph A. Kirk Director February 21, 2014
Joseph A. Kirk

Director February 21, 2014

David L. Krieger



Signature

Title

Date

James C. Mille

/s/ Fred J. Morelli Jr.

Fred J. Morelli, Jr

/s/ Frank J. Palermo, Jr.

Frank J. Palermo, J

Charles A. Spadafol

/s/ Christine J. Toretti

Christine J. Toretl

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

February 21, 2014

February 21, 2014

February 21, 2014

February 21, 2014

February 21, 2014



Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Principal Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acto  f 2002

I, Todd D. Brice, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fS&T Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiomny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%(nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atiie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

c¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registragisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proges] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportiritat occurred during the registramthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report), thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tohover financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal corvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refiwancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invavaeanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ Todd D. Brice
Todd D. Brice, President and Chief Executive Offi




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Principal Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Acto  f 2002

I, Mark Kochvar, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 16fS&T Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmn#ttate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntgts.under which such statements were made, niatadisg with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&)}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15
(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedaresiused such disclosure controls and procedoifes designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatneg to the registrant, including its consolidhtibsidiaries, is made known to us by
others within those entities, particularly durihg tperiod in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financigloiting, or caused such internal control over fmahreporting to be designed under
our supervision, to provide reasonable assurargadiang the reliability of financial reporting atiie preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with geneealbepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registratisslosure controls and procedures and presentiisineport our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and progesias of the end of the period covered by tienteébased on such evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the tegig’s internal control over financial reportiritat occurred during the registramthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth dilsguarter in the case of an annual report), thatrhaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal trmhover financial reporting; and
5. The registrant’s other certifying officer anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimternal control over financial

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitacmmmittee of the registrant’s board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cordvelr financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refiwancial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invaveanagement or other employees who have a sigmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ Mark Kochvar
Mark Kochvar, Senior Executive Vice President, €Rieancial Office




Exhibit 32

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT SECTION 906

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as adopted @uirsol Section 906 of the Sarbar@sley Act of 2002, in connection with the S&T Bamgy
Inc. (the “Company”) Annual Report on Form 10-K fbe period ending December 31, 2013 as filed thighSecurities and Exchange
Commission on the date hereof (the “Report”), Id@®. Brice, President and Chief Executive Offioethe Company, and I, Mark Kochvar,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify,rpuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuant@mBthe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, to
the best of my knowledge, that:
1. The Report fully complies with the requiremeunit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934, as amended; and
2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdétion and results of operations of the
Company for the dates and period covered by thertep
This certificate is being made for the exclusivepmse of compliance by the Chief Executive Offiaad Chief Financial Officer of the
Company with the requirements of Section 906 of3hehanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and may not be diedodistributed or used by any person
or for any reason other than as specifically resgulyy law.

Date: February 21, 2014

/s/ Todd D. Brice /s/ Mark Kochvar
Todd D. Brice, Mark Kochvar,
President and Chief Executive Offic Senior Executive Vice President, Chief Financidicaf




